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CORPORATE PROFILE

Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (Suria) was incorporated in 1983 and has
steadily grown into a diversified entity. Listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad since 1996 (Stock Code: 6521), today Suria
and its subsidiaries – collectively known as SuriaGroup, work in synergy
to deliver quality services in the areas of Port Operations, Logistics and
Bunkering, Property Development as well as Construction and Seaport
Passenger Gateway.
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OUR VISION, MISSION & CORE VALUES
OUR VISION

OUR MISSION
To enhance the long-term value of the Group by:

Creating

Achieving

Embracing

Enriching

sustainable returns to
our shareholders

excellence in all our
business undertakings

best practices in our
business processes

the lives of our
employees

whilst always caring for the environment and community within which we operate.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Our
Leadership

To be a reputable investment corporation in the region that creates value
through diversified businesses in ports and logistics, port-related projects
and other related ventures.

Unity of
Purpose

Providing
excellent services
to our customers.

Working together as
one cohesive team to
achieve our missions.

Respect

Integrity

Achievement

Value and care for
our employees,
community and the
environment.

Upholding the highest
ethical conduct and
good corporate
governance.

Strong commitment
to act and accomplish
desired results
through innovation
and creativity.

SUR I A

Financial Statements
& Others

Service
Excellence

How We Are
Governed

OUR CORE VALUES
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Port Operations
Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd (Sabah Ports), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Suria,
is the operator of Sabah’s major ports and oil terminals since the port
privatisation exercise in September 2004. It operates eight (8) ports namely
Sapangar Bay Container Port, Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal, Kota Kinabalu
Port and Kudat Port on the West Coast of Sabah, and Sandakan Port, Tawau
Port, Lahad Datu Port as well as Kunak Port on the East Coast of the State.
As the State’s main port operator,
Sabah Ports focuses mainly on the
streamlining of port operations, the
acquisition of new modern cargo
handling equipment, planning and
undertaking of new cargo handling
facilities as well as its human capacity
building to ensure the sustainability of
the business to achieve its objectives
to provide the best services to all port
users. The newly established Marine
Unit in Sabah Ports in early 2021
further enhances Sabah Ports’ functions
to ensure efficiency in the marine
support services including Vessel Traffic
Monitoring and Information Systems
(VTMIS), hydrographic survey, towage
services, etc. Through this Marine Unit,
Sabah Ports provides marine support
services to PETRONAS on its maiden
LNG Bunkering in Sandakan, Sabah in
2021.

Sabah Ports handles all types of cargo
including container, liquid cargo,
dry bulk, Roll-on Roll-off (RoRo) and
general cargo, as well as offers berthing
and storage facilities. In its effort to
provide an excellent service, Sabah
Ports develops a one-stop centre for its
port services to also include ancillary
services and bunkering at Sabah waters.
Located at the strategic locations of
the East ASEAN region, these ports are
expected to boost the State’s potential
as trade gateways to the BIMP-EAGA
region and improve connectivity
to international markets, which is
vital to spurring economic growth.
Further development is the kick-start
of Sapangar Bay Container Port’s
expansion that will increase its handling
capacity from 500,000 TEUs to 1.25
million TEUs annually, and is expected to
complete by 2025. This will attract Intra

-Asian liners to directly call at Sapangar
Bay Container Port under the hub-andspoke transshipment strategy to have
more connectivity. Thus, our ports have
the capacity to generate tremendous
value for economic sectors and the
supply chain in the logistics sector.
S.P. Satria Sdn Bhd (S.P. Satria) was set
up as a subsidiary of Sabah Ports to
procure port equipment and spare parts
to support the port business.

Logistics & Bunkering
SP Marine Services Sdn Bhd (SP Marine), is a subsidiary
of Sabah Ports to carry out ancillary services and
bunkering within Sabah Ports’ port limits. It supports
Sabah Ports’ initiatives to create a one-stop centre for
all ports and marine services.
SP Marine is a licensed bunker supplier for all ports in Sabah
with PDA 2 License from the Ministry of Domestic Trade and
Consumer Affairs. Besides bunkering, the ancillary services
provided by SP Marine are supply of fresh water, waste
management, ship provisions, mooring gang, logistics and
transportation. As a licensed shipping agent registered with
the Royal Malaysian Customs Department, SP Marine also
provides shipping agency services to ships that call at the
ports in Sabah.
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Property Development

The JQ project is poised to provide
vibrancy to the surrounding areas and

Construction & Seaport
Passenger Gateway

complement other developments in
the vicinity such as Sabah International
Convention Centre and Kota Kinabalu
Convention City. JQ which forms part
of the larger Jesselton Waterfront City,
is planned as a new city focus for Sabah
and as the latest waterfront destination.
It is also the long-term plan of Suria
to develop a dedicated International
Cruise Terminal (ICT) supplemented
with related commercial realties to
serve as the home port or regular port
of call for regional and international
cruise liners at Kota Kinabalu Port’s
land.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Suria entered into joint venture
agreement with SBC Corporations
Berhad (SBC) to build Jesselton Quay
(JQ) mega-development. The first
phase of the development, namely
Jesselton Quay Central (JQC) has
been completed with the Occupation
Certificate (OC) issued in January 2022.
The JQ development features service
suites apartments, condo residences,
a recreation club, hotels, commercial
gallery shoppes, car park facilities and
Suria’s corporate office.

Our
Leadership

The Group diversifies its business into property development to capitalise
and maximise the value of its land assets within the Central Business
District adjacent to Kota Kinabalu Port’s land.

Container Port and jetty extension at
Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal.
SCHB Engineering operates Jesselton
Point Ferry Terminal in Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah as the main gateway to
surrounding islands and also provides
‘meet and greet’ facilities for cruise ship
passengers at Kota Kinabalu Port.
SCHB Engineering also aspires to
make its presence in the green energy
sector such as solar and other potential
renewable and sustainable energy
resources.

Financial Statements
& Others

SCHB Engineering, under its project
management portfolio as a civil and
infrastructure engineering company,
had been involved in major projects
in the State which included the
modernisation of railway tracks from
Tanjung Aru to Kimanis, upgrading
of railway tracks from Halogilat to
Tenom, Earthwork (EPCC) for Kimanis
Power Plant and refurbishment
of two (2) major mosques in Kota
Kinabalu. SCHB Engineering has been
actively supervising most of the port
constructions in Sabah as Project
Management Consultant (PMC)
including construction of Sapangar Bay

How We Are
Governed

SCHB Engineering Services Sdn Bhd (SCHB Engineering) provides services
in construction, seaport passenger gateway, project management, and
renewable energy.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Annual Report reveals our yearround efforts to create value for our
organisation and its stakeholders
via effective management of our Six
Capitals and resource allocation.
Our ultimate objective is to provide
quantitative and sustainable results
that support our value creation
journey.
Since 2020, the Group has embarked
on a journey to embrace the
International Integrated Reporting
Council’s (IIRC) Framework. This
report demonstrates our commitment
to following best practices in
corporate reporting by including
information that helps our key
stakeholders to make informed
judgments about our performance
and future prospects. We strive for
the utmost level of transparency
and accountability in all of our
engagements with stakeholders, and
we intend to fully implement the
Framework by the time our 2023
Annual Report is released.

WE VALUE FEEDBACK

CONTEXT

Suria Capital Holdings Berhad values
feedback, comments and enquiries
on this Report. To contact us, please
refer to page 41 for Corporate
Information and the back cover of this
Annual Report.

Suria Capital Holdings Berhad and
its subsidiaries are referred to as
“SuriaGroup” or “the Group” in this report.

SEND US YOUR FEEDBACK
To ensure that we report on issues
that matter to our stakeholders,
please provide any feedback or
enquiries by scanning the adjacent
QR code.

NAVIGATION
This report leverages on infographics
to connect our strategy and material
concerns to our operations and results.
MAKING USE OF THE SIX CAPITALS
As required by the IIRC Framework, we
have discussed our Six Capitals of value
creation in this Report and have created
navigational icons as seen here for the
reader’s ease of reference throughout
the report.

SIX CAPITALS OF
<IR> FRAMEWORK

39th

Annual General Meeting

Please scan the QR
Code to view our
AR2021.
Or Annual Report
is available on our
website at www.
suriagroup.com.my/
investor-relations/

Meeting Venue:
Training Centre, 1st Floor,
Wisma SabahPorts,
Sapangar Bay Container Port,
Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay,
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah.

Financial
Capital

Natural
Capital

Physical
Capital

Social &
Relationship
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

Human
Capital

Time: 10.00 a.m.
Date: Tuesday, 21 June 2022
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Our
Leadership

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Given the Group’s operating
environment and industry, some
material in this report contains
forward-looking statements, such as
our judgments or projections about
future prospects. These statements
and predictions contain risks and
uncertainties that might result in actual
outcomes substantially differ from
those stated in the forward-looking
statements included in this report.
These forward-looking statements are
based on assumptions that may change
as the Group’s operating environment
changes in response to future events,
and they are not a guarantee of future
performance. Readers should not
put excessive reliance on forwardlooking statements since they are not a
guarantee of our future performance,
either implicitly or explicitly.

MATERIALITY
We have established a strategic plan
that takes into consideration the critical
issues affecting our company and the
recognised risks and opportunities.
This report discusses issues that might
have a material impact on our capacity
to generate value in the short, medium,
and long term, as well as our outlook
and how we are tackling them via
various initiatives.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
Being part of our commitment to
sustainability, we also provide an
in-depth report on our sustainability
performance and how we interact
with stakeholders on economic,
environmental and social issues.
The Sustainability Statement made
references to the Global Reporting

To learn more about our sustainability
initiatives, click on the link here https://
suriagroup.com.my/sustainability/
REPORT APPROVAL

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The report summarises our financial
and non-financial performance for the
fiscal year beginning 1 January 2021 and
ending 31 December 2021. In terms of
reporting boundaries, we examined the
Group’s whole business activities. The
reporting scope included an examination
of the internal and external effects of
business, sustainability activities and
operational improvements. Additionally,
we assessed trends, opportunities, and
risks that might have a material impact
on the Group’s ability to create value.
The reporting scope is basically identical
to that of our Annual Report 2020 for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2020 and ending 31 December 2020.

Initiatives (GRI) Standards, Bursa
Malaysia’s Sustainability Reporting
Guide and the International Association
of Ports and Harbors’ World Ports
Sustainability Program and is reported
on a best-effort basis.

The Board of Suria Capital Holdings
Berhad recognises its responsibility for
the integrity of the Annual Report. The
Board believes that the report presents
a fair and balanced representation of
the Group’s overall performance in the
context of its identified critical aspects.
Our financial statements were prepared
and assured in accordance with the
MFRS, IFRS and Companies Act 2016,
please refer to pages 143 to 240 for the
audited financial statements and our
independent auditor’s report.

How We Are
Governed

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Financial Statements
& Others

SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

8

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

OUR INTEGRATED REPORTING JOURNEY

FY2015 to FY2018

FY2019 to FY2020

FY2021 to FY2022

2023 and onwards

Initiation of sustainabilityrelated policies and
strategies including
enhancement of corporate
governance standards,
policies and practices.

Initiation of the general
adoption of Integrated
Reporting (<IR>) guiding
principles and content
elements.

Enhancement of disclosure
and greater incorporation
of best practices, processes
and enhancement of data
collection.

Adoption of the full <IR>
guiding principles and
content elements.

OUR REPORTING GUIDELINES
This report is guided by the following regulatory frameworks and standards:


Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (MMLR)



Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance (MCCG)



Bursa Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Guide - Second Edition



Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards 2016: Core Option



Companies Act 2016



United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs)



Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS)



International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Note: The detailed financial statements and analysis of the financial performance of the Group are supported by an independent
auditor’s report.

SURIAGROUP’S STRATEGIC PLAN FRAMEWORK
SuriaGroup’s five-year Strategic Plan 2019 - 2023 is built on the Strategic Plan 2014 - 2018, adopting the same five (5) strategic
focus as follows:

STRATEGIC
FOCUS

External
Shareholders

Governance &
Internal Process

• Corporate Image
• Educated & Informed
Stakeholders
• Effective Partnership
• Market Presence

• Well Governed & Well
Managed
• Sound & Effective Business
& Operations Practices

| ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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OUR INTEGRATED REPORTING JOURNEY

SuriaGroup’s Strategic Plan 2019-2023 enables the Group to focus on and ensure sustainable value creation for its stakeholders
by achieving a sustainable level of business performance and efficiently utilising the Group’s resources in order to generate
sustainable and fair returns for shareholders.

Financial

Customer
Service

Learning
& Growth

• Long Term Business
Sustainability
• Efficient & Effective
Financial Resource
Management

• Customer Centric Culture

• Conducive Working
Environment
• Competent & Knowledgeable
Workforce

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

For more details, see pages 14 to 17.

How We Are
Governed

Our business plan establishes the course we will pursue and the resources
we will devote to each of our company areas. Our plans are developed in
response to our understanding of the environment in which we operate.
This encompasses political, economic, social, technological, environmental
and regulatory considerations, as well as long-term trends affecting
the landscape and dynamics of the sector. We examine our industry
and business prospects by identifying opportunities and threats. Most
significantly, we take into account the demands of our stakeholders, which
have a material impact on the Group’s potential to produce value.

Financial Statements
& Others

The Group’s value creation strategy demonstrates how diverse resources
are used to generate value for our stakeholders. These resources,
referred to as ‘inputs’ are organised into Six Capitals: financial, physical,
intellectual, human, social and relationship, and natural capital. These
inputs, which are necessary to operationalise our business activities, are
translated into ‘outputs’ in the form of services provided to our clients
and stakeholders under our business model. The outputs, in turn, result
in a variety of ‘outcomes’ that may be quantified in terms of their impact
on our stakeholders and their effectiveness in supporting the Group’s
commitment to long-term sustainable development and value creation for
our stakeholders.

Our
Leadership

VALUE CREATION MODEL
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

GROUP’S TOTAL
REVENUE

RM

251.3 million
251.3

2021

2020

228.0

DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN DATUK YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO
Chairman

Dear valued shareholders,
GROUP’S GROSS PROFIT

RM

78.4 million
72.6

78.4

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me
great pleasure in presenting the Annual Report
of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad and its Group
of Companies (SuriaGroup) as well as its Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

2021

2020

With the COVID-19 outbreak worsening during the year, 2021 had been another
year of uncertainty for SuriaGroup (the Group), like many others. The world was still
blurred on the depth of COVID-19 pandemic with the emergence of new variants
and the length of the pandemic-induced recession hitting the global economy.
Nevertheless, as more nations were engaged with mass vaccination programmes and
the reopening of the Malaysian economy, the country made an economic recovery
momentum in 2021 with its GDP growth of 3.1% versus a negative growth of -5.6%
in 2020. (Bank Negara Malaysia, Annual Report 2021).
Mirroring the economic scenario, the upturn in economic activity had positive
impacts on our operations in Sabah in terms of cargo volumes and hence port
operations, directly contributing to the performance of the Group.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DIVIDEND PAYMENT
DELIVERING OUR
PERFORMANCE
Against the economic backdrop, I
am pleased to share that the Group’s
overall performance improved in
2021 against the previous year. The
Group’s revenue stood 10.2% higher at
RM251.3 million in 2021, increasing by
RM23.3 million from RM228.0 million
registered in 2020. This resulted in
higher Group’s pre-tax profit which
improved by 22.1% in 2021 to RM58.6
million from RM48.0 million in 2020.
The Group’s sound performance in 2021
was spurred by the higher operating
revenue from port operations, the
Group’s core business, as well as from
construction services for concession
infrastructure recognised by stages
of completion of the Sapangar Bay Oil
Terminal’s jetty extension.

I am pleased to inform that the Board
of Directors will be recommending a
final tax-exempt dividend of 2.5 sen
per ordinary share at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting subject
to approval from shareholders. If
approved, this will bring the total
dividend pay-out in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2021
to RM13.8 million, which is equivalent
to 4.0 sen per ordinary share. It
represents a pay-out ratio of 35.0%
against 34.6% in the preceding year.

CORPORATE AND
OPERATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
During 2021, the Group had focused on
ensuring the effective continuity of port
operations and adequate support to the
Sabah State’s economy, despite having
to monitor the pandemic and to respond
accordingly. The main focus was on the

Among the key breakthrough in 2021
was when Sabah Ports made its maiden
entry into Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)
bunkering operations in collaboration
with PETRONAS. Sabah Ports was
appointed as the main service provider
for the oil and gas powerhouse. It
signified the diversification of services
offered by the subsidiary in enhancing
its offshore and onshore services as a
one-stop centre for marine services
and ship-care business. Other major
efforts involved strengthening our
port systems such as the setting up of
Marine Unit at Sabah Ports with the aim
of providing more integrated marine
services.
I also wish to update that the
development of the expansion project
for Sapangar Bay Container Port, which
is funded by the Federal Government,
is well underway with groundworks
started since September 2021. With
its completion expected by February
2025, the Port will be the future
transshipment hub and trade gateways
to the BIMP-EAGA and the larger
ASEAN region. The new expanded
Sapangar Bay Container Port is poised
to be a catalyst in spurring the State’s
industrialisation, in support of the
Sabah Maju Jaya Development Plan
2030.

Our
Leadership

As the key port operator in Sabah, the
priority is to provide efficient services
to port users and to ease connectivity
within the regional markets. In our
continued commitment to enhancing
the business, the Group managed to set
out various efforts during 2021 through
business collaboration, diversification
and expansion to maximise the Group’s
overall performance as well as to
enhance investors’ confidence in us.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

For more in-depth elaboration on
the Group’s financial and operational
performance, please refer to the
Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) section of this Annual Report.

sustainability of business operations
while continuing to be responsible for
the environment, employees and the
surrounding communities.

How We Are
Governed

As the Group’s main source of revenue,
port operations generated 85.3% of
the Group’s total revenue, contributing
RM214.5 million in 2021 as against
RM206.0 million recorded in 2020. This
was mainly due to the higher overall
container throughput during the year
that saw a strong rebound compared
to 2020. Sabah Ports handled higher
container volume, which increased by
11.2% to 397,346 TEUs in 2021 from
357,416 TEUs in 2020. Overall, Sabah
Ports handled a total of 30.2 million
metric tonnes of cargo (including
containers) during the financial year as
against 29.6 million metric tonnes in
2020, with bulk oil making up the biggest
component of the cargo handled.

Financial Statements
& Others
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In the property segment, we had
completed the designated ‘Jesselton
Quay Central’, the first phase of the
Jesselton Quay mega project the
completion of which was signified by the
Lighting-Up Ceremony as officiated by
the Chief Minister of Sabah in January
2022. With its strategic and aesthetic
location fronting the sea, within the
Kota Kinabalu city centre, the Jesselton
Quay is poised to be among the most
sought-after property in Sabah.
The Group’s confidence in the return
of tourists when borders reopen had
also prompted our subsidiary, SCHB
Engineering to improve its service
efficiency i.e., the e-ticketing system
at Jesselton Point Ferry Terminal. This
system will not only streamline and
centralise the ticketing operations under
one platform, but ensure fair pricing
for all passengers as well as systematic
management of traffic flow of boats.
As the COVID-19 pandemic remained
the dominant challenge, we continued
to prioritise the welfare of our
employees. Employees were allowed
to work from home, special shifts

arrangements and mass vaccination
programmes were in place. The special
Crisis Command Centre (CCC) was
established a year earlier to ensure
no disruption in the port operations.
Virtual meetings, discussions and
trainings were conducted via use
of video-conferencing medium
which had become the new practical
and convenient form of office
communications.

ACHIEVEMENTS AND
RECOGNITIONS
Suria made new milestones as a public
listed company in 2021 when the
holding company was included in FTSE
Bursa Malaysia EMAS (FBM EMAS)
Index and received another recognition
as the sole winner of the Merit
Award for Most Improved Corporate
Governance Disclosure category in the
MSWG-ASEAN Corporate Governance
Award.
I am also glad to mention that our
subsidiary, Sabah Ports received two
international awards in 2021 namely
Emerging Port/Terminal of the Year

2021 and Port/Terminal of the Year –
South East Asia 2021 from Global Port
Forum, centred in Dubai and Singapore.
Sabah Ports had received Port/Terminal
of the Year – South East Asia award for
two consecutive years. The recognitions
to Sabah Ports signified its potentials as
port operator in this region.

OUTLOOK FOR 2022
Although the pace of recovery is seen as
relatively slow, the general outlook has
been positive with expectation that the
global economic recovery will continue
to pick up in 2022. Bank Negara
Malaysia anticipates the Malaysian
economy to expand by between 5.3%
and 6.3% versus World Bank’s forecast
of 5.5%. The recovery will be driven
by domestic demand and expansion in
export sector amid the reopening of the
economy and international borders.
Notwithstanding this, the World
Bank had cautioned that we are not
out of the woods yet. Growth could
slow down if global condition worsens
amid the Russian-Ukraine conflict,
financial tightening in the US, structural
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Focusing our sights on what lies
ahead, the main emphasis for the
Group is very much on the longterm business sustainability, which
includes expanding and improving
our port performance, venturing into
renewable energy, improving safety
as well as implementing digitalisation
programme. Works on all these
streams are well underway to maximise
shareholders’ value. In addressing these
sustainability issues, the Group will
continue to strategise its operations
while contributing towards the United
Nations Sustainability Development
Goals, such as clean energy, climate
actions, sustainable communities,
environmental conservations, decent

In 2021, the Group navigated the
difficult journey quite well. This was
made possible by the unwavering
commitment of those who had served
and acted in the best interest of the
Group.
First of all, I wish to acknowledge
my fellow Board members for their
guidance and contributions to the
Group through their respective Board
committees. On this note and on behalf
of the Board, I would like to welcome
Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md Salleh
Bin Tun Said Keruak J.P., who joined
the Board on 1 April 2021. His vast
experience at both Federal and State
levels is undoubtedly invaluable to the
Group.
My gratitude goes to the Management
and employees for their dedication
and commitment to ensuring the
Group remained resilient through
this uncertain time. Their hard work
as a team had enabled the Group to
add further values for shareholders
throughout 2021.
In the same vein, I would like to
extend our gratitude to our valued
stakeholders, particularly shareholders,

We now look ahead to new
opportunities as we move towards
the recovery and the endemic phase
for continuous growth and prosperity.
The pandemic has become a turning
point for us to re-assess our plans and
strategies to support a sustainable
business recovery and to undertake
measures to address shocks in the
future. With the right focus and
confidence moving forward, I believe
we will overcome these challenges to
emerge stronger and to deliver more in
the future.

Thank you.
DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN DATUK
YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO
Chairman

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

APPRECIATIONS AND
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

various Government agencies (Federal
and State), regulatory bodies as well as
business partners and associates for
rendering their continuous support to
SuriaGroup. Our special appreciation
goes to the Federal Ministry of
Transport Malaysia, the State’s Ministry
of Works, Ministry of Finance, Sabah
State Economic Planning Unit, Sabah
Ports Authority, Qhazanah Sabah
Berhad, Sabah Economic Development
and Investment Authority (SEDIA),
Lands and Surveys Department, Kota
Kinabalu City Hall and Yayasan Sabah.

How We Are
Governed

While we welcome these positive
signs, we are cautiously optimistic
that the economic environment will
return to its pre-pandemic levels as
the nation can ride the waves with
better preparedness. As the nation’s
economy steadily picking up from
the onset of COVID-19, the Group
continues its commitment to serve the
State’s economy while doing our part in
capitalising on the new opportunities or
taking heed of the future risks.

work and economic growth as well as
good health and well-being.

Financial Statements
& Others

The Malaysian government has so
far been proactive in managing the
pandemic situation. With the reopening
of borders by April 2022, Malaysia will
enter the transition to endemic phase,
and more flexibility will be afforded
to enable people to return to nearnormal lives. The reopening will also
mean that more economic and social
sectors, especially in relation to our port
operations, tourism and commercial
activities in Sabah will be revived, hence
leading to higher volume and cargo
vessel calls, not forgetting the return of
cruise liners.

Our
Leadership

slowdown in China, the worsening
in the supply-chain disruptions and
the emergence of even more severe
COVID-19 variants.

14
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HOW WE CREATE VALUE

1

2

Inputs

Key Activities
PORT OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL
CAPITAL
Internally generated funds and external
funds are the two sources of financial
capital that we use to run our business
and expand. Additionally, we invest
our financial means to add value to the
other Capitals.

PHYSICAL
CAPITAL
Our primary business is port
operations. We invest in port assets,
equipment and infrastructure to
support company’s business and
development. At the same time, we own
investment properties to enhance our
earnings capacity, to further add value
to Financial Capital.

INTELLECTUAL
CAPITAL
We have extensive professional
knowledge and experience in port
management and operations, maritime
and auxiliary services, and the
development of transportation-related
infrastructure. This intellectual capital
is what drives the Group’s operational
efficiency and effectiveness.
Note 1: Sapangar Bay Container Port will handle Roll-on Roll-off operation
starting 2022.
Note 2: This service has been temporarily suspended due to COVID-19.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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All business segments
generated a total revenue
of RM251.3 million in 2021
(2020: RM228.0 million).
Net profit of RM39.5 million
was made for the year 2021
(2020: RM32.9 million).
RM5.2 million interim
dividend was paid in 2021
(2020: RM3.5 million).

























Spending on Capital
Expenditure of RM35.0
million in 2021
(2020: RM14.2 million).
Spending on repairs and
maintenance of RM22.7
million in 2021
(2020: RM11.8 million).
Port capacity, which handled
397,346 TEUs (2020: 357,416
TEUs) and 30.2 million metric
tonnes (2020: 29.6 million metric
tonnes) of cargo throughput
(including containers).
Average container handling
rate of 18 boxes per hour in
2021 (2020: 21 boxes per hour).



Accommodated 7,323 vessels
at wharf and at sufferance
wharf in 2021 (2020: 7,239
vessels) representing 606
container vessels (2020: 673),
204 dry bulk vessels (2020:
208), 59 RoRo vessels (2020:
57), 849 tankers (2020:
1,022), Nil cruise ships (2020:
7) and 4,513 other types of
vessels (2020: 4,659).
A total of 30.2 million metric
tonnes (2020: 29.6 million
metric tonnes) (including
containers) of cargo
throughput handled at wharf
and sufferance wharf.
Completion of the upgrading
project of 26.9 kilometers of
railway track.

















Sustained financial viability and
strength despite the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic.
Earnings Per Share of 11.4 sen
(2020: 9.5 sen).
Net Gearing Ratio at 23.6% (2020:
24.0%).
Sustained cash flow from
operations which led to a 6.5%
(2020: 5.8%) increase in cash
balance.
Interim dividend payout of 1.5 sen
(2020: 1.0 sen) per share despite
severe economic impacts due to
the COVID-19 pandemic.
Construction of additional reefer
racks and points to accommodate
more reefer containers.
New advanced valves were
installed at Sapangar Bay Oil
Terminal.
Construction of Sapangar Bay Oil
Terminal jetty extension is ongoing
as of December 2021.

IT-supported port operations at all eight
(8) locations to be at par with global
port operations standards.
Secure online payment method for
customers, ensuring an immediate and
secure working environment.
Online access to client accounts
to ensure immediate and minimal
physical contact during the COVID-19
pandemic.
A systematic online submission
platform for shipping documentation
via email to ensure minimal physical
contact during the pandemic.
Utilisation of a virtual platform for
business meetings and command
centers through a secured line.
Compliance with regulations and
international standards.

5

Stakeholders to Whom
We Provide Value and
Who are Affected

6

Contribution
to UNSDGs
Our
Leadership



4

Outcomes

Stakeholders

Financiers

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Outputs

Equipment &
infrastructure

How We Are
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3

Customers

Financial Statements
& Others

15

16

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

1

2

Inputs

Key Activities
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT, CONSTRUCTION AND
SEAPORT PASSENGER GATEWAY

HUMAN
CAPITAL
Our employees’ talents and experience
are critical for effective and efficient
implementation of our strategic plans,
delivery of operations and services,
and steering the direction towards
maximising shareholders’ value.

SOCIAL AND
RELATIONSHIP
CAPITAL
We form strategic alliances and build
trust with our valued customers,
suppliers, governments, regulators and
industry participants. Additionally, we
develop links with local communities.

NATURAL
CAPITAL
Our port operations and equipment
rely heavily on electricity, fuel and
water.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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Total employee expenditures
of RM56.6 million (2020:
RM62.8 million) for salary,
remuneration and benefits.
A total of RM425,600 (2020:
RM431,000) was spent on
employees’ learning and
development programmes.



























Total investment for Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) in
2021 was RM178,155 (2020:
RM1.3 million), mainly to ease
the burden of communities
and villagers affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic.
Total income tax payable to
the government for 2021
of RM19.1 million (2020:
RM15.0 million).
RM16.5 million annual payment
to Sabah Ports’ Authority
(2020: RM16.3 million).
RM2.6 million interim dividend
paid to the State Government
of Sabah (2020: RM1.8 million).

Reduced fuel consumption
by 3.1% from 973.5 tonnes in
2020 to 943.5 tonnes in 2021.
Reduced electricity usage by
6.0% from 7.4 million kWh
in 2020 to 6.9 million kWh in
2021.
Water consumption increased
by 29.3% from 122,992 cubic
metres in 2020 to 158,926
cubic metres in 2021, mainly
due to employees returning to
work after relaxation of MCO.
54.8% reduction in scheduled
waste disposal volume from
59,917 kg in 2020 to 27,095
kg in 2021.








A total workforce of 1,094
employees (2020: 1,099), inclusive of
55 new hires, across the Group.
Career development opportunities
and advancements through talent
management, leadership programme
and succession planning.
Competent and skilled team that is
trained and developed in-house.
Consistently maintained a safe work
environment in terms of health,
safety and environment (HSE), with
no work-related fatalities.
Increased local worker
empowerment, vitality and skill set.
Diversity enhancement of the
workforce.

Sustaining the support of our
stakeholders.
Increased engagement with
consumers and port users
throughout the year through
various programmes.
Strengthened partnership with
industry peers to enhance the
logistic industry in Sabah.
Investment in rural community
engagements had resulted in
improvements in education and
socio-economic well-being.

5

Stakeholders to Whom
We Provide Value and
Who are Affected

Employees

Communities

Regulators







There have been no fatalities at any
of the eight (8) ports.
There have been no major oil spills or
other dangerous pollutants released
into the environment.
Zero incidents of non-compliance
with environmental regulatory
standards, as guided by SuriaGroup's
Health, Safety and Environmental
Policy as well as its Green Port Policy.
To actively promote environmental
sustainability by protecting and
improving the ecological conditions
at our ports and the surrounding
communities.

6

Contribution
to UNSDGs
Our
Leadership
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RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES
In creating long term value for our stakeholders, we acknowledge the importance of
having a robust risk management system. A systematic risk management approach
will help the Management to identify critical risks, formulate risk mitigation strategies
and plans in minimising any adverse impact on our businesses, as well as to exploit
and maximise opportunities in the market for sustainable business growth. Risk
considerations are critical in setting our business strategies and key corporate action
plans. By managing risks well, we believe that we are able to provide greater certainty
and confidence to our stakeholders.
The Group has established Board Risk Policy and Risk Management Framework that includes Enterprise Risk Management
process to guide the identification, assessment, treatment, monitoring and review of risks.
Further details of the Group’s Risk Management and Internal Control Systems can be found on pages 122 to 137. The following
are the details relating to the key risks faced by the Group and our initiatives to mitigate them.
No.

Key Risk

Risk Description

Risk Management and Internal Control

Link to Strategy

The port operations are
the core business of the
Group, the revenue from
this business segment
accounts for 85.3% of its
total revenue.

• The Group has diversified into other
business activities such as property
development. The main project
namely Jesselton Quay is expected to
generate recurring rental income for
the Group in the near future.

Sustainable business
growth.

Strategic Risk
1

High dependency on key
business.

• The Port segment is expanding its
business operations and revenue base
through its Marine Unit.
2

Viability of new and
current investment
opportunities
undertaken by the
Group.

Risk of making
unfavourable investment
decisions.

• Standard due diligence and business
viability assessment procedures
by the operating subsidiary and
the Group’s Corporate Planning
and Development Department, are
performed on any new proposals.
• Risk assessment is carried on all
new investment ventures including
assessment on related specific risks
whereas internal audit is carried
out after the implementation of the
investment ventures.

Optimising the value
of investments.
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No.

Key Risk

Risk Description

Risk Management and Internal Control

Link to Strategy

The COVID-19 pandemic
has negatively impacted
tourist arrivals at the
Jesselton Point Terminal.
The absence of local
tourists during the
Movement Control Order
(MCO) as well as the
closing of the Malaysian
borders to foreigners has
significantly reduced the
income of our operating
subsidiary.

• Periodic review of cash requirements, Strengthening
cash flow positions, projections and
current revenue
funding plans.
base and expanding
earnings base
• Operating subsidiaries are to
by considering
maintain self-funding position.
new business
opportunities.

3

Cash flow.

Our
Leadership

Financial Risk

Ageing infrastructure
and port equipment
could affect effectiveness
and efficiency of port
performance to meet
and cater for the growing
demand for port services.

• Enhancement of port infrastructure
and equipment are carried out in
phases throughout the concession
period as it involved huge investment.
During the year under review, the
construction of the second jetty for
Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal was 35.8%
completed. The new jetty is expected
to reduce the congestion at the
Terminal and attract more vessels in
the near future.

Optimising the
useful life of assets
for continuous
effectiveness and
efficiency.

5

The outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group’s business
operations have been
adversely affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

• Enhancement of the Business
Continuity Planning (BCP) by
ensuring that the plan is in place and
ready to recover and continue the
services during the pandemic.

Sustainable
business growth and
continuity.

• Establishment of Crisis Command
Centres (CCC) at Sabah Port’s level.
• Implementation of standard
operating procedures (SOP) to curb
the spread of COVID-19 which
mirrors the Government’s SOP.
• The Group has responded swiftly
to the pandemic by implementing
various measures such as work- fromhome (WFH) arrangements in order
to reduce travelling and unwarranted
contact in public places, distribution
of face masks and sanitisers to
employees, temperature screening
and regular sanitisation of the offices.

How We Are
Governed

Ageing infrastructure
and equipment.

Financial Statements
& Others

4

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year
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RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

No.
6

Key Risk

Risk Description

Risk Management and Internal Control

Link to Strategy

Cybersecurity risk.

Cybersecurity threat
arising from heavy usage
of internet and computer
network as well as
facilities for information
and communication,
internal digital solutions,
online payment and online
customer service.

• The Group’s IT Policies and
Procedures were further enhanced
and implemented during the year
under review. The IT security
segment of the Group’s IT Policies
and Procedures was updated
based on the latest developments
in cybersecurity requirements and
applicable laws.

Leveraging on
IT to improve
performance.

• Firewalls and anti-virus updates are
regularly monitored and installed on
all computer systems and networks.
• Continuous cybersecurity awareness
programmes and trainings for
employees on information security to
promote staff awareness.
People Risk
7

Talent Management &
Succession Planning.

Insufficient skills and
expertise to execute
the Group’s business
strategies and initiatives
will lead to low
productivity and failure
to achieve the Group’s
business goals and
objectives.

• Periodic review and enhancement
of key performance indicator (KPI)
for Port Managers and Equipment
Operators that is benchmarked
against industry best practices.
• Introduction of an effective
succession programme at the ports’
level to identify talents and prepare
employees for bigger responsibilities
via promotion or job rotations.
• Continuous learning and
development programmes are
carefully planned to enhance
employees’ knowledge, capabilities
and skills in critical areas.
• The Centre of Excellence (CoE) is
responsible to monitor and facilitate
employee’s continuous development
programme.

Cultivate high
performance culture.
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RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

No.

Key Risk

Risk Description

Risk Management and Internal Control

Link to Strategy

Foster integrity and
high compliance
culture to showcase
the Group as a
well-governed
and well-managed
corporate entity.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

• Implementation of SuriaGroup AntiCompliance risk is
Corruption and Bribery Policy and
an exposure to legal
Procedure (ACB P&P).
penalties, financial and
material losses, resulting
• Signing of declaration form on
from failure to act in
adherence to the Policy and
accordance with industry
Procedures by the Board members
and employees of SuriaGroup as
laws and regulations,
well as third party service providers.
internal policies or
This signifies the acknowledgement
prescribed best practices.
to comply with the requirements of
The Group is committed to
Section 17A of the MACC Act 2009
comply with all legal and
(Amendment 2018).
regulatory requirements
applicable to its activities. • Ongoing trainings on Section 17A of
the MACC Act 2009 (Amendment
2018) for all employees and service
providers serve to create awareness
on the requirements of relevant laws
and regulations which prohibit acts of
corruptions and bribery.

How We Are
Governed

Ethic and Integrity.

Financial Statements
& Others

8

Our
Leadership

Compliance Risk

22

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW
The gradual reopening of the economy, as well as the wide distribution of vaccines,
aided in getting 2021 off to a good start on the road to recovery. Unfortunately, new
variants emerged, causing infections to reoccur and forcing many periods of lockdown.
While SuriaGroup, like other businesses, encountered challenges as the pandemic
reached its second year, one constant has been our dedication to prioritise the interests
and needs of our stakeholders, which is motivated by our goals.

“Suria’s financial performance
EBITDA in 2021 of RM115.0 million
(2020: RM106.0 million) represented an
increase of 8.5% over the previous year.”
+8.5%

2021

RM115.0 Million

2020

RM106.0 Million

EBITDA is an acronym that stands for earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation.

The positive growth was boosted
by economic recovery after the
easing of containment measures, the
revitalisation of the labour market,
continued government support
and robust external demand which
encouraged growth, as did the
prolonged upcycle in global technology.
Malaysia’s private consumption grew
by 1.9% in 2021, compared to 4.3%
contraction during the previous year.
This was spurred by a general rise in
private sector expenditure due to the
loose limits on private sector spending.
Consumption of discretionary items
such as restaurants and hotels and
leisure activities rebounded. Increased
employment and pay increases were
other evidence of strengthening
labour market conditions. Additionally,
several government measures boosted
consumer spending.
Malaysia’s public consumption
growth in 2021 expanded by 1.6%
(from -4.7% in 2020) due to increased
expenditure on goods and services,
mainly by the Federal Government.
Furthermore, COVID-related spending,
such as vaccine procurement and
logistics expenses as well as modest
maintenance and repair activities,
continued to underpin government
spending.

Private investment rose by 2.6% (2020:
-11.9%), mainly due to the exportoriented sector’s increased capital
expenditure on transportation and
information technology equipment.
Public investment contracted by -11.4%
(2020: -21.3%) due to a rise in capital
expenditures by the government and
public corporations.

efficiency, and capacity in port
operations and investments in critical
businesses and port expansion projects
to capitalise on new opportunities as
well as to better serve our clients.

Gross exports increased by 15.9%
in 2021, compared to 8.9% in 2020,
indicating a broad-based rise across
goods amidst solid foreign demand.
Exports of manufactured goods grew,
led by electrical and electronics exports,
which benefited from rising demand
for semiconductors for work-at-home
equipment and medical gadgets.
Additionally, there was a high demand
for petroleum and chemical goods,
producers of the metal, machinery,
equipment, components, and palm-oilbased products. Commodity export
growth was solid, mainly owing to
increases in crude palm oil (CPO),
liquefied natural gas (LNG), and crude
petroleum exports.

PORT OPERATIONS

Gross imports expanded at a positive
rate of 26.9% to 18.5% (2020: -8.4%),
primarily due to the increasing
importance of industrial supplies,
particularly telecommunications
equipment and manufacturing
machinery, with continued growth in
manufactured exports.
Despite the challenging economic
and business environment and the
resurgence of COVID-19 cases
toward the end of 2021, the Group
used all available resources to achieve
sustainable performance in 2021, most
notably through enhanced capability,

Port activities continued to be the
primary source of income for the Group,
accounting for 85.3% of total revenue.

In 2021, the total throughput handled
by Sabah Ports was 30.2 million tonnes
compared to 29.6 million tonnes in
2020, representing a 1.7% increase
in the overall tonnage. Operations at
wharf maintained its total throughput
of 14.4 million tonnes (including
containers) in 2021. As for the
sufferance wharf, the cargo throughput
increased by 3.9% to 15.8 million tonnes
(2020: 15.2 million tonnes) contributed
mainly by operations at Sabah Oil & Gas
Terminal, Kimanis.
The primary type of cargo handled at
wharf included liquid cargo (palm oil
and petroleum), which made up 43.0%
of total load, followed by containerised
cargo at 38.0%; dry bulk (fertilisers and
palm kernel expeller) at 9.0% and other
general cargo at 10.0%.
The average container handling rate
at Sapangar Bay Container Port in
2021 was 18 boxes per hour. (2020:
21 boxes per hour). The decline was
mostly due to a rise in COVID-19 cases
at all ports and resulted in a reduction
in manpower, both of which had a
cumulative detrimental effect on the
port’s performance.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Despite the severe impacts of
COVID-19 pandemic on the global
economy, Malaysia’s gross domestic
product (GDP) registered a positive
growth of 3.1% in 2021 compared to a
contraction of 5.6% in 2020. However,
the performance in 2021 remains below
the pre-pandemic level of 4.3% in 2019.

How We Are
Governed

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our
Leadership
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ANNUAL CARGO THROUGHPUT 2005 - 2021
(MILLION METRIC TONNES)

MT Million
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Total

ANNUAL CARGO THROUGHPUT - QUARTERLY (EXCLUDING CONTAINERS)
2021 - 24.7 MILLION MT
2020 - 24.5 MILLION MT

(GROWTH RATE - 0.5%)
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Despite the moderate economic backdrop, positive growth was noted in 2021; the container volume at Sabah Ports increased
by 11.2%, with a total of 397,346 Twenty-foot equivalent units (TEUs) in 2021 as against 357,416 TEUs in 2020. Sapangar Bay
Container Port handled 71.9% of the overall TEUs and recorded an increase of 12.2% at 285,619 TEUs in 2021 compared to
254,630 TEUs in 2020. Tawau Port handled 17.3% or 68,866 TEUs, while Sandakan Port handled 10.8% or 42,861 TEUs in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ANNUAL CONTAINER THROUGHPUT
TEUs 2021 - 397,346
TEUs 2020 - 357,416

(GROWTH RATE 11.2%)
TEUs
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CONTAINER THROUGHPUT BY PORT (TEUs) - QUARTERLY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Indonesia and Malaysia generate over 85.0% of the world's palm oil. The lower-than-expected supply of other edible oils,
particularly sunflower and rapeseed oils, triggered a dramatic increase in vegetable oil prices, ultimately impacting CPO prices.
Malaysia's CPO production decreased by 5.3% in 2021 to 18,116,354 tonnes, down from 19,140,613 million tonnes in 2020.
Sabah is Malaysia's largest producer of palm goods, accounting for 24.1% of total production in 2021. On the other hand,
Sabah's CPO output fell by 6.2% to 4,361,537 million tonnes in 2021, down from 4,647,375 million tonnes in 2020. CPO output
decreased mainly due to COVID-19 control measures that temporarily restricted foreign labour intake, hence lowering CPO
output. CPO prices have increased by an average of 64.1% to RM4,407.00 per tonne, up from RM2,685.50 in 2020. The cost and
production volume affected the total tonnage registered, as palm oil was a significant commodity handled at the ports.
In 2021, cargo throughput for palm oil shipped out through Sabah Ports dropped from 4,197,437 metric tonnes in 2020 to
3,536,867 metric tonnes in 2021, representing a decline of about -16%. Conversely, the throughput of bulk oil, which consisted
of petroleum products and accounted for a substantial volume of the total cargo handled at Sabah Ports, registered a marginal
increase of 6% from 1,612,944 metric tonnes in 2020 to 1,705,958 metric tonnes in 2021. The bulk oil handled through the
pipelines at the ports is for inward domestic consumption.
Transshipment and barter trade activities between Sabah and its neighbouring countries are essential due to the proximity of the
cities in facilitating the shipment of consumption goods. The strategic location of Sabah Ports makes it ideal for feeder vessels to
carry cargo meant for smaller ports around the northern coast of Kalimantan, Indonesia and Southern Philippines. The ban on
transshipment and barter trade activities that took effect in March 2016 had affected the cargo volume and revenue of the East
Coast ports, especially Sandakan Port, Tawau Port and Kudat Port.

CARGO THROUGHPUT BY PORTS IN 2021
(MILLION METRIC TONNES)

MT Million
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In 2021, 7,323 vessels called at Sabah Ports compared to 7,239 vessels in 2020. 3,680 vessels berthed at Sabah Ports wharves
which accounted for 50.3% of the total vessels, while 49.7% or 3,643 vessels berthed at sufferance wharves. For vessels berthing
at Sabah Ports wharves, Sandakan Port handled the most vessels at 26.0% (956 vessels), followed by Kota Kinabalu Port 22.8%
(840 vessels), Tawau Port 16.4% (602 vessels), Sapangar Bay Container Port 12.7% (466 vessels), and other ports 22.1% (816
vessels).
2021

2020

1,910

26.1%

2,165

29.9%

Kota Kinabalu Port

1,327

18.1%

1,323

18.3%

Tawau Port

1,765

24.1%

1,445

20.0%

Lahad Datu Port

675

9.2%

725

10.0%

Sapangar Bay Container Port

466

6.4%

452

6.2%

Other ports

1,180

16.1%

1,129

15.6%

Total

7,323

100.0%

7,239

100.0%
Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Sandakan Port

NUMBER OF VESSELS INCLUDING CRUISE VESSELS
2,500
2,165
2,000
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Number of Vessels (Including Cruise Vessels)
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Others
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725

2021

There was no cruise ship arrival in Kota Kinabalu and Sandakan in 2021. In 2020, there were 19,785 cruise passengers arrived at
Kota Kinabalu Port and Sandakan Port.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HIGHLIGHTS OF STRATEGIC
TARGETS AND OUTCOMES IN
2021

•

Port Development Projects
Undertaken During 2021
•

•

Sapangar Bay Container
Port (SBCP) Expansion – The
construction contract for the
expansion of SBCP worth
RM899.8 million involves
dredging and land reclamation
works, environment protection and
enhancement, traffic management
control, investigation work,
demolition and site clearance,
dredging and reclamation works,
seawall construction, quay deck,
container yard, building works,
external works and mechanical
and electrical services. The
groundworks for the project had
commenced in September 2021,
and completion is expected by
February 2025.
Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal
(SBOT) - The construction of a
new oil jetty at SBOT commenced
in October 2020. As of December
2021, the construction progress
of the jetty extension was
registered at 35.8%. Completion
of the jetty extension is expected
in the fourth quarter of 2022.
Upon completion, SBOT will be
able to handle two (2) vessels at
any one time, and it will help to
ease congestion and reduce vessel
waiting time.

Sapangar Bay Conventional
Cargo Terminal (SBCCT) – As
of December 2021, the second
stage of design for SBCCT has
approached the final step. The
plan for SBCCT has been revised
to incorporate infrastructure for
the operational needs to provide
port and related services to the
Oil and Gas sector. This SBCCT
project is expected to take three
years to complete.

•

For improvement and service
efficiency, SCHB Engineering has
launched an e-ticketing system for
Jesselton Point. By implementing
the e-ticketing system, ticketing
operations in Jesselton Point will
be centralised at one platform.
This will offer standardised
e-ticketing and fixed departure
schedule to the nearby islands.

Property and Commercial
Developments

Railway Project
Jesselton Quay
•

•

The 26.9 km railway line
upgrading project, which connects
Halogilat station to Tenom station,
reached 99.8% completion as of
31 December 2021.

•

The Certificate of Practical
Completion (CPC) from the
Ministry of Transport Malaysia
is expected in the first quarter of
2022 before handing over to the
Sabah State Railway Department
for operations.

Despite various phases of MCO
during the pandemic period
that caused delays in physical
works, the first phase of JQC has
reached 99.5% completion as
of 31 December 2021 and was
fully completed with a certificate
of occupancy obtained on 19
January 2022.

Ferry Terminal at Jesselton Point
•

The COVID-19 pandemic has
highly impacted the tourism
sector and thus affected ferry
terminal operations at Jesselton
Point. Even though the processes
were slowed down, SCHB
Engineering offered rental
discounts of between 20% to 70%
to the tenants and tour operators
at Jesselton Point on a goodwill
basis to ease their burden during
the difficult times.

•

In preparing to welcome tourists
when the border reopens, the
subsidiary has refurbished
the floating restaurant and
transformed the futsal court
into event halls for an incoming
business opportunity.

Meanwhile, the Phase 2 of JQC
and Parcel A of Jesselton Quay
which will be developed on the
remaining parcel of land, are being
re-planned and targeted to be
launched before the end of 2022.

One Jesselton Waterfront
•

•

The Jesselton Quay Central (JQC),
named as Parcel B, sits on the
4-acre land of the overall 16.25acre Jesselton Quay development.
The first phase of JQC had
commenced construction in the
first quarter of 2017.

The Joint Venture Agreement
(JVA) with Gabungan AQRS
Berhad to commercially develop
6.28-acre Kota Kinabalu
Port land, has been mutually
terminated on 30 September
2021 due to uncertain market
conditions impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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As the global supply chain was
disrupted during the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group’s revenue, which is
largely contributed by its core business
in port operations, was gradually
recovering from the aftermath of the
pandemic by the increase in the volume
of cargo throughput as well as the
increased demand on containers.

The Group registered an Allowance for
expected credit loss on trade receivable
of RM9.6 million for the delay in the
delivery of Suria’s entitlement pursuant
to the joint venture between Suria and
SBC for the development of Jesselton

This was in line with the Group’s higher
revenue realised as well as Reversal of
impairment losses on concession assets
of RM11.2 million in 2021.
Notwithstanding the impact of expected
credit loss, the Group’s Earnings
Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation (EBITDA) remained
resilient at RM115.0 million (2020:
RM106.0 million).

Financial Results

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

% of
Change

Revenue

251,286

227,999

10.2

Cost of Sales

(172,856)

(155,385)

11.2

Gross Profit

78,430

72,614

8.0

Other Income

34,213

22,334

53.2

Other Operating Expenses

(46,317)

(38,505)

20.3

(7,739)

(8,476)

(8.7)

Finance Costs

Our
Leadership

Quay Central, which was adversely
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Despite the Allowance for expected
credit loss, the Group reported a higher
Profit After Tax (PAT) of RM39.5 million
as compared to PAT of RM32.9 million
in 2020.

Profit Before Tax

58,587

47,967

22.1

Income Tax Expense

(19,063)

(15,021)

26.9

Profit After Tax

39,524

32,946

20.0

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The year 2021 proved to be an
extraordinary year that saw the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
global economy and the global supply
chain due to the implementation of
lockdowns in various parts of the
world at different points in time as
precautionary measures to curb
the spread on COVID-19 infections
domestically and worldwide.

Despite these challenges, the
Group delivered a commendable
performance for its financial year
ended 31 December 2021 through
the implementation of risk mitigation
efforts to strengthen its resiliency
when responding to adverse market
and economic conditions. In weathering
the challenges, the Group remains
focused on operational efficiencies,
higher productivity and financial
discipline in costs compression. These
have positively cushioned the adverse
macroeconomic impact on the Group’s
financials for 2021.

How We Are
Governed

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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REVENUE
The Group’s total revenue for 2021 was recorded at RM251.3 million, increasing by RM23.3 million or 10.2% from RM228.0
million year-on-year. The increase in total revenue for 2021 was mainly attributable to higher revenue from operations
of the Group’s core business in port operations. Besides, there was also higher revenue from construction services for
concession infrastructure in 2021 at RM35.0 million as compared to RM14.2 million in 2020. This revenue was derived from
capital expenditure spending for the port’s infrastructure and facilities, pursuant to the accounting standards for concession
arrangements, IC Interpretation 12: Service Concession Arrangements.

Revenue

2021
RM’000

%

2020
RM’000

%

% of
Change

Port operations

214,459

85.3

205,993

90.4

4.1

Bunkering, shipping fees, scheduled waste disposal
services and others

479

0.2

309

0.1

55.0

Agency and distributor fees

916

0.4

735

0.3

24.6

36

<1.0

5,926

2.6

(99.4)

436

0.2

874

0.4

(50.1)

216,326

86.1

213,837

93.8

1.2

34,960

13.9

14,162

6.2

>100.0

251,286

100.0

227,999

100.0

10.2

Contract revenue from engineering contract
Other operations
Operational Revenue
Revenue from construction services for concession
infrastructure
Total Revenue
Port Operations

Revenue from port operations contributed RM214.5 million or 85.3% to the total of the Group’s revenue in 2021 and was
higher by RM8.5 million or 4.1% compared to that registered in 2020 of RM206.0 million. This was mainly due to the recovery of
business activities post the COVID-19 pandemic.
The overall cargo throughput (excluding containers) handled at all ports had increased marginally by 0.8% to 24.7 million tonnes
from 24.5 million tonnes in 2020. This was mainly attributed to higher handling of liquid bulk (petroleum products and palm oil),
general cargo, fertiliser, palm kernel expeller (PKE) and wood products throughput at wharves, sufferance wharves and private
jetties. The total container volume had increased by 11.2% to 397,346 TEUs from 357,416 TEUs in 2020.
YTD
31.12.2021

YTD
31.12.2020

Inc / (Dec)
% of Change

- At Wharf (excluding containers)

8,881

9,383

(502)

-5.4%

- At Anchor / Sufference wharves

15,779

15,156

623

4.1%

24,660

24,539

121

0.5%

397,346

357,416

39,930

11.2%

Total Tonnage (MT’000)

Total TEUs

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Logistics and Bunkering Services
Meanwhile, a higher gross profit of
RM83.4 million was recorded for this
port operations segment and related
goods and services as against RM73.4
million in 2020 due to higher operating
revenue as this segment was recovering
from the impact of COVID-19
pandemic. Its net profit after tax stood
at RM43.6 million compared to RM28.9
million registered in the previous year.
Higher net profit recorded in 2021 was
mainly attributable to higher revenue
earned from operations and the reversal
of impairment loss on concession assets.
Construction Services for Concession
Infrastructure
In 2021, port operations posted
revenue from construction services
for concession infrastructure of
RM35.0 million (2020: RM14.2
million), accounted for in accordance
with IC Interpretation 12: Service
Concession Arrangements. Sabah
Ports as a concession holder is obliged
to construct and upgrade the port’s
infrastructure and facilities during
the concession period. Pursuant to
IC Interpretation 12, revenue from
construction services for concession
infrastructure equals the fair value of
port-related infrastructure and facilities
under construction based on the stage
of completion or purchase during the
year. The fair value is calculated as the
estimated total construction cost or
purchase consideration with no profit

Revenue for this segment comprised
agency fees from sales of fuel, fees
from the provision of scheduled waste
disposal services for vessels calling at
our ports, ancillary services, shipping
agency as well as transportation and
handling, such as heavy lifting, storage
and transportation.
Revenue from this segment in 2021
of RM0.5 million was higher by RM0.2
million compared to RM0.3 million
reported in 2020. This was due to
higher sales volume for bunkering fees,
scheduled waste management, shipping
agency fees and ancillary services.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

In 2021, capital expenditure incurred by
Sabah Ports was for certain upgrading
works of port infrastructures at various
ports and the construction of the jetty
extension for Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal
which commenced in the fourth quarter
of 2020.

Our
Leadership

margin as all the construction works or
purchases are subcontracted out.

Contract and Engineering & Ferry
Terminal Operations
Revenue for this segment had
declined to RM36,000 in 2021 from
RM5.9 million in 2020. Revenue
was mainly derived from the ferry
and international cruise terminals
as the railway construction project
is 99.8% completed during the year
under review. The decline in revenue
was mainly attributed to the closure
of international borders due to
the COVID-19 pandemic as well
as provision made for Liquidated
Ascertained Damages (LAD) amounting
to RM2.5 million resulted from the
delay in completion of the railway
project.

How We Are
Governed

Gradual and continuous improvements
can be seen in conventional cargo and
container throughput going through our
ports in 2021. Despite the uncertainties
in the current economic condition which
had been significantly impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic, gradual economic
recovery was taking shape globally
in 2021 and we are positive that our
port operation activities will remain
sustainable amid these challenges.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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COST OF SALES
Higher cost of sales by RM17.5 million or 11.2% was mainly due to construction services cost for concession infrastructure,
which increased by RM20.8 million or >100% due to higher capital expenditure spent on construction and upgrading of ports’
infrastructure and facilities as explained under the Ports’ Operations segment. This had been accounted for in accordance with IC
Interpretation 12: Service Concession Arrangements.
For the purpose of measuring our operational performance, it is appropriate to exclude revenue from construction services for
concession infrastructure and construction services cost for concession infrastructure.

Cost of Sales

2021
RM’000

%

2020
RM’000

%

% of
Change

Port operating expenses

131,523

76.1

132,482

85.3

(0.7)

15

<1.0

39

<1.0

(61.5)

6,358

3.7

8,702

5.6

(26.9)

137,896

79.8

141,223

90.9

(2.4)

34,960

20.2

14,162

9.1

>100.0

172,856

100.0

155,385

100.0

11.2

Logistic and bunkering services costs
Contract and engineering and ferry
terminal operation costs
Operational Costs
Construction services cost for
concession infrastructure
Total Cost of Sales

CASH FLOWS
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by RM5.8 million (8.8%) to RM59.9 million from RM65.7 million in 2020, mainly due to
higher net cash flows used in investing activities which had increased by RM32.3 million (>100%). This was largely attributable to
higher capital expenditure incurred for the ports’ expansion initiatives.

Cash Flows

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

% of
Change

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

103,042

96,349

6.9

Net cash flows from operating activities

74,964

56,679

32.3

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(45,691)

(13,395)

>100.0

Net cash flows used in financing activities

(35,027)

(23,993)

46.0

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(5,754)

19,291

(>100.0)

Opening cash and cash equivalents
(Less pledged deposits and deposits more than 3 months)

65,653

46,362

41.6

Closing cash and cash equivalents
(Less pledged deposits and deposits more than 3 months)

59,899

65,653

(8.8)
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TOTAL ASSETS
The Group’s total assets increased by RM24.3 million or 1.8% to RM1.400 billion as at 31 December 2021 from RM1.376 billion
as at 31 December 2020 mainly attributable to the increase in investment properties, investment securities and tax recoverable.

Total liabilities decreased by RM2.1 million or <1% to RM267.1 million as at 31 December 2021 from RM269.2 as of 31
December 2020 mainly due to the decrease in borrowings and concession liabilities.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Our
Leadership

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity increased by RM26.4 million or 2.4% in 2021 due to profit after tax of RM39.5 million which was offset by
the dividend payment to shareholders of RM13.1 million. Return on average equity of 3.5% was slightly higher than 3.0% that was
reported in 2020.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors will be recommending a final tax-exempt dividend of 2.5 sen per ordinary share at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting for shareholders’ approval. If approved, this will bring the total dividend payment in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 to RM13.8 million, which is equivalent to 4.0 sen per ordinary share.
The total dividend to our shareholders represents 35.0% of the Group’s profit after tax for the year 2021 which is equivalent to
the dividend policy of up to 35.0% pay-out ratio.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, Suria has declared an interim tax-exempt dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share
amounting to RM5.2 million, which was paid on 20 December 2021.

SUMMARY OF THE GROUP’S STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS (RM’000)
900,000
How We Are
Governed

800,000
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000

Property, plant and
equipment and
investment property

Concession assets

Receivables,
deposits and
prepayments

Cash and cash
equivalent

Deferred tax assets
and tax recoverable

Other assets

2021

140,692

802,622

216,971

158,727

32,587

48,212

2020

128,751

802,920

228,076

136,892

23,942

54,940
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TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (RM’000)
900,000
800,000
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000
Share capital

Reserves

Payables, accruals
and provisions

Loan and
borrowings

Taxation and
deferred tax
liabilities

Concession
liabilities

2021

358,825

773,915

50,215

10,438

94,720

111,710

2020

358,825

747,532

47,666

18,827

87,244

115,439

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS
IN 2022
Despite the worsening COVID-19
outbreak during the year, the global
growth momentum improved in 2021
as compared to the previous year
The World Bank’s estimated global
economic growth at 5.5% for 2021
after global gross domestic product
(GDP) contracted 3.4% in 2020.
Malaysia’s GDP climbed by 3.1% in
2021, recovering from the drop of 5.6%
in the previous year. The economic
prediction for 2022 is expected to be
a combination of positive and negative
factors. Bank Negara Malaysia had
reduced its economic growth forecast
for 2022 to between 5.3% and 6.3%
on 30 March 2022, down from its
previous forecast of between 5.5% and
6.5% when borders and businesses
reopened following the relaxation of
movement restrictions. Even in the
face of supply chain delays and a surge
in global oil prices due to the crisis
in Ukraine, Malaysia’s exports are
expected to climb by 10.9% this year,

propelled by rising global demand and
higher commodity prices. The economic
impact of the Ukraine conflict has been
mitigated to a significant extent by the
country’s ongoing economic prosperity.
Despite this, we at the Group are
optimistic that the global economy will
gradually recover in 2022 and in the
years to follow, allowing the Group to
continue to create sustainable value for
its shareholders and other stakeholders.
Despite the harsh climate in 2022,
we are confident in our capacity to
continue to produce sustainable returns
to our shareholders and, in doing so,
preserve our commitment to our vision,
mission and business goals.
The Group will continue to focus
on the sustainability of business
operations and delivering efficient port
services by concentrating its efforts
on port development projects and new
business ventures, some of which will
be via strategic alliances with existing
industry leaders. Due to the projects’
long gestational period, most of these

initiatives are not projected to provide
immediate returns. However, the values
are expected to be realised in the long
run, thereby contributing positively to
the State’s economic well-being. To this
end, the Group will continue to explore
new business opportunities in several
sectors such as logistics, maritime
services, and other port-related
services.
Malaysia closed its borders on 18 March
2020, two (2) years ago, when the virus
spread fast throughout the globe. The
closure has hurt the State’s tourist
industry, resulting in a considerable
decrease in revenue from the Jesselton
Point Ferry Terminal activities.
Businesses are anticipated to resume
regular operations as of 1 April 2022,
when Malaysia will re-open its border
to foreign tourists, enabling those who
have received a complete COVID-19
vaccination to enter the country
without being subjected to quarantine.
The Group’s commitment is to stand
ready to assist the State Government of
Sabah in preparing to open our borders

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLANNED PORT DEVELOPMENT
AND EXPANSION PROJECTS
SAPANGAR BAY CONTAINER
PORT (SBCP) EXPANSION
The expansion of SBCP is funded
by the Federal Government
and implemented by the Sabah
Economic Development and
Investment Authority (SEDIA).
The project had been awarded
to WCT-China Communications
Construction Company (WCTCCCC JV) in July 2021. Work has
commenced in September 2021
and the scheduled completion is
in February 2025. Sabah Ports
shall invest in port equipment to
facilitate the increase in the annual
handling capacity from the current
500,000 TEUs to 1.25 million TEUs.
The development will transform
SBCP to become the regional hub
for the BIMP-EAGA and the larger
ASEAN regions aimed at creating
more opportunities for direct
connectivity with the international
market. With more direct calls by
the main line operators (MLOs), the
freight cost will be reduced due to
economies of scale, and this will
eventually lower the cost of doing
business as well as the cost of living.
JETTY EXTENSION AT
SAPANGAR BAY OIL TERMINAL
(SBOT)
Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal is the
only oil terminal serving the West
Coast of Sabah and handles an
average volume of 1.2 million
metric tonnes of bulk oil annually.
The existing jetty can berth vessels
up to 30,000 deadweight tonnage

The construction of the new jetty
commenced in December 2020 and
work schedule has been delayed by
the impact of COVID-19. The new
jetty is expected to be completed
by the end of 2022. The new twinberth jetty can berth vessels up to
60,000 DWT and will be able to
cater for the increasing throughput,
as well as provide windows for the
major maintenance of the existing
jetty which has been in operation
since 1985.
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
OF SAPANGAR BAY
CONVENTIONAL CARGO
TERMINAL (SBCCT)
Kota Kinabalu Port handles an
average of 1.0 million metric tonnes
of general cargo annually. In view
of the mixed development taking
shape in the vicinity of the Port,
the general cargo operation will
be relocated to Sapangar Bay to
make way for the development of
an international cruise terminal
and other commercial realties.
The development of SBCCT is
currently at the design stage and
implementation is expected by the
end of 2022.
SAPANGAR BAY OIL STORAGE
AND DISTRIBUTION DEPOT
A Memorandum of Understanding
for the development of the Sabah
Maju Jaya Renewable Energy
Industrial Complex in Sapangar
Bay was signed on 14 February
2022, by the Group and Vandelay
Ventures Sdn Bhd. Sabah Ports will
offer the required port facilities
to support the palm-oil-related
downstream operations and the
import and export of raw materials

and finished products. Sabah
Ports currently possesses nine (9)
storage tanks with a combined
tank capacity of 30,000 metric
tonnes. It is anticipated that this
new venture would increase the
amount of liquid bulk handled at
Sabah Ports. The Group views that
creating the Complex in Sabah
will positively impact the State’s
social and economic well-being and
prosperity.
REDEVELOPMENT OF TAWAU
JETTY
Sabah Ports is in the planning
phases of the redevelopment of
Tawau Jetty (formerly known as
the Old Customs Immigration and
Quarantine Complex), which caters
to the ferry services between the
mainland and Pulau Sebatik. The
proposed redevelopment would
involve reconstruction of the
existing building to provide proper
facilities for cargo and passenger
transit with enhanced safety and
security. The new building will
also house the ticketing counters,
waiting area as well as commercial
outlets. The project is scheduled to
be completed in the first quarter of
2023.
MARINE AND OTHER
ANCILLARY SERVICES
Sabah Ports’ Marine Unit was
successfully established in 2021
with function to oversee all marine
related services in Sabah Ports.
The very first task of the Marine
Unit is to operate Vessel Traffic
Monitoring & Information System
(VTMIS) through collaboration
with the Sabah Ports and Harbour
Department (JPDS) and the Sabah
Ports Authority (SPA).

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

1.

(DWT) and is reaching maximum
handling capacity.

How We Are
Governed

and promote the State’s tourism to both
local and international visitors at all
times.

Our
Leadership
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The VTMIS system provides real
time navigational surveillance
and other information. Since
March 2021, Sabah Ports’ Marine
Controllers are stationed at the
control room with JPDS officers for
round the clock surveillance and
collection of pertinent information
for Sabah Ports. This enhances
the co-ordination and monitoring
of vessels around the waters
off Kota Kinabalu and Sapangar
Bay. Deployment of the Marine
Controllers will be extended to
Sandakan Port in 2022.
Following the establishment of the
Marine Unit, all ancillary services
handled by the subsidiary, SP
Marine are now put under the
one-stop centre for the provision of
marine and ancillary services better
coordination and marketing.
2.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT ON
KOTA KINABALU PORT LAND
JESSELTON QUAY
The Jesselton Quay is a mixed
development project comprising
a shopping and entertainment
centre, hotel and offices located
within the vicinity of the Sabah
International Convention Centre
(SICC) and Kota Kinabalu Port.
In partnership with SBC, Suria
has completed the first phase of
Jesselton Quay Central (JQC)
Parcel B, which encompasses
4-acre of the overall 16.25-acre

Jesselton Quay development. On
19 January 2022, a certificate
of occupancy for the first phase
of JQC was obtained. The first
phase of JQC comprises two (2)
towers of commercial units known
as CityPads, 37 blocks of Gallery
Shoppes and more than 1,000
parking bays. The Phase 2 of JQC
is in the process of being planned
whereby SBC will continue to build
the remaining floors of the 8-storey
i-Tower structure and to transform
it into a 24-storey hotel tower in
the future. Due to unfavorable
market condition during the
pandemic in 2020 and 2021, the
i-Tower structure was built up to
8-storey only as interconnected
office building which has reached
99.5% completion as of 31
December 2021.
A podium that will feature
a recreation club known as
BeachClub will also be built and
incorporated as part of Phase 2 of
JQC.
The other components of JQC
(Parcel A) is targeted to be
launched before the end of 2022.
ONE JESSELTON WATERFRONT
Adjacent to the Jesselton Quay and
measuring approximately seven (7)
acres, the land originally planned
for One Jesselton Waterfront
project, is now available for
developing into mixed commercial
development vide strategic

partnership. This is following Suria
and Gabungan AQRS Berhad’s
mutual agreement to terminate
their joint venture arrangement
for the One Jesselton Waterfront
project on 30 September 2021.
3.

COMPLETION STAGE OF
RAILWAY PROJECT
The Tenom railway upgrading
project was 99.8% completed
by the end of 2021, with some
finishing touches needed. The
project was fully completed in
January 2022. The Federal Ministry
of Transport expects to issue the
Certificate of Practical Completion
(CPC) in early 2022, just for the
Sabah State Railway Department to
take control of the line.
The delay in the project’s
completion was due to the
implementation of MCO 2.0 and
MCO 3.0 in 2021. Additionally,
during the rainy season, the
riverbanks burst, and landslides
occurred, disturbing the overall
completion schedule.
Owing to its social responsibility,
the Group decided to proceed with
the railway rehabilitation project
despite the lack of profit margins.
The project’s beneficiaries include
residents in Halogilat, Rayoh, Pangi,
Tenom and Beaufort as well as the
surrounding communities. The
project will improve the railway
traveling speed from 30km/h to
40km/h.
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GROUP’S PERFORMANCE 5-YEAR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
TOTAL REVENUE AND REVENUE BREAKDOWN
RM Million

400.7

400.0
332.7
275.5
263.9
232.5

251.3

228.0

250.5

200.0
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300.0

216.3

213.8
136.8

25.0
-

2017
Total Revenue

2018

2019

Revenue from operations

35.0

14.2
2020

2021

Revenue from construction services for concession infrastructure

SUMMARISED GROUP PERFORMANCE

RM Million
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100.0

100.2

120.0
100.0

95.7

94.2

83.1
80.0
60.0

78.4

72.6
75.1

67.7

72.7
58.6

40.0

48.0

20.0
2017

2018

2019

Gross Profit

2020

2021

1,375.5

1,399.8

Profit Before Tax
How We Are
Governed

-

SUMMARISED GROUP BALANCE SHEET
RM Million
1,600.0

1,417.1

1,346.2
1,200.0

1,376.5
338.6

291.0

269.2

267.1

1,078.5

1,085.5

1,106.3

1,132.7

293.3

1,052.9
400.0

-

2017

2018
Total Shareholders’ Equity

2019
Total Liabilities

2020
Total Assets

2021
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& Others
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GROUP’S PERFORMANCE 5-YEAR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN)

NET DIVIDEND PER SHARE (SEN)

11.4 sen

4.0 sen
4.0

11.4
3.3
9.5
14.1

6.0

5.0
15.1
15.3
6.0

NET ASSETS PER SHARE (SEN)

MARKET PRICE PER SHARE (SEN)

327.5 sen

119.0 sen
119.0

327.5

108.0
304.5

319.9

185.0

127.0
311.9

313.9

165.0

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021
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GROUP’S PERFORMANCE 5-YEAR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
5-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Year Ended 31 December

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

- Revenue from operations

232.5

263.9

250.5

213.8

216.3

- Revenue from construction services for
concession infrastructure

100.2

136.8

25.0

14.2

35.0

332.7

400.7

275.5

228.0

251.3

Gross profit

94.2

95.7

83.1

72.6

78.4

Profit before tax

67.7

75.1

72.7

48.0

58.6

Profit net of tax

48.9

52.9

52.2

32.9

39.5

Cash and bank balances

71.4

56.3

70.9

75.0

79.9

Property, plant and equipment

60.7

60.7

60.0

58.6

56.7

-

-

-

70.2

84.0

780.4

860.1

836.7

802.9

802.6

Total assets

1,346.2

1,417.1

1,376.5

1,375.5

1,399.8

Shareholders' equity

1,052.9

1,078.5

1,085.5

1,106.3

1,132.7

2.2

1.2

2.8

3.5

4.9

19.8

16.2

17.7

17.5

17.8

Pre-tax return on average equity (%)

6.5

7.1

6.8

4.3

5.2

Return on average equity (%)

4.7

5.0

4.9

3.0

3.5

14.1

15.3

15.1

9.5

11.4

6.0

6.0

5.0

3.3

4.0

Net assets per share (sen)

304.5

311.9

313.9

319.9

327.5

Market price per share (sen)

185.0

165.0

127.0

108.0

119.0

Results (RM Million)

Selected Balance Sheet Items (RM Million)

Investment properties
Concession assets

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Total Revenue

Our
Leadership

Revenue

Current ratio (times)
Long term debt to equity (%)

How We Are
Governed

Financial Ratios

Earnings per share (sen)
Net dividend per share (sen)

Financial Statements
& Others
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GROUP CORPORATE STRUCTURE

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD
198301001662 (96895-W)

100%

SABAH PORTS SDN BHD
200201015410 (583073-H)

100%

SP MARINE SERVICES SDN BHD
200601002538 (722286-V)

100%

S.P. SATRIA SDN BHD
200301020074 (622494-V)

100%

SCHB ENGINEERING SERVICES SDN BHD
200401007138 (645642-W)

100%

BORNEO WATERWAYS EXPLORER SDN BHD
201401021400 (1097486-T)

35%
SURIA RE SDN BHD
201601037021 (1207962-V)

60%

100%

SURIA BUMIRIA SDN BHD
200301031056 (633477-V)

Investment Holding &
Property Development

Port Operations

Logistics &
Bunkering Services

Distribution of Port Cargo
Handling Equipment &
Related Spare Parts

Construction Contractor,
Ferry Terminal Operator,
Project Management &
Technical Support Services

Dormant Company

Ferry Terminal Operator
Water Taxi Operation
Renewable Energy
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AHMAD RIZAL BIN DAHLI
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

MICHAEL TONG YIN SHIEW, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

NORLIJA @ NORLIJAH BINTI DANIN
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

AUDITORS

HIKMAH RAHMANIYAH AHMAD
KHATIB (MIA18843)

ERNST & YOUNG PLT

INVESTOR RELATIONS

th

Suite 1-10-W1, 10 Floor
CPS Tower, Centre Point Sabah
No. 1, Jalan Centre Point
88000 Kota Kinabalu
Sabah, Malaysia
Tel
: +6 088-532 000
Fax : +6 088-238 905

DATIN DR. MARIAM MAHMUN
Tel
: +6 088-257 788 Ext 212
Fax : +6 088-231 032
Email : mariam@suriaplc.com.my
info@suriaplc.com.my

REGISTERED OFFICE
1st & 2nd Floor
Menara Jubili
No. 53, Jalan Gaya
88000 Kota Kinabalu
Sabah, Malaysia
Tel
: +6 088-257 788
Fax : +6 088-260 355 /
+6 088-231 032
Email : gcs@suriaplc.com.my

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
AmBank (M) Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia
Berhad
HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
Sabah Development Bank Berhad
RHB Bank Berhad

SHARE REGISTRAR
TRICOR INVESTOR & ISSUING
HOUSE SERVICES SDN BHD
197101000970 (11324-H)
Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A
Vertical Business Suite
Avenue 3, Bangsar South
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Tel
: +6 03-2783 9299
Fax : +6 03-2783 9222
Email : is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com

BURSA MALAYSIA SECURITIES
BERHAD
- Main Market

QUOTATION DATA
Reuters Code SURIA.KL
Bloomberg Code SURIA MK
Bernama Code SURIA
BMSB Code 6521

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

COMPANY SECRETARY

Tel
: +6 088-257 788 Ext 207
Fax : +6 088-260 355
Email : hikmah@suriaplc.com.my

Our
Leadership

DATUK SERI PANGLIMA DR. MD
SALLEH BIN TUN SAID KERUAK, J.P.
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

WEBSITE
www.suriagroup.com.my

How We Are
Governed

DATUK NG KIAT MIN
Group Managing Director,
Non-Independent & Executive

KEE MUSTAFA
Independent & Non-Executive

Financial Statements
& Others

DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN DATUK
YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO
Chairman, Independent &
Non-Executive
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
None of the Directors
had any conflict of
interest with the
Company, family
relationship with any
Director and/or Major
Shareholder, or have
been convicted for
offences (other than
traffic offences) within
the past five (5) years or
have been imposed with
any public sanction or
penalty by the relevant
regulatory bodies during
the financial year.

DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN DATUK
YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO

Chairman, Independent &
Non-Executive

DATUK NG KIAT MIN

KEE MUSTAFA

Group Managing Director,
Non-Independent & Executive

Independent &
Non-Executive

GENDER DIVERSITY

71.4%
28.6%
AGE

TENURE

50 - 59 years

42.9%

60 years & above

57.1%

14.3%
Less than
1 year – 1

57.1%
1-3 years – 4

28.6%
More than
5 years – 2

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MICHAEL TONG YIN SHIEW,
J.P.

DATUK SERI PANGLIMA
DR. MD SALLEH BIN
TUN SAID
KERUAK,
J.P.

MEMBERSHIP IN
BOARD COMMITTEE

NAC
Nomination/Appointment
Committee

RC
Remuneration Committee

Our
Leadership
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AC
Audit Committee
Independent &
Non-Executive

NORLIJA @ NORLIJAH
BINTI DANIN

Non-Independent &
Non-Executive

Non-Independent &
Non-Executive

How We Are
Governed

AHMAD RIZAL
BIN DAHLI

RMGC
Risk Management &
Governance Committee

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Non-Independent &
Non-Executive

1|

14.2%

Non-Independent &
Executive Director

3|

42.9%

Non-Independent &
Non-Executive Directors

3|

42.9%

Independent &
Non-Executive Directors

Financial Statements
& Others

BOARD BALANCE & COMPOSITION
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BOARD COMMITTEES

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

NOMINATION/
APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE
Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Hikmah Rahmaniyah Ahmad Khatib
(MIA18843)
Head, Group Company Secretary

Hikmah Rahmaniyah Ahmad Khatib
(MIA18843)
Head, Group Company Secretary

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

AUDIT
COMMITTEE
Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

Kee Mustafa
Independent & Non-Executive

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego
Independent & Non-Executive

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin
Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Independent & Non-Executive

Hikmah Rahmaniyah Ahmad Khatib
(MIA18843)
Head, Group Company Secretary

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli
Non-Independent & Non-Executive
Hikmah Rahmaniyah Ahmad Khatib
(MIA18843)
Head, Group Company Secretary

Chairman

Committee Member

Secretary

DATUK NG KIAT MIN

Chairman
Independent & Non-Executive

Group Managing Director
Non-Independent & Executive

Date of Appointment:
27 November 2020

Date of Appointment:
1 April 2016

59

64

Number of Board Meetings Attended: 8/8

Number of Board Meetings Attended: 8/8

Qualifications:
• Master of Business Administration (MBA) in Shipping &
Logistics, Middlesex University, London
• Bachelor of Art (Hons.) in Economics, York University,
Canada
• Diploma in Accountancy, Toronto School of Business,
Canada

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) in Accounting and Finance,
University of Lancaster, United Kingdom
• Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom (FCCA)
• Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA)
• Chartered Fellow (FCILT) of the Chartered Institute of
Logistics & Transport (CILT)

Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Datuk Hj. Faisyal is also the Chairman of subsidiary companies,
namely SCHB Engineering and Sabah Ports effective
4 December 2020 and 15 December 2020 respectively.
He brings along over 25 years of experience as a board
member and chairman in public listed companies and
private limited companies. He has held directorships
in various organisations such as KUB Malaysia Berhad,
Yayasan Bumiputra Sabah Berhad, Perkasa Trading Sdn Bhd,
Associated Concrete Products (Sabah) Sdn Bhd and as a Public
Interest Director in Bursa Malaysia Berhad. During his tenure
in Bursa Malaysia Berhad from 2004 until 2010, he was the
Chairman of the Listing Committee, Market Participation
and Compensation Committee as well as Member of the Risk
Management Committee, Compensation Committee and
Investment & Advisory Committee.
He is currently the Executive Chairman of Arus Sutera Sdn
Bhd since 1997 and Governor for Yayasan Bursa Malaysia
Berhad as well as Trustee for Yayasan Bumiputra Sabah
Berhad.
He previously held the position as Chairman of Suria from
January 2013 until May 2018.
He holds 24,000 shares in Suria.
Tenure:
More than 1 year since the date of appointment.

Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Datuk Ng was appointed to the Board as the Group Managing
Director on 1 April 2016. She is responsible for the strategic
planning and the overall management of the Group. She has been
the Managing Director of Sabah Ports since 22 July 2016.
Datuk Ng also sits on the Board of other subsidiary companies,
namely SCHB Engineering, SP Marine, S.P. Satria, Borneo
Waterways Explorer and Suria RE.
She joined Suria in 2001, as Senior Manager (Corporate
Development). Upon the success of the privatisation in September
2004, she was appointed as the General Manager (Corporate
Services/Finance) for Sabah Ports. On 2 June 2010, she was
promoted to be the Chief Financial Officer of Suria until July
2015. She was appointed as the Acting Group Chief Executive
Officer of Suria on 29 July 2015 and subsequently became the
Group Managing Director in April 2016.
She served on the Sabah Women’s Affairs Advisory Council
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018 and has been the
Chairman of Sabah Logistics Forum since June 2020, a forum
for private sector representatives from the air, land, maritime
and trade sectors to discuss logistics issues and contribute to
the formulation of policies that address and resolve industry
challenges for the benefit of Sabah’s economy.
In 2020, she was conferred the prestigious Global Ports Forum
Award in the category “Woman of The Year in Port/Terminal
Industry” for her role, contributions and achievements in the
industry. Under her helm, Sabah Ports was awarded the “Port/
Terminal of the Year – South East Asia“ for 2020 and 2021 for two
consecutive years by Global Ports Forum.
Datuk Ng holds 377,400 shares in Suria.

Tenure:
More than 5 years since the date of appointment.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

DATUK HJ. FAISYAL BIN
DATUK YUSOF HAMDAIN DIEGO

How We Are
Governed

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Our
Leadership
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and Performance
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

KEE MUSTAFA

MICHAEL TONG YIN SHIEW, J.P.

Independent & Non-Executive

Independent & Non-Executive

Date of Appointment:
1 July 2014

Date of Appointment:
31 October 2019

71

72

Number of Board Meetings Attended: 8/8

Number of Board Meetings Attended: 8/8

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Arts in Anthropology and Sociology, University
of Malaya

Qualifications:
• Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA)
• Fellow Member of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
(FCTIM)
• Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom (FCCA)
• Fellow Member of CPA Australia (FCPA)

Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Kee Mustafa also sits on the Board of subsidiary companies,
namely Sabah Ports and SP Marine.
He is currently the Chairman of Sabah Public Services
Commission effective 1 July 2020. He also sits on the Board of
Berjaya Land Berhad and was recently appointed as a Board
Member of PETRONAS effective 19 January 2022.
He has over 40 years of extensive experience in the State’s
Civil Service and corporate sectors. He began his career in
1974 as an Executive Officer in the Service Division of the
Establishment Office, Chief Minister’s Department and later
as the Principal Assistant Director, Service Division in June
1982. In 1984, he was seconded to Sabah Gas Industries Sdn
Bhd as Personnel Manager before being promoted to Senior
Manager (Administration).
In 1991, he returned to the State’s Civil Service and served
several Governmental departments. In 1996, he became the
Permanent Secretary of the State’s Ministry of Infrastructure
Development. He was then appointed as the Director of State
Public Service Department in March 2000 before holding the
post as Sabah State Secretary from April 2000 until he retired
in 2007.
Kee Mustafa had been the former Chairman of the Board of
Governors of University College Sabah Foundation, the Board
member of Malaysia Airlines System Berhad and a member of
the Royal Commission of Inquiry on Immigrants in Sabah.
Tenure:
More than 7 years since the date of appointment.

Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Michael Tong is a senior partner of Crowe Malaysia PLT, Kota
Kinabalu and a partner in Crowe (Labuan) LLP. He commenced
public practice as a chartered accountant in Kota Kinabalu and
has over 40 years of experience in corporate finance, auditing
& assurance services (which covers forensic, investigative and
statutory), accounting, taxation, insolvency and consultancy
which includes due diligence, valuation of corporation and
corporate restructuring.
He is a senior accountant and financial consultant to the
business communities and had served as financial advisors,
treasurers and auditors to non-governmental organisations,
churches and charity bodies.
He was conferred the Justice of the Peace by the State
Governor of Sabah.
Tenure:
More than 2 years since the date of appointment.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Date of Appointment:
1 April 2021

Date of Appointment:
23 March 2020

64

51

Number of Board Meetings Attended: 3/6

Number of Board Meetings Attended: 8/8

Qualifications:
• Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D), Universiti Putra Malaysia
(UPM)
• Master of Politics & Government, Universiti Putra Malaysia
(UPM)
• Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, Simon Fraser
University, Canada (SFU)

Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Laws (Hons.), Holborn College, London
• Certified Credit Professional, Institut Bank-Bank Malaysia
(IBBM)

Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md Salleh currently serves as the
Chairman of the State’s wholly-owned investment arm,
Qhazanah Sabah Berhad (QSB). He has driven the corporate
transformation for QSB whilst maintaining his role in public
service as Assemblyman for Usukan constituency.
His active participation in public service started in 1990 as
Member in Sabah State Legislative Assembly for Usukan
constituency for 16 years between 1990 to 2022. Concurrently,
he also serves as Member of Parliament Kota Belud.
Throughout his career, he had assumed critical roles where
he was Sabah’s Chief Minister (1996-1998), State Minister
of Local Government and Housing (2001-2004) and Federal
Minister of Information and Communications (2015-2018).
He had also held non-ministerial positions including Speaker
for Sabah State Legislative Assembly and Senator for Dewan
Negara.
Besides his role as a Non-Executive Director for Suria, other
corporate roles that he has held includes Chairman of National
Film Development Corporation Malaysia (FINAS).
He was also involved in non-governmental organisations as Vice
President of Malaysian Youth Council, President of SANYA and
President of United Sabah Bajau Organisation.
Tenure:
Less than 1 year since the date of appointment.

Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Ahmad Rizal is currently the Group Chief Executive Officer
of Qhazanah Sabah Berhad (QSB) since 1 October 2019 and
the Chairman of Celcom Timur (Sabah) Sdn Bhd, the associate
company of QSB. He also sits as a Board member in QSB’s
subsidiary and associate companies. Prior to his appointment
as the Group Chief Executive Officer of QSB, he was the Head
of Project and Business Development.
He began his career as an Operation Executive with Malayan
Banking Berhad in November 1996 before being assigned to
Commercial and Corporate Banking in May 1997. Thereafter,
he took the role as a Senior Executive and rose to become
a Manager. Subsequently, in January 2011, he became the
Associate Director heading the Regional Corporate Banking
for Sabah and Federal Territory of Labuan. He was responsible
for growing the business for the banking group which
consisted of an extensive array of specialties in corporate and
project financing mainly for Government-linked companies
and public listed companies. He has a wide experience and
expertise in various industries such as property development,
infrastructure, vessel and shipping, oil and gas, trading and
investment holding.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Non-Independent & Non-Executive

Our
Leadership

AHMAD RIZAL BIN DAHLI

How We Are
Governed

DATUK SERI PANGLIMA DR. MD SALLEH
BIN TUN SAID KERUAK, J.P.

Tenure:
More than 1 year since the date of appointment.
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& Others
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

NORLIJA @ NORLIJAH BINTI DANIN
Non-Independent & Non-Executive
Date of Appointment:
27 November 2020

54
Number of Board Meetings Attended: 7/8

Qualifications:
• Master of Science, Robert Gordon University, Scotland
(RGU)
• Bachelor of History (Hons.), Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia
(UKM)
Skills, Experience and Expertise:
Norlija is currently the Deputy Permanent Secretary
(Development) of the Ministry of Finance, Sabah. She has over
31 years of experience as a public service officer in various
State’s ministries and departments.
She began her career in 1991 as Executive Officer in the
Ministry of Local Government and Housing. After three (3)
years of service, she was transferred to the Public Service
Department. In 1998, she was assigned to the Chief Minister’s
Department and later to the Ministry of Infrastructure
Development in 2002.
She had served briefly in the Sabah State Islamic Affairs
Department (JHEAINS) in 2006. In 2007, she was transferred
to the Railway Department as Administrative Officer until
2011 when she returned to the Ministry of Infrastructure
Development where she served until August 2020.
Tenure:
More than 1 year since the date of appointment.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
VIOLA CHIN

Group Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer

Date of Appointment:
1 April 2016

Date of Appointment:
3 January 2022

64

38
Qualifications:
• Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting and Finance), Curtin
University, Malaysia
• Certified Practicing Accountant (CPA) of CPA Australia
• Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA)

Ms. Viola began her career in 2005 as an Associate with Ernst
& Young, then joined Kwantas Corporation Berhad where she
rose up to Group Cost Analysis Manager in 2014, reporting
directly to the company’s executive directors.
In 2017, Ms. Viola became Financial Controller at East West
One Consortium Berhad and advanced to Head of Business
Analysis in 2019, heading the Group business analysis
function, overlooking and executing transactions of the
Group’s finance outfit.
Prior to joining Suria, Ms. Viola was the Finance Business
Partner for Mccorry & Co. Ltd, an International Wood
Products organization, where she played a key role in finance
and treasury related to their business in the United States of
America, Canada and Mexico.
Directorship:
Viola Chin holds directorship in Excel Connect Resources Sdn
Bhd.

How We Are
Governed

Background:

Financial Statements
& Others

As expressed in Director’s Profile page 45
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Highlights of The Year
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DATUK NG KIAT MIN
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
CAPTAIN HAFIDZI ZAKARIA

SITI NORAISHAH AZIZAN

General Manager, Operations (Sabah Ports)

General Manager, Corporate Services (Sabah Ports)

Date of Appointment:
6 January 2020

Date of Appointment:
3 December 2012

48

53

Qualifications:

Qualifications:

• Masters of Foreign Going (Class 1) of Competency,
Malaysian Maritime Academy (ALAM)

• Masters of Business Administration (MBA) in Shipping &
Logistics, Middlesex University Business School, London
• Bachelor of Science in Agribusiness, Universiti Putra
Malaysia (UPM)
• Chartered Member (CMILT) of Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport (CILT)

Background:
Captain Hafidzi was formerly the General Manager of
Container Business for Penang Port Sdn Bhd and has 28 years
of experience in marine services and container operations and
has held leadership roles.
He started his career as a mariner with MISC Bhd after
completing his cadetship in 1991. He held various onboard
positions before joining Penang Port as a marine pilot.
At Penang Port, he predominantly served and managed the
container operations division whereby he was accountable
for the container business growth, developing the division’s
infrastructure and superstructure as well as maintaining
stakeholder relationship.
He currently holds the leading role as Chairman of Sabah
Ports Crisis Command Centre during the COVID-19 pandemic
to ensure business continuity as well as uninterrupted
operations at all ports in Sabah.
In March 2021, he established the Marine Unit for Sabah
Ports, a one-stop centre for the oil & gas sectors in Sapangar
Bay and Kota Kinabalu Ports. In October 2021 he led the first
Liquified Natural Gas bunkering operation in collaboration
with PETRONAS off Sandakan Port limit area.
Directorship:
Captain Hafidzi does not hold directorship in other companies.

Background:
Siti Noraishah has been in the port industry for more than
20 years. She started her career in Johor Port Authority for
16 years before joining Sabah Ports in 2012. She is actively
involved in a few associations related to maritime both locally
and internationally. She is the Chairperson of the Chartered
Institute of Logistic Transport (CILT) Sabah Section.
Directorship:
Siti Noraishah was appointed as the Executive Director of SP
Marine Services Sdn Bhd on 2 December 2019.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
LAI FUI NAR

AZMAN BIN AMARASIKIN

General Manager, Technical & Process Improvement
(Sabah Ports)

Chief Executive Officer (SCHB Engineering)
Date of Appointment:
1 April 2007

62

48

Qualifications:

Qualifications:

• Advanced Diploma in Logistics & Transports (UK)
• Chartered Member (CMILT) of the Chartered Institute of
Logistics & Transport (CILT)

• Master of Business Administration (MBA), Universiti
Teknologi MARA (UiTM)
• Bachelor of Business Administration, International Islamic
University, Malaysia (IIUM)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Our
Leadership

Date of Appointment:
1 September 2004

Background:

She is the President of the Sabah Women Entrepreneurs &
Professionals Association (SWEPA) for 2019-2021 and the
Vice Chair of Women in Logistics and Transport (Wilat), Sabah
Section, the women arm of the CILT Malaysia.
Directorship:
Lai Fui Nar does not hold directorship in other companies.

Prior to joining SuriaGroup, he served at S.P. Setia Berhad
from 1997 to 2006 .
Directorship:
Azman Amarasikin holds directorships in SCHB Engineering as
well as its subsidiaries, Borneo Waterways Explorer Sdn Bhd
and Suria RE Sdn Bhd.

Financial Statements
& Others

She is an alumni member of The Asian Institute of
Management (AIM), Manila, Philippines.

Azman joined the Group on 1 April 2007 as Senior Manager in
Suria Bumiria Sdn Bhd before he became the General Manager
in January 2012. He was then appointed as the CEO of SCHB
Engineering from 2015 to date.

How We Are
Governed

Background:
Before assuming her current position, Lai Fui Nar was the
Deputy General Manager (Process Improvement) from June
2018 to March 2019. She was the Senior Manager of Sapangar
Bay Container Port from January 2013 to May 2018. Prior
to this, she held the position of Senior Manager (System &
Planning). She had worked for Sabah Ports Authority as the
Assistant Work Study Officer in 1979 and was later promoted
as Work Study Officer.

52

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
HIKMAH RAHMANIYAH AHMAD KHATIB

ASMAH MOHD NOR

Head, Group Company Secretary

Head, Group Risk & Integrity

Date of Appointment:
2 January 2008

Date of Appointment:
2 March 2012
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Qualifications:

Qualifications:

• Bachelor of Accounting (Hons.), International Islamic
University, Malaysia (IIUM)
• Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA)
• Practicing Secretary of Companies Commission of Malaysia
(CCM)

• Bachelor of Business Accounting (Hons.), University of
Humberside and Lincolnshire, England
• Associate Business Continuity Professional (ABCP),
Disaster Recovery Institute (DRI) International
• Enterprise Risk Professional (ERP) certification, Institute of
Enterprise Risk Practitioner (IERP)

Background:
Hikmah Rahmaniyah joined Suria as Manager of Finance,
mainly in charge of consolidation and the Group’s financial
reporting, then promoted to Senior Manager, Group Finance &
Administration on 1 October 2016.
On 19 December 2018, she was appointed as Joint Group
Company Secretary and later as the Group Company
Secretary on 16 May 2019, whilst still taking lead of the Group
Finance & Administration Department until 31 October
2021. Effective from 1 November 2021, she took over the
responsibility as Head, Group Company Secretary.
She started her career with Coopers & Lybrand, Kuala
Lumpur, the predecessor firm of PriceWaterhouseCoopers,
a public accounting firm in 1997. In 2000, she joined Bank
Pembangunan & Infrastruktur (M) Bhd, Kota Kinabalu Branch
which was then named SME Bank, where she served until
2007 prior to joining Suria.
Directorship:
Hikmah Rahmaniyah does not hold directorship in other
companies.

Background:
Asmah has more than 20 years of experience in the field of
audit, risk management and policy development through
her career in the insurance and banking sectors with Labuan
Offshore Financial Services Authority.
Prior to joining Suria, she was a Senior Manager in Lembaga
Tabung Haji.
Directorship:
Asmah does not hold directorship in other companies.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
PATSY TIASING

Head, Group Corporate Affairs & Communication

Head, Group People

Date of Appointment:
8 June 2005

Date of Appointment:
1 September 2004
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Qualifications:

Qualifications:

• Doctor of Business Administration (DBA), Universiti
Teknologi MARA (UiTM)
• Master of Business Administration (MBA), Universiti
Teknologi MARA (UiTM)
• Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) in Development Studies (Economics),
University of Kent at Canterbury, England (UKC)

• Master of Science in Town Planning, University of Wales
College of Cardiff (UWCC), Wales, United Kingdom
• Bachelor of Science (Hons.) in Town Planning, University of
Wales Institute of Science and Technology (UWIST), Wales,
United Kingdom

As Head of Group Corporate Affairs and Communications,
she leads her team in managing the external and internal
corporate communication programmes for the Group. Among
the key duties include managing engagement programmes
with stakeholders and shareholders through corporate events
including annual general meetings, annual report production,
website, investor relations with research analysts and fund
managers, media relations and corporate social responsibility
engagements. She is also responsible for the annual Sustainability
Reporting for SuriaGroup where her Department acts as the
Secretariat for the Sustainability Working Committee.
Before joining Suria, she had worked with Sabah Development
Bank Berhad for 10 years after serving the State’s Civil Service
earlier on for 10 years. She entered her working career in
1984 with Sabah Institute of Administration and Research
(SINAR) and Human Resource Development Bureau (BPSM),
both under the Chief Minister’s Department.
Directorship:
Datin Dr Mariam does not hold directorship in other companies.

Patsy has been with SuriaGroup since 1 September 2004.
Prior to joining SuriaGroup, she was with Sabah Ports
Authority for more than 14 years as Administrative Officer.
Patsy started her career in SuriaGroup as Assistant Manager
(Marketing & Business Relations) in the Marketing Department
in Sabah Ports and as Assistant Manager (Welfare) in the HR
Department before being promoted as Manager (Human
Resource) of Sabah Ports on 1 January 2012.

How We Are
Governed

Datin Dr Mariam joined Suria in June 2005 as Manager,
Corporate Affairs Department when it was just set up. She was
later promoted to the Senior Manager position in June 2008.

Background:

Upon the formation of Group People Department, she was in
charge of the People Management Unit dealing with manpower
planning, industrial relations, compensation and benefit.
On 1 July 2020, she was promoted as Head of Group People.
She is currently a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Human Resource Management, a Panel for SOCSO Appellate
Committee appointed by the Ministry of Human Resource
and a member of Establishment Committee of KKIP Sdn Bhd.
She has also been conferred by the Chartered Association
of Business Administrators as Chartered Human Resource
Consultant in August, 2020.
Directorship:
Patsy does not hold directorship in other companies.

Financial Statements
& Others

Background:

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Our
Leadership

DATIN DR MARIAM MAHMUN
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
MOHAMMAD DANIEL LIM

SOH WAN RU

Head, Group Internal Audit

Head, Group Corporate Planning & Development

Date of Appointment:
1 September 2004

Date of Appointment:
1 August 2012
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Qualifications:

Qualifications:

• Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons.), Open
University Malaysia (OUM)
• Enterprise-Wide Risk Manager (CERM) certification,
Asia Risk Management Institute (ARiMI)

• Master of Business, Monash University, Australia
• Bachelor of Science, Monash University, Australia

Background:

Soh Wan Ru joined Suria on 1 August 2012 as the Senior
Executive in the Chief Financial Officer’s office and was
promoted as the Executive Assistant to the Group Managing
Director on 1 January 2016 before assuming the current
position on 1 June 2018.

Daniel has more than 31 years of combined experience in the
field of Internal Audit and Risk Management.
Prior to joining Suria, Daniel had served Sabah Ports Authority
(SPA) for 20 years. Following the privatisation of the port
operation in 2004, he opted to join Suria under the Group
Internal Audit (GIA) until January 2008. In February 2008, he
was transferred to the Group Risk Management (GRM) where
he served until May 2018. He assumed the position of Head
GIA in June 2018 until to-date.

Background:

She worked briefly for Monash Asia- Pacific Centre of Science
and Wealth Creation in Melbourne, Australia before returning
to Sabah in 2009.
She joined YSG Biotech Sdn Bhd under the Sabah Foundation
Group as the Senior Research/Business Development Officer
for 3 years prior to joining Suria.

Directorship:
Directorship:
Daniel does not hold directorship in other companies.
Soh Wan Ru does not hold directorship in other companies.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS’ PROFILE
CLEMENT LEE TEE YUNG

Manager, Group Finance & Administration

Head, Group Information Technology

Date of Appointment:
1 December 2013

Date of Appointment:
16 October 2008

40

39

Qualifications:

Qualifications:

• Bachelor Degree (Hons.) in Accounting, University of
Hertfordshire, United Kingdom
• Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant, United Kingdom (FCCA)
• Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA)

• Bachelor of Multimedia Technology Management,
Multimedia University (MMU)

Aileen joined SuriaGroup as Finance, Admin and Human
Resource Manager in Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd’s subsidiaries, S.P
Marine Sdn Bhd and SP Satria Sdn Bhd. She was subsequently
transferred to Suria’s Holding Company as Group Finance and
Administration Manager.

Background:
Clement Lee joined Sabah Ports as Assistant Manager
of Information Technology Department in 2008 and was
promoted as Manager of Information Technology in 2016. He
was then promoted to Head of Group IT in 2019.
Prior to joining Sabah Ports, he worked as System Developer
for Portrade Sdn Bhd, Sabah Ports’ vendor company
supporting Sabah Ports’ terminal operation system.
Directorship:

Prior to joining SuriaGroup, Aileen has 10 years of work
experience with Ernst & Young, Petronas Gas Berhad and a
Sabah based Property Construction company, in audit and
financial management roles.

How We Are
Governed

Background:

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Our
Leadership

AILEEN KONG SIEW MING

Clement Lee does not hold directorship in other companies.

Aileen does not hold directorship in other companies.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

About This Statement
This Sustainability Statement 2021 (SS2021) covers the activities of
SuriaGroup undertaken in 2021. As a responsible corporate citizen,
these activities reflected the Group’s continuous commitment towards
the country’s economic growth and, in particular, the economy of Sabah
while contributing to environmental sustainability and well-being of the
community.
The attention to sustainability has been an integral
component of our overall operations. Through this
statement, we seek to provide a comprehensive
account of our sustainability programmes,
the activities we undertook in 2021, and the
challenges we faced given the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic that contributed to the
uncertainty of the economy and livelihood of the
global community.



Reviews our previous and current sustainability
performance;



Updates on our ongoing sustainability efforts;



Introduces new initiatives undertaken by the
Group to enhance its diverse operations and
adopts more efficient and sustainable business.
This report also includes other initiatives
undertaken in addressing the COVID-19
pandemic since March 2020, which require
statutory standard operating procedures (SOP)
for business in the new normal;



Highlights accomplishments and challenges
associated with our operations in building a
sustainable business.

In a snapshot, this SS2021:


Provides a summary of our sustainability
programmes in 2021, consistent with the
Group’s strategic planning and financial
performance for the year under review;

SCOPE OF THIS STATEMENT
This SS2021 details the descriptions of the Group’s business operations and financial performance
related to sustainability. This statement highlights material issues that are important to us, our
stakeholders and shareholders, as well as society as a whole.

Reporting Period

Reporting Cycle

Organisation Coverage

1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021

Annually

Suria Capital Holdings Berhad
and its subsidiaries

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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In preparing the statement and defining the
content, six (6) GRI Standards are relevant to
the Group’s position and operations. They are as
follows:


GRI 101: Refers to the reporting principles for
defining report contents and report quality.



GRI 102: Refers to the organisation and its
sustainability reporting practices, its profile,
strategy, ethics and integrity, governance,
stakeholder’s engagement practices and the
reporting process.



GRI 103: Refers to the management approach
to report how the organisation manages the
material issues covered by topic-specific
standards GRI 200, 300 and 400.



GRI 200; GRI 300 and GRI 400: Refer to the
organisation’s economic, environmental and
social impacts.

“Development that meets the needs of the
present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.”
- Brundtland Report of the World Commission on
Environment and Development
(Bursa Malaysia’s Sustainability Reporting Guide)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The disclosures made in the statement are based
on Bursa Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Guide
(Second edition, 2018) and the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) Standards, which is an international
framework for sustainability reporting. Being
part of the port community, this Report also
incorporates guidelines from the International
Association of Ports and Harbours’ World Ports
Sustainability Program. These guidelines align with
the United Nations’ Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs).

How We Are
Governed

This SS2021 has been prepared in accordance
with the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (Bursa Malaysia) paragraph
9.45(2) and paragraph (29), Part A of Appendix
9C of the Main Market Listing Requirements
(supplemented by Practice Note 9).

Our
Leadership

PRINCIPAL GUIDELINES
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
SuriaGroup’s Sustainability Governance Structure

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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The Group Corporate Affairs and Communication Department
(GCAC) acts as the Sustainability Project Management Office
or the Secretariat, which will submit progress reports to
RMGC every quarter for update and deliberation.
The SWG comprises representatives from the holding
company and operating subsidiaries. It was established to
monitor the implementation of the strategies and action
plans related to the sustainability aspects of the Group. The
SWG reports the progress of the action plans, which will
be compiled by the Secretariat (GCAC) and to be tabled at
the RMGC. The SWG is grouped into four (4) teams that are
responsible for each pillar: Economic, Environment, SocialPeople and Social-Stakeholders and Community Engagement.

We identified the material issues through stakeholders’
engagements and materiality assessments.
The Sustainability Statement of the Group has been an annual
reporting for the last five (5) years since the first issue of
Sustainability Statement 2017. As such, the current issue of
Sustainability Statement 2021 attempts to capture the 5-year
trend and development of sustainability initiatives undertaken
by the Group. By looking at the trend or development, it would
reflect how sustainability could be successfully incorporated
into the corporate culture of the Group. This could determine
the future course of actions and directions to achieve the
targets or goals for sustainable growth.

CONTINUOUS ENGAGEMENTS WITH OUR
STAKEHOLDERS
We proactively engage with our diverse stakeholders to
identify and meet their expectations, especially in the new
normal and economic uncertainty. We continue to strengthen
ties with them by utilising online platforms or through
customers’ portals as the world enters into digitalisation. This
is to ease communications with stakeholders while adhering to
the new Government’s SOPs of physical distancing under the
new norms of doing business.

Our
Leadership

The Suria EXCOM (headed by Group Managing Director)
is responsible for setting the direction, governance and
overseeing the implementation of sustainability strategies and
performance.

Our reporting approach focuses on material issues and
activities in line with stakeholders’ concerns and relevance in
context, completeness and balance.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The Board performs its responsibility towards sustainability
practices by giving the mandate to the RMGC and Suria
EXCOM to oversee the execution of our sustainability
commitment. The Board is also responsible for approving any
necessary principles, policies and strategies.

OUR SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH

How We Are
Governed

Our sustainability initiatives are driven by the Board,
Risk Management & Governance Committee (RMGC),
Sustainability Steering Committee (Suria EXCOM) and
supported by Sustainability Working Group (SWG).

Financial Statements
& Others
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The following tables illustrates our approach in engaging with stakeholders:Stakeholders

Investment-Related:
- shareholders
- investors
- fund managers
- analysts

Engagement Approach

Frequency

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Annual General Meeting
Extraordinary Meeting
Investor Relations
Quarterly & Annual Reports
Sustainability Reports
Website updates
E-mail alerts

Annual
As and when
Regular
Quarterly and Annually
Annual
Ongoing
Regular

• Meetings
• Collaborations
• Corporate events

• Regular
• As and when
• As and when

• Port User meetings
• Customer engagement sessions
(Port Customer Day)
• Customer complaint system
• Satisfaction survey

• Regular
• Annual

Industry Players

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

• As and when
• As and when
• Ongoing

Business Partners

• Meetings
• Collaboration
• SuriaGroup’s Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy &
Procedure

Suppliers and Contractors

•
•
•
•

Survey
Meetings, phone calls and emails
E-Procurement Portal
Site Briefings including HSE and Safety requirements

•
•
•
•

As and when
As and when
As and when
Regular

Employees

•
•
•
•

Employee Engagement Activities
Discussions with Senior Management
Employees Training
Staff Gathering

•
•
•
•

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Government and Authorities

Port Users

Sabah Logistic Forum meeting
Sabah Port Forum
CILT / WILAT
APAA

• Regular
• Annual
Quarterly
Biennials
Regular
Annual

• Community Outreach
• Donations
• Sponsorship

• Regular
• Regular
• Regular

• Press Releases, Press Conferences and Interviews

• Regular

Community

Media

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

PRIORITISATION OF MATERIAL ISSUES

Materiality is the principle of identifying
and assessing a wide range of
sustainability matters and refining them
to those most critical to the Group and
stakeholders.

Initially, several issues were identified during materiality assessment which were
related to sustainable priorities. However, as shown in the matrix below, we only
short-listed 16 issues with the highest priority.

The SWG had reviewed and updated
the materiality matters in this
statement according to their respective
areas to reflect the material issues at
the Group using the materiality matrix.
This allows us to prioritise and identify
material issues caused by the changing
economic environment due to the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the new norm of doing business.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

Based on the 16 identified
materiality issues, we
restrategised our actions
to sustain and improve
stakeholders’ values and
interests.

Importance to
Stakeholders

1. Business Sustainability

10.0

9.0

2. Improvements in Business Operations

10.0

9.0

3. Diversification and Expansion of Business
Activities

10.0

9.0

Our
Leadership

Impact on
Business

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
4. Commitments Towards Environmental
Sustainability

10.0

10.0

5. Reduction in Carbon Footprints

10.0

10.0

6. Electricity and Water Consumption

10.0

8.0

7. Waste Management

10.0

9.0

8. Marine Vessel Waste Management

10.0

9.0

9. Mitigating Oil Spillage

10.0

10.0

10. Go Green Initiatives Campaign

8.0

8.0

11. Talent Force

8.0

8.0

12. Our Response to COVID-19

8.0

8.0

13. Nurturing Our People through Learning and
Development

8.0

8.0

14. People Engagement

8.0

8.0

15. Serving Our Stakeholders

8.0

8.0

16. Caring for Community

8.0

8.0

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY

How We Are
Governed

Using a weighted-ranking of the
materiality, we redefined the priorities
and focus areas relevant to the
Group and considered integral to
the stakeholders’ values. The revised
materiality assessment emphasised 16
materiality issues that may influence
the sustainability of our business
operations.

Sustainability Areas Assessed in the Materiality Assessment:

Financial Statements
& Others
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ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY

As the world emerges from the devastating impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic, over the past two years, now more than
ever, there is an urgent need to rebuild lives and economies in
a more sustainable manner.
The year 2020 was all about the unprecedented spread of
COVID-19, while 2021 was about how the world rapidly
got vaccinated to fight the virus of COVID-19 as well as the
emergence of new variants. It was still a year of significant
challenges and uncertainty for the global economy. Businesses
were still struggling to survive.
While the entire world moved into a more stable recovery
phase after being pushed into a new standard and near
economic standstill, the Group successfully navigated through
the pandemic. As port service had been recognised as an
essential service by the Government, the Group continued
its business as usual throughout the various movement
restrictions in 2021.
In this statement, we continued to apply three (3) key material
issues under economic sustainability, namely, Business
Sustainability, Improvement in Business Operations, as well as
Diversification and Expansion of Business Activities.

BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY
Business Continuity Management
As the State’s mandated port operator, Sabah Ports is
committed to ensuring efficient management and operation
of its eight (8) ports and oil terminals. The extensive spread of
COVID-19, which spiked into a global pandemic, had disrupted
global economies and affected ports that are integral as trade
entry points to local and international economies.
Despite the challenges caused by the pandemic, port
operations in Sabah were under control and
in fact had registered some improvements compared to the
year 2020. The improvement in performance was partly
contributed by appropriate control measures and increased
economic activities due to the relaxation of the MCO.
To ensure safety and business continuity since the onset of
MCO, the Group implemented several mitigation measures
consistent with guidelines set by authorities such as the
Federal Ministry of Health, Malaysian National Security
Council and Sabah State Secretary’s office.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

iii)

Reduction in the workforce by implementing a Workfrom-Home schedule for supporting departments while
the port operations adopted a grouping and shift system.

iv)

Encouraged port users to limit visits and adopt online
methods for payment and submission of documents to
support contactless transactions and utilise the services
of the web-based customer portal.

v)

Collaboration with PERKESO to administer free
COVID-19 testing among employees.

vi)

Distribution of personal protective equipment to all port
staff such as face masks and sanitising solution.

vii)

Weekly case report/update to Head of Departments.

The port operations continued to run for 24 hours during
2021 while prioritising the health safety of the staff by
alternating work schedules and conducting COVID-19 mass
screening with the help of the Ministry of Health.
As for the port users, stricter measures were still implemented
to safeguard the health of port and logistics employees.
Details of the measures implemented at the ports during 2021
are as follows:

ii)

Adoption of the Ministry of Health’s guideline on
the SOP with several improvements such as stricter
enforcement of the procedures in Sabah Ports premise,
the introduction of more open space such as staff resting
area and adaptation of natural ventilation in operation
offices.
Routine physical inspection at identified areas such as
canteen, resting area, Landing & Shipping Department,
etc., to ensure physical distancing is practised while
employees and customers wear masks at all times.

viii) Ongoing COVID-19 awareness for all staff.
ix)

Promotion of vaccination programme - Medical officers
from the Health Department carried out a series of
vaccination talks for our employees. In addition, the
Group also collaborated with other relevant authorities
to roll out the mass vaccination program for employees
of the Group.

x)

Disinfection of workstations at the end of the shift or
work hours.

xi)

Segregation of rest area among shift groups.

How We Are
Governed

i)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Among its internal measures was its special task force, the
Crisis Command Centre, collaborating with the Health,
Safety and Environment Department and the Group People
Department.

Our
Leadership
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2

→

1. Sanitising the resting area
for staff on shift at the
ports
2. Practising Social Distancing
at the workplace
3. Free COVID-19 testing
among employees

1

3
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Business Collaborations

Sabah Logistics Forum for National Task Force

Liquefied Natural Gas Bunkering With PETRONAS

The Sabah Logistics Forum (SLF) had played a role in the
establishment of the national New Industrial Master Plan
2020-2030 by providing meaningful inputs on industry
challenges and recommendations for the State’s logistics
sector.

Sabah Ports made its maiden entry into Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG) bunkering operations in 2021 after being appointed as
the main service provider for PETRONAS’ first LNG bunkering
operations in Sabah.

On 17 February 2021, Datuk Ng Kiat Min, as its chairperson,
and other members of SLF made an online courtesy call with
the Federal Minister of Transport, YB Datuk Seri Dr Wee
Ka Siong. Following the courtesy call, SLF had become a
member of the National Logistics Task Force, which monitors
the implementation of the Logistics and Trade Facilitation
Masterplan in the country.

The venture signified the upgrading and diversification of
services offered by Sabah Ports to enhance its offshore and
onshore services and, in the long run, provide a seamless range
of marine services to serve the industry better.
PETRONAS engaged Sabah Ports to provide salient marine
services such as pilotage, tug boats, related documentation
and other ancillary services. Sabah Ports further acted as
the focal liaison to secure all the necessary approvals for the
project.
The appointment augured well with Sabah Ports’ plan to
leverage its strength as the State’s leading port operator and
ultimately offer a one-stop centre for marine services and ship
care business.
The maiden LNG transfer at Sabah was completed off
Sandakan Port in 2021 between its LNG Bunker Vessel (LBV),
MV Avenir Advantage and HL Green, the world’s largest LNGpowered vessel.
Sandakan Port is strategically located along the shipping lane
for vessels en route to the Intra -Asia countries. The port has
great potential to serve as an LNG hub providing opportunities
for PETRONAS and Sabah Ports to further explore and
develop LNG related partnerships in line with the national
plan to position Malaysia as an LNG hub.

Online courtesy call with Federal Minister of Transport, YB Datuk Seri Dr
Wee Ka Siong

IMPROVEMENTS IN BUSINESS OPERATIONS
Digital Transformation
In tandem with technological advancements, the Group
continued developing and implementing more online system
platforms to ensure a smooth transition from manual
processes to digitalisation management. This will not only
improve services but will also help to expand business
opportunities. The COVID-19 pandemic had undoubtedly
accelerated the pace of digitalisation for the Group, especially
in port operations.
Virtual meetings and discussions have become the new norm,
and more video conferencing facilities had been added due to
the high demand for usage. These facilities have been made
easily accessible online for employees to work from home. The
increased demand for IT solutions had posed new challenges
to the Group, as illustrated in the following diagram.
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Process Improvement in Port Operations

Since March 2021, Sabah Ports had managed the operations
of Vessel Traffic Monitoring & Information Systems (VTMIS)
at Sapangar Bay, previously under the purview of the Sabah
Ports and Harbour Department. The system is managed and
operated by Marine Traffic Controllers of Sabah Ports’ Marine
Unit.

During the year, a new operation dashboard was launched
to monitor the performance of container and cargo handling
equipment at Sapangar Bay Container Port. It provided
detailed information on the performance of each port area,
which includes the wharf, yard and gate. The dashboard
would allow the Operations Team to monitor the operational
performance and productivity in real-time and take immediate
actions to resolve any bottlenecks.
In 2021, a new Employee Self-service System (ESS) was
developed to enable employees across the Group to access
and manage their data, make claim submissions and apply for
leave, including medical leave online.
While we rely more on the IT system, the Group had taken
extra precautions to ensure access security by closely
monitoring any possible threats from suspicious activities that
were promptly blocked.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year
First briefing by General Manager (Operations) on VTMIS

Automation of Reefer Monitoring System at SBCP

How We Are
Governed

Port users' customer platform development was enhanced to
ease manual processes and minimise physical presence and
contact. In this regard, the payment and manifest submission
for agents was made available online.

Sabah Ports invested in automating the reefer monitoring
system to upgrade reefer container handling services at
Sapangar Bay Container Port, which automatically records
the reefer boxes’ temperature and monitors the duration of
stay at the port. This reduces the risk of error in controlling
the temperature of the packages and ensures the freshness of
goods is maintained.
Roll-on Roll-off (RoRo) Operations Shifted to SBCP
Due to the yard space constraints at Kota Kinabalu Port, the
RoRo operations were gradually relocated to Sapangar Bay
Container Port. The site for vehicles had been completed and
ready for the first RoRo offloading by January 2022.

Financial Statements
& Others

To address the above challenges, the Group had developed
and completed Business Intelligence Tools, Online Submission
for Agents and e-Payment for customers.

The management of VTMIS highlights Sabah Ports’ ongoing
commitment towards preserving safety at sea and increasing
port productivity by improving port transit time through
efficient navigational monitoring. The VTMIS provides realtime information about maritime conditions, thus allowing
for extensive and safer traffic management within Sabah
Ports’ waterways. Plans are underway to extend the VTMIS to
Sandakan Port in 2022.

Our
Leadership

Vessel Traffic Monitoring & Information Systems (VTMIS)
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Preventive Maintenance Programme at Sabah Ports
The preventive maintenance programme was carried out to
identify the root cause of port equipment breakdown early
to mitigate costly maintenance and unnecessary downtime
associated with corrective actions at later stages.

the dry bulk handling operations at Lahad Datu Port. The
move allowed Lahad Datu Port to have more control over
the operations through proper equipment to achieve higher
port productivity and efficiency while creating an additional
revenue stream.
Ferry Terminal Operations

Following the extensive preventive maintenance programme
by Sabah Ports, an improvement in equipment availability
at all ports can be shown at an average of 88.1% in 2021
from 85.8% in 2020. This indicated a reduction in equipment
downtime and the high availability of equipment. The most
notable improvement was seen at Kota Kinabalu Port at
99.0% during the year. For Sapangar Bay Container Port, the
equipment availability stood at 69.2% in 2021 compared to
69.4% in 2020.
The programme improved equipment availability at Lahad
Datu Port to 95.7% in 2021 as against 93.9% in 2020. The
preventive maintenance programme was also implemented
for the conveyor system operations at Kunak Port, which
handles primarily palm kernel expeller (PKE) as well as palm
oil and relies heavily on the conveyor system to load PKE into
bulk carriers.
Improvement in Gate Operations at Sapangar Bay Container
Port
In 2021, the Gate Operations at Sapangar Bay Container Port
was reviewed to reduce congestion and waiting time at the
terminal gate, improving overall operational efficiency. This
effort had shown positive results when the average truck
turnaround time improved to 32 minutes per truck in 2021
compared to 33 minutes per truck in 2020. The reduction
in congestion and waiting time allowed more trucks to pass
through the gate, from an average total of 4,015 trucks in
2020 to an average of 4,460 trucks in 2021.
Operational Improvement at East Coast Ports
For better utilisation of workforce at the port operations and
to improve the overall port operational efficiency, Sabah Ports
introduced a programme to pool workforce resources among
the three (3) ports in the East Coast of Sabah, namely Lahad
Datu Port, Kunak Port and Tawau Port.
Lahad Datu Port had made significant moves to improve
its operations in 2021. In May 2021, Sabah Ports took over

The ferry terminal operations had slowed down for two (2)
consecutive years since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.
For the performance in 2021, please refer to the Business
Segment and MD&A of the Annual Report.
Despite the drop in revenue from the ferry terminal
operations, SCHB Engineering offered rental discounts of
between 20% to 70% to the tenants and tour operators
at Jesselton Point on a goodwill basis to ease their burden
during difficult times. To upkeep the terminal and facilities at
Jesselton Point, SCHB Engineering maintained third-party
services such as security and cleaning, despite the minimal
passenger traffic, to provide continuous income to them.
In anticipation of economic recovery and the return of
tourists when borders re-open, SCHB Engineering had
also refurbished the floating restaurant for resumption of
operation and converted the futsal court into an event hall.
SCHB Engineering had also commenced the development
of e-ticketing system for Jesselton Point to improve service
efficiency. With the system in place, the ticketing operation
will be centralised at one platform to ensure fair pricing for
all passengers and a systematic departure schedule of boats.
Furthermore, this system will enhance passenger experience
through convenience in purchasing tickets and improve
management reporting and security.

DIVERSIFICATION AND EXPANSION OF
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Establishment of Marine Unit at Sabah Ports
In 2021, Sabah Ports set up Marine Unit as part of the
company’s effort to provide integrated marine services that
would help position Sabah Ports as a one-stop centre to serve
port customers better.

Corporate Overview
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Marine Unit At Sabah Ports

Hydrography
&
Navigational
Aids

Marine
Traffic
Control

Marine
Ancillary
Services

Marine
Fleet

Port Expansion Projects
The Sapangar Bay Container Port
Expansion Project
The construction contract for Sapangar
Bay Container Port expansion
was awarded to WCT Holdings
Berhad - China Communications
Construction Co (M) Sdn Bhd in 2021.
The groundwork for the project had
commenced in September 2021, and
completion is expected by February
2025.
Sapangar Bay Container Port’s strategic
location and improved infrastructure,
with a higher handling capacity of 1.25
million TEUs, will transform the port
into a transshipment hub for BIMPEAGA and the larger ASEAN region.

Our
Leadership

The Unit’s different functions can be shown in the following diagram:-

Sabah Ports established Kota Kinabalu
Port Offshore Gateway in May 2021
to provide oil and gas players with a
base facility at the port, securing a
new revenue stream for the Group.
The first contract was secured with
PETRONAS Floating LNG (PFLNG) at
Kota Kinabalu Port, and after that, the
operations expanded to Sapangar Bay
Container Port for the same clients.
Similar support service in the ship-care
business was extended to Labuan,
where a new office was set up on the
island to cater for clients in the region.
Marine Unit of Sabah Ports manages
the business.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The Marine Unit is responsible for vessel traffic surveillance at the ports,
hydrographic surveying and provision of ancillary marine services such as pilotage,
towage and marine advisory services. As stipulated under Port Undertakings of the
Sabah Ports Privatisation Agreement, extension of these services would also widen
the revenue base for Sabah Ports.

Ship-Care Business for Oil & Gas
Players

How We Are
Governed

The setting up of the Marine Unit was in line with the Group’s direction to upgrade
Sabah Ports’ services and facilities, especially at Sapangar Bay Container Port, in
anticipation of increased volume, upsizing ships and transshipment activities post
Sapangar Bay Container Port’s expansion.
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The Sapangar Bay Container Port
expansion will boost trade and
industrial activities in Sabah, thus
creating a catalyst in spurring the
manufacturing industry, a significant
segment of the industrial sector, as
emphasised in the Sabah Maju Jaya
Development Plan 2030.
Sabah Economic Development and
Investment Authority (SEDIA) is the
implementing agency for the expansion
project.

time. The facility’s expansion is necessary due to the increasing demand for bulk oil
for domestic consumption.
Upon completion of the extension project, Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal will
accommodate vessels up to the maximum capacity of 60,000 Deadweight tonnes
(DWT) at the outer berth and 10,000 DWT at the inner berth. With that, Sapangar
Bay Oil Terminal will surpass its current handling rate of 1.2 million metric tonnes of
bulk oil per annum. The additional oil jetty will also allow maintenance of pipelines to
be carried out with minimal interruptions to daily operations.
Completion Stage of Railway Project

Sapangar Bay Conventional Cargo
Terminal
The first stage of design for the
construction of Sapangar Bay
Conventional Cargo Terminal to
relocate the current general cargo
operations from Kota Kinabalu Port
had been completed. Soil Investigation,
Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA) as well as Hydrographic and Traffic
Flow Study had also been conducted.
As of December 2021, the planning of
the Terminal had reached the second
design stage which was revised to cater
for operational needs of the Oil and Gas
sector.
Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal Jetty
Extension Project
The construction of the oil jetty
extension at Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal
had commenced in October 2020. As
of December 2021, the construction
progress of the jetty extension was
registered at 35.8%. Completion of the
jetty extension is expected in the third
or fourth quarter of 2022.
The new jetty extension project will
involve the construction of two (2)
additional berths designed to handle
two (2) vessels at any one time for
further efficiency. This will ease
congestion and reduce vessel waiting

After going through challenging times due to the outbreak of the pandemic as well
as natural disasters, the railway upgrading project in Tenom was 99.6% completed
with tampering works by the end of 2021. The project was fully completed in
January 2022. The Federal Ministry of Transport will issue the certificate of practical
completion (CPC) within the first quarter of 2022 before the handing over to the
Sabah State Railway Department for operations.
The implementation of MCO 2.0 and MCO 3.0 had impacted the project’s progress.
Other challenges were faced on site, especially during the wet season that caused
multiple landslides, which further contributed to the delay in the completion of the
project.
Although the railway upgrading project does not yield a high-profit margin, the
Group’s decision to undertake the project was driven by social sustainability
commitment to improving the livelihood of the communities in the interior that
depend solely on the railway to commute between Halogilat, Rayoh, Pangi and the
nearest towns of Tenom and Beaufort. Once completed, the train travelling speed
will improve from 30km/h to 40km/h.
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Commercial Property Developments

JQC, the first phase of the 16.25-acre
Jesselton Quay development, which is
a joint venture between Suria and SBC,
comprises two (2) towers of commercial
suites called CityPads, one (1) tower of

As the economy opened up in the last
quarter of 2021, investors and business
owners showed increased interest in
the property due to its prime location
by the waterfront and close proximity
to Kota Kinabalu City Centre. JQC is
also equipped with modern design,
outstanding amenities and wide
walkways to suit sustainable living.

One Jesselton Waterfront
Suria and Gabungan AQRS Berhad
had mutually agreed to terminate the
plan to jointly develop One Jesselton
Waterfront. Both parties concluded
that the project was no longer viable
to be pursued due to the prevailing
unfavourable economic and market
conditions. The termination agreement
was entered into on 30 September
2021.

How We Are
Governed

Despite various phases of MCO that
caused delays in physical works on site,
construction of Jesselton Quay Central
(JQC) Phase 1 was 99.5% completed as
of 31 December 2021. The certificate of
occupancy was awarded on 19 January
2022.

i-office adaptable as 24-storey hotel
tower with 256 rooms in the future, 37
blocks of Gallery Shoppes, a podium
that houses a recreation club called
BeachClub with over 1,000 parking
bays.
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THE GROUP’S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND IMPACTS ON THE ECONOMY
Contribution to the Economy
As a result of the Group’s resilient performance, the Group’s revenue bounced by 10.2% to RM251.3 million, while its profit
before tax went up by 22.1% to RM58.6 million year-on-year. Port operations remain the main source of revenue for the Group,
contributing 85.3% (excluding construction services revenue) of the Group’s total revenue. Port services had been categorised as
essential services hence continued to operate during the imposed lockdowns during the year.

5-year Group’s Revenue and Profit Before Tax (RM million)
Year
58.6

2021
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48.0

2020

228.0
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0

50

332.7

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

RM million

Sabah Ports, the primary subsidiary of the Group, achieved a growth of 13.6% in revenue with RM249.0 million (inclusive of
construction services revenue from concession infrastructure) and profit before tax of RM60.9 million as of 31 December 2021.

Sabah Ports’ Financial Performance (RM million)
Year
60.9
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2020
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During the year in review, the improved financial performance was reflective of higher operational activities boosted by the
opening of all economic sectors and higher imports and exports of commodities such as palm oil, bulk oil and general cargo. Bulk
oil remained the largest cargo handled during the year, followed by general cargo and palm oil.

Major Cargo Throughput by Commodity (MT million)

MT million
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Volume of Containers Handled (TEUs)
Year
2021
2020
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Sabah Ports’ container volume also registered better performance when it improved by 11.2% from 357,416 TEUs to 397,346
TEUs in 2021. The container volume, which consisted mainly of consumer goods, rebounded after encountering several
disruptions in supply during the lockdowns. The container volume in 2021 recorded the highest for the last five (5) years.
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Contribution to Stakeholders
With higher throughput and income recovery, the Group contributed a higher dividend payment of RM13.1 million (8.3% higher)
to the shareholders during the year.
The following income distribution table shows the economic contribution made by the Group to its stakeholders:
Distribution

2017
RM million

2018
RM million

2019
RM million

2020
RM million

2021
RM million

%

60.4

65.6

65.9

62.8

56.6

28.5

To Employees
- Personnel costs
To Government
- Payment to SPA

17.4

17.9

17.8

16.3

16.5

8.3

- Taxation

18.8

22.2

20.5

15.0

19.1

9.6

36.2

40.1

38.3

31.3

35.6

17.9

11.5

27.4

17.3

12.1

13.1

6.6

To Providers of Capital
- Dividend
- Finance costs

4.1

3.0

3.7

8.5

7.7

3.9

15.6

30.4

21.0

20.6

20.8

10.5

52.0

53.0

54.0

59.2

29.8

Retained for Future Reinvestment and Growth
- Depreciation, amortisation
& impairment
- Retained Profit Net of
Dividend and Expiry of
Employee Share Options
Total Distributed
% from Total Revenue

51.0

37.4

25.8

35.0

22.7

26.4

13.3

88.4

77.8

88.0

76.7

85.6

43.1

200.6

213.9

213.2

191.4

198.6

100.0

60.3

52.7

76.8

83.9

79.0

Impact on Employment
To contribute to Sabah’s economy, the Group retained a strong workforce, providing jobs to 1,094 employees in 2021, primarily
local Sabahans from diverse ethnicities and backgrounds. The Group had ensured the welfare of employees were maintained
without having to resort to retrenchments or salary cuts, despite working constraints during the pandemic.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Our commitment towards Environmental Sustainability

Commitment to comply with
environmental obligation such as
Environmental Quality Act (EQA)
1974 and Environment Protection
Enactment 2002.

Commitment to continually improve
environmental management system
to enhance the environmental
performance.

The Group is committed to upholding the importance of environmental obligations in its business activities, particularly for its
involvement in the port operations, which impacts the environment.
We continue our efforts in minimising environmental impact from our business operation through innovation and frequent
improvements in environmental management. Our mission is to achieve zero environmental major incident or non-compliance to
environmental legal requirements guided by our Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Policy and Green Port Policy.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Commitment on the protection
of the environment, including
management of pollution.

Our
Leadership

Our commitment is based on the following principles:

Balance

Stewardship

Protect the Community and
Environment Health from Harmful
Effects of Port Operations.

Ensure a Balance of Environmental,
Social and Economic Concerns
are considered during Planning,
Development and Operational
Decisions.

Ensure Environmental Stewardship
through Environmental Conservation
and Compliance.

Development & Technology

Public

Partnership

Ensure Sustainability in Port
Development and Port Technology
usage.

Enhance Public Awareness on
Sustainable Development and Port
Technology usage.

Enhance Smart Partnership with
Environmental Organisations in
promoting Green Efforts.
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Green Port Policy
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COMMITMENTS TOWARDS
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

alternative energy sources which released lesser carbon
footprints.

Our environmental sustainability commitments align with the
Federal Government’s aims to promote the advancing of green
growth for sustainability and resilience towards developing
a green economy while achieving net-zero carbon emission
by 2050 as stipulated under the 12th Malaysia Plan. This is
also part of the State government’s guiding principle for its
development agenda in Sabah Maju Jaya Development Policy
(2021-2025).

Based on the compiled data from 2017-2021, there was a
declining trend in fuel consumption at port operations for the
past five (5) years.
As shown in the chart below, our port operations recorded
lesser fuel consumption by 25.0% to 943.5 tonnes in 2021
from 1,261.6 tonnes in 2017.

Fuel Consumption (Tonnes)

The Group is committed to ensuring its business operations
are environmental-friendly by implementing a wide range
of initiatives. The Green Port Policy and other related
programmes have proven to mitigate the negative impact of
our core business on the environment.

1,262
993

1,039

974

944

2019

2020

2021

REDUCTION IN CARBON FOOTPRINTS
As the leading port operator in Sabah, the Group continued to
diligently manage carbon emissions at our port operations by
utilising green technology in the form of investments in e-RTG,
electrified buggy and solar panels. In this way, we identified

2017

2018

Total Volume (Tonnes)

ELECTRICITY AND WATER CONSUMPTION
To ensure efficient consumption of electricity and water, we regularly track usage throughout the Group.
For the past five years (2017-2021), the Group reduced electricity consumption by 18.0% to 6,920,111 KwH in 2021 from 8,423,282
KwH in 2017. The reduction in electricity consumption can be translated into a saving of 20.0%, amounting to RM682,364.

Sabah Ports

SP Marine
2017

133,170
125,780
120,160
89,970
101,916

32,354
6,408
-

796,264
822,950
796,021
436,072
307,156

7,461,494
7,410,478
7,999,876
6,830,011
6,509,018

8,423,282
8,365,616
8,916,057
7,358,073
6,920,111

Electricity Consumption (KwH)

SCHB
Engineering
2018

2019

Suria
2020

2021

TOTAL
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SP Marine

2017

SCHB
Engineering
2018

2019

Suria

2020

TOTAL

2021

For the same period, the Group’s water usage declined significantly by 47.0% to 158,926 cubic metres in 2021 from 301,550
cubic metres in 2017. The reduction in consumption had saved 53.0% of the expenses, amounting to RM401,939.
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Sabah Ports

54,579
50,580
47,897
37,331
43,372

13,598
2,693
-

334,727
334,990
400,739
154,182
107,147
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3,020,463
2,841,968
2,847,365
2,649,135
2,590,485

3,423,367
3,230,231
3,296,000
2,842,669
2,743,025

Electricity Consumption (RM)

SP Marine

2017

2018

SCHB
Engineering
2019

2020

TOTAL

2021

Financial Statements
& Others

Sabah Ports

How We Are
Governed

122,992
158,926

301,550
248,402
216,998
14,892
5,229
9,482
2,335
-

35,329
32,575
30,954
15,079
25,948

105,578
132,978

251,329
210,598
176,562

Water Consumption (Cubic Metre)
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29,784
10,458
18,965
4,670
-

71,467
66,350
61,576
29,912
51,561

269,894
302,034

304,476
353,595

654,283
542,845
478,979

755,534
619,653
559,519

Water Consumption (RM)

Sabah Ports

SP Marine
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Engineering
2019
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TOTAL

2021

WASTE MANAGEMENT
Scheduled Waste
Most of our scheduled waste had been produced by machineries or equipment at port operations. The Group had implemented
systematic management and control measures in using, handling, storing, packing, labelling and disposing of scheduled waste, in
accordance with the Environmental Quality (Scheduled Wastes) Regulations 2005. As mandated by the EQA 1974, all scheduled
wastes were collected and disposed of by an appointed licensed contractor.
The following is a comparative chart of the Group’s scheduled waste production volume from 2017 to 2021:
E-Waste

Scheduled Waste Disposal (kg)
76,458
65,624

59,917

44,543
27,095

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

kg

The above chart showed the volume of scheduled waste
disposal dropped to its lowest in 2021 for the last five (5)
years. Lesser activities at port operations partly contributed
to this.

The improper disposal of electronic wastes (e-wastes), which
contain toxic substances and heavy metals that are harmful
to human health and the environment. The Group had been
implementing proper management and control measures
based on the Environmental Quality (Scheduled Wastes)
Regulation 2005.
E-wastes, in the form of electronic components or parts such
as printer’s cartridge, fluorescence, bulb and universal power
supply (UPS), were collected and disposed of by an appointed
licensed contractor mandated by the EQA 1974.

MARINE VESSEL WASTE MANAGEMENT

MITIGATING OIL SPILLAGE

The Group provides waste collection services for marine
vessels calling at the ports. Proper and efficient management
of vessel wastes could avoid unethical dumping of the vessel
wastes into the environment.

Reactivation of Marine Incident Team at Sabah Ports

SP Marine, a subsidiary of Sabah Ports, provides garbage and
oily waste collection services from vessels berthing at ports.
The oily waste and garbage are disposed of in compliance with
the EQA 1974 and local municipal guidelines.

A Marine Incident Team was reactivated in 2021 under the
Marine Unit of Sabah Ports to respond to marine incidences
such as oil spillage and hazardous substance release at sea,
with support from the Fire and Rescue Team and Emergency
Response Team at ports. The reactivation of this Team is part
of the proactive measures taken at port operations with an
updated Emergency Response Plan (ERP).

Below are the five-year data on vessel waste management
from 2017 to 2021:

Oil Spill Equipment for Sandakan, Tawau and Lahad Datu
Ports

Garbage Collections From Marine Vessels
(Cubic Metre)
800

The Group had invested in oil spill equipment for its ports at
Sandakan, Tawau and Lahad Datu. The efforts were taken
to enhance the existing ERP and equipment at the docks,
mainly to prevent oil spillage from spreading and reduce the
risk of accidental hydrocarbon release from polluting the
environment.

GO GREEN INITIATIVE CAMPAIGN
198

180

117

To inculcate green awareness culture, the Group continued
with several in-house activities as follows:

20
2017

2018

2019

2020

2021
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Bring Your Own Food Container Campaign

Total Volume (CBM)

Oily Waste Collection From Marine Vessels
(kg)

Usage of Environmental-Friendly Products
This initiative focuses on using eco-friendly products
such as biodegradable plastic and purchasing
materials or equipment that is environmentally
friendly. For future purchases of office items, the
Group focuses on green products.

35,000

17,500

How We Are
Governed

This campaign encourages cafeteria customers to
bring their food containers, cups or thermos bottles
when buying takeaway food or drink.

Saving Energy and Natural Resources
1,440
2017

2018

0
2019
Total Volume (kg)

2020

3,000
2021

Saving electricity and water consumption had been
ongoing campaigns that were also part of the Group’s
5S activities.
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Moving Towards Paperless
The Group actively promotes digital documents to
reduce the use of paper. While we are promoting a
paperless system in the office, we are also increasing
the usage of post-consumer waste recycled papers.
Other initiatives included recycling used paper
to print informal documents or draft letters, and
recycling used envelopes or file covers.
Digital newspapers have also been a regular practice
in our working environment.
Beach Cleaning
Beach Cleaning Programme had been actively
organised at Sapangar Bay Container Port and
Sandakan Port. A total of 197 bags of trash stranded
in the nearby area was collected at Sapangar Bay
Container Port in 2021.

COMMUNITY SUPPORT ON MARINE
ENVIRONMENT CONSERVATION
Apart from attending to the needs of environmental
responsibilities in our business, the Group also played its
role in participating in joint initiatives to preserve the marine
environment.
The Group, through Sabah Ports, collaborated with Universiti
Malaysia Sabah (UMS) in a coral relocation project at Sapangar
Bay. This was an attempt to conserve the coral habitats around
Sapangar Bay to benefit marine life.
The Group participated in the Wonders of Wilderness (WoW)
1.0 Water project, an environment programme initiated
by EcoCastle Sdn Bhd to promote public awareness on the
sustainability of the marine ecosystem in polluted areas,
coastal erosion and climate change, particularly in Sabah.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY – PEOPLE

As the Group moves towards a more sustainable, responsible
and caring organisation, we acknowledge our employees,
referred to as our People, as the most valuable asset. In
our efforts to address the critical success factors to drive
sustainable business practices, from the People perspective,
the following had been identified as of high material issues:

Talent Force
and
Development

People
Engagement

The management of our People has been guided internally by
SuriaGroup People Manual, which covers SuriaGroup People
Policies, SuriaGroup Terms and Conditions of Service as well
as SuriaGroup Code of Conduct.
The Manual has complied with the Labour Ordinance (Sabah
Cap. 67), Industrial Relations Act 1967, Trade Union Act
1969, Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994, Employees’
Provident Fund Act 1991, Employees’ Social Security
Organisation Act 1969, Income Tax 1967, Employment
Insurance System Act 2017, Personal Data Protection Act
2010, Minimum Retirement Age Act 2012, Minimum Wages
Order 2020, and any other related acts and regulations,
in providing conducive, safe and harmonious working
environment.
Diversed, developed and highly engaged People are the pillars
of the Group’s performance. Hence, talent sourcing, employee
engagement, learning and development strategies are our top
priorities in managing our talent force.
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TALENT FORCE
We promote hiring local talents to support our business sustainability in the Group. As of 2021, the Group had hired a total of
1,094 employees throughout Sabah. Of this figure, 81% were males and 19% were females.

Our
Leadership
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SCHB Engineering

2021
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Suria

Since the Group's core business is port operations, the bulk of employees of the Group are recruited for port operations. In 2021,
1,003 employees or 91.5 % of the workforce, worked for Sabah Ports.
The Group provided employment opportunities for all age groups with the right qualifications and expertise.

Financial Statements
& Others

Based on the charts above, majority of the workforce had served the Group for more than ten years over the last five (5) years. In
2021, more than half of the workforce had been with the Group for more than ten years. This showed a strong mutual relationship
between the Group and its employees built through various engagement programmes. These programmes were generally aimed
at creating a healthy working environment to encourage staff loyalty. These engagements programmes undertaken over the
years had been impactful in promoting and building a strong motivated team. Furthermore, the Group also provided competitive
benefits and remuneration packages to retain highly skilled employees and attract young talents to join the Group.
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 Employee Categories 

Non-Executive
143

146

775

137

789

2017

780

2018

2019
Male

Executive

133

134

753

752

2020

2021

42

42

48

48

49

96

97

102

100

93

2017

2018

Female

2019
Male

Middle Management

2020

2021

Female

Senior Management

21

19

18

17

18

9

12

11

12

10

28

29

29

31

33

6

6

7

5

5

2017

2018

2019
Male

2020

2021

Female

Employee Categories for 2021
51

15

142
Non-Executives

2017

2018

2019
Male

2020

2021

Female

As part of the Group’s commitment to foster equal
employment opportunities, inclusion efforts had been
practised to provide employees with equal access to
opportunities and resources. This significantly improved
the representation of diverse individuals at all levels of the
organisation. Inclusion efforts in a workplace give employees,
regardless of their background, gender or race, a sense of
worth and to feel valued.

Executive
Middle Management
Senior Management

886

In this perspective, gender equality and diversity had been
encouraged through various means to allow the Group to
progress in the market and industry. Due to the nature of the
Group’s core business being port operations, male employees
dominated from non-executive up to middle management.
However, 10 out of 15 top management positions were filled
by women.
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 Employee Qualifications 

Primary Education / SRP

SPM / STPM / SPMV / MCE / A Level / O Level

26
22

23

22

92

90

271

271

270

446

470

92

88

89

457

448
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23

2017

2018

2019
Male

2020

2021

2017

52

72

79

2017

49

89

2018

2018

Female

2019
Male

2019
Male

Diploma

50

495

2020

2021

Female

Doctorate, Master & Bachelor’s Degree

45

39

78

78

2020

2021

Female

Employees Qualification for 2021

50

48

50

54

60

80

67

64

83

88

2017

2018

2019
Male

2020
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308

2021

Female

As illustrated in the above charts, the Group’s employees were
generally well-educated with accredited qualifications.

How We Are
Governed

307

148
292
Primary Education
/ SRP

117

SPM / STPM / SPMV /
MCE / A Level / O Level

Doctorate, Master &
Bachelor’s Degree

537
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Diploma
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 New Hires 

New Hires According to Age Group

New Hires According to Gender

1

8

14
3

9

9

2
17
2017

10

2
57
2018

44
2019

3
4

1

2020

46

17

2021

2017

64
2018

8

50
2019

Below 30 Years Old

Male

31 to 49 Years Old

Female

2020

45
2021

50 Years Old and Above

The Group continued to attract new talents in 2021 with 55 recruitments, mainly for Sabah Ports under the Port Auxiliary Police
Department during the year. Based on the above charts, most new hires in the last five (5) years consisted of those aged 30 years
old and below.
 Employee Turnover 

Employee Turnover According to Age Group

Employee Turnover According to Gender

1
6

5
8

1
2

2017

9
2018

14
2019

2
2020

5

1

8

3
4

2

2

10
2021

6
2017

10
2018

7

20
2019

Below 30 Years Old

Male

31 to 49 Years Old

Female

2020

14
2021

50 Years Old and Above

Over the past five (5) years, employee turnover in the Group had been relatively low, averaging at 1.0% of its total employees. The
low turnover was partly due to favourable compensation and benefits.
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OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19
With the implementation of the MCOs in Malaysia since March 2020, all non-essential services were restricted from operating to
minimise the spread of COVID-19. Following this, all companies under the Group continued to operate under strict SOPs during
MCOs, particularly Sabah Ports an essential service provider.

A Crisis Management Team (CMT) and COVID-19 Command Centre (CCC), continued to monitor the pandemic at the workplace
and ensure the set SOPs were strictly adhered to. These included the distribution of face masks to employees and frequent
sanitisation of the workplace.

Our
Leadership

The Management had implemented Work-From-Home orders to non-operational employees except for those required to be at
the workplace to ensure the day-to-day operations of the ports were not disrupted.

Throughout 2021, there were positive cases of COVID-19 and close contacts among employees. The CMT and CCC had ensured
that those affected obeyed all instructions from the Ministry of Health, including getting swab tests and following quarantine
orders.

As of October 2021, 99.0% of the employees were vaccinated, as illustrated as follows:
Percentage
of Vaccinated
Employees

Total Employees

Total Number of
Fully Vaccinated
Employees

Total Number of
Un-vaccinated
Employees

SCHB Engineering

40

39

1

98%

Suria

40

40

0

100%

SP Marine

10

10

0

100%

1,000

981

19

98%

Company

Sabah Ports

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

In line with the National Recovery Plan and national vaccination campaign, the Group also encouraged its employees to take the
vaccine for safety of the employees.

The Group emphasises People development by providing learning platforms to build their competencies in various ways. The
Group believes that investing in Peoples’ learning and development is necessary to encourage employees to go the extra mile for
better performance and contribution.

How We Are
Governed

NURTURING OUR PEOPLE THROUGH LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

However, in the pandemic, adapting to changes deemed necessary, especially in how we conduct life-long learning programmes
based on the concept of learning, “learn, unlearn and relearn”. Such initiatives support the fourth UNSDG, promoting life-long
learning opportunities to all our People.

The unprecedented COVID-19 outbreaks and the SOP imposed did not hamper the learning and development activities in the
Group. For the year 2021, the Group had invested a total of RM331,319 (before Human Resources Development Fund deduction)
in learning and development for employees that catered for a wide range of roles and positions.

Financial Statements
& Others

In general, the Group offers comprehensive learning and development programmes to meet the needs of our People while
recognising the good work and supporting opportunities for growth and improvement.
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The financial breakdown of training investment in the last four (4) years and the total hours spent for training based on employee
categories are as illustrated below: -

343

Total Amount of Training Investment

350

100

89
116
127

82

150

111

118
131

200

164

165
163

250

73

RM ('000)

300

50
0
2018

2019
Management

2020

Executive

2021

Non-Executive

10,522

16,272

Total Training Hours Spent

1,755
1,800
1,425

1,009
1,816

5,000

2,947
2,945
5,901

10,000
855
2,448

Hours

15,000

0
2018

2019
Management

Executive

2020

2021

Non-Executive

For the year 2021, the Group had undertaken the following learning and development programmes: Talent Development

Compliance Training

On-the-Job Training

New Skills Training

Information Technology (IT)
Training

Job Attachments

Knowledge Sharing

Continuous Education
Programme

Industrial Training

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

Talent Development

Compliance Training

As part of the Group’s business sustainability initiatives,
succession planning has been our focal effort to ensure
business continuity. A structured Talent Management
Programme was reviewed and widened further to include
Executive level up to the Management.

The Group provided the employees (People) with refresher
training and those related to new or updated policies to
expose them with laws and regulations applicable to their
job functions or industry. The training programmes in 2021
included as follows:-

In 2021, as the first stage, the Group organised Accelerated
Leadership Development Programme for Sabah Ports which
identified high potential leaders among its Executives and
above as part of the Group’s succession planning.

Training Programme
SuriaGroup’s Anti-Corruption and
Bribery Policy and Procedures, and
Whistle Blowing Policy

359

In April 2021, 21 top talents were identified through an
online assessment to gauge their aptitude and behavioural
characteristics conducted by external experts and internal
interviews by our top management. The kick-off of this
programme marked a new horizon for the Group and opened
up a vast opportunity for employees to develop their careers.

Kursus Pengurusan Keselamatan
Sasaran Penting Dan Kawasan Larangan
& Tempat Larangan

30

Corruption Offences and Corporate
Liability and Whistle Blower Act 2010

77

No. of Attendees

Our
Leadership
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Training Programme

No. of Attendees

Financial Analysis with Excel

10

Competency Training for Operation Crew

13

Reachstaker and Container Forklift

19

CTTR (Container Tractor) Training

16

Rubber-Tyred Gantry (RTG) Training

6

Refresher Training – Pengenalan Senjata
Api (Introductions to Firearms)

51

Introductory Training on Record
Management Policy and Enhanced
e-Filing System

32

Total Employees Attending

147

How We Are
Governed

In 2021, some 147 employees attended training activities led
by in-house trainers. The breakdown of conducted training is
illustrated below: -

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

On-the-Job Training

New Skills Training
The Group also organised special courses to help our People
acquire new technical skills or improve existing skills. In 2021,
a total of two (2) programmes were conducted to enhance our
People skills in the industry, such as the following: Training Programme

No. of Attendees

Vessel Traffic System Operator
(Operational Level) (VTSO)

6

Combined Safety, Health & ISPS Code
Internal Auditor (CSI) for Ports

12

Financial Statements
& Others
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Information Technology (IT) Training

Job Attachment for Staff

In the Group’s efforts to accelerate the pace of digitalisation in
the working system, our People were updated with computer
skills that could assist in digitalisation adaptability to ease
the transition and hinder the loss of productivity. The Group’s
Centre of Excellence (COE) had organised IT trainings as
illustrated below: -

Job attachment was also part of a learning platform to provide
our People with practical experience in work. In 2021, the
Group organised a Job Attachment held in Kota Kinabalu Port
to expose our People in port management and planning.

Training Programme

No. of Attendees

Microsoft Excel Basic Level

20

Microsoft Excel Intermediate Level

20

Infographic Using PowerPoint

20

Excel Dashboard Business Intelligence

20

Job Attachment at Kota Kinabalu Port (from 8th to 19th November 2021)

Knowledge Sharing Session to Optimise Learning

Excel Dashboard Business Intelligence Programme

To ensure that learning continued among our People during
the pandemic, the Group switched to a hybrid orientation
experience consisting of online and on-site learning. The 2-day
hybrid orientation sessions were held in September 2021.

RTG Training Programme

Operation Crew Competency Training

The Group also provided learning opportunities through
externally held online learning programmes in conferences,
formal courses and seminars.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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Employee Education Assistance under Continuous Education
Programme (CEP)
Level of Education

No. of Employees

Master’s Degree

6

Bachelor’s Degree

19

Diploma

3

Apart from providing our People with training and
development, the Group also provides financial education
assistance to eligible employees. This encourages working
employees to further their studies in enhancing their career
paths. From 2017 to 2021, the Group had provided a total of
RM215,541 in financial assistance benefitting 28 employees
(as shown in the table above) under the Continuous
Education Programme (CEP).

Industrial Training
The Group had also provided internship and practical
trainee programmes for students from local higher learning
institutions to explore opportunities in the port industry
and corporate environment. The programme was part of the
Group’s initiatives to build its corporate image as a strong
advocate of human capital development. The Group had
previously participated in many job and career fairs for young
Sabahans.
From 2018 to 2021, RM43,545 was provided as financial
allowances for practical students. In 2021 alone, 24 students
were trained and exposed to the natural working environment
through industrial training in the Group.

Our
Leadership

87

Industrial Training
39

96,813

80,000

68,240

9

64,534

100,000

24

22

Investment in CEP (RM)

2018

2019

2020

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The financial breakdown of the CEP for the past five (5) years
is illustrated as follows:

2021

Total Students

0

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

By 2021, 15 employees were pursuing their studies under
the CEP. The breakdown, based on the levels of education is
illustrated below: Education Level

No. of Employees

Master’s Degree

2

Bachelor’s Degree

12

Diploma

1

Various engagement programmes were designed towards
enhancing employees’ engagements. By building excitement at
the workplace and recognising People’s contributions, these
engagement activities will boost motivation, thus creating
a harmonious working environment towards achieving the
Group’s objective of being

“ The Preferred
Place of
Employment”.

How We Are
Governed

20,000

PEOPLE ENGAGEMENT

Financial Statements
& Others

19,839

40,000

26,115

60,000
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Briefings on SuriaGroup People Manual
In 2021, the SuriaGroup People Manual (SGPM) was introduced and implemented to allow better human resource governance
and standardised human resource practice. A series of briefings on the SGPM via the hybrid platform (physical and online) were
conducted to update the employees on the implementation of SuriaGroup People policies and revising SuriaGroup Terms and
Conditions of Service as well as SuriaGroup Code of Conduct.

People Engagement Initiatives
Social Media Platforms
To ensure our employees are upto-date with COVID-19 related
news and regulations, especially
in the workplace, the Group
utilised various social media
platforms, namely WhatsApp,
Facebook and Instagram, to
share the Company’s stances.
The Group had maximised
these platforms to channel
information about job vacancies,
festival greetings and other
information relating to
employment and other essential
updates.
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The Group had organised several programmes during
festivities such as Hari Raya Aidilfitri, National Day and Year
End. This was done either virtually or physically, with strict
compliance to SOPs. They were organised to reduce the
employer-employee gap, boost morale, and nurture a more
harmonious working environment. The Group had made sure
that there was continuity in tradition to keep our employees
engaged, albeit in the new norm amidst the COVID-19
pandemic.

Our
Leadership

Engagements through Festivities
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SuriaGroup Long Service Award

In 2021,

a total of 60
employees
received SuriaGroup Long
Service Awards to appreciate
and recognise long-serving
employees for their dedication
and loyalty to the Company.

→
Some of the recipients for the
SuriaGroup Long Service Award
presented by the Management
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Health Talks

How We Are
Governed
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To keep employees abreast with the latest health issues about
the pandemic, the Group People organised several talks in
2021. One of them was on vaccination awareness by inviting
medical experts to share the benefit of vaccination and lower
the risk of infections by the COVID-19 virus.

Financial Statements
& Others

Amidst the hype of the pandemic, the Group had highlighted
awareness on other critical diseases. Health awareness talks
on “Help Protect Yourself from Human Papilloma Virus (HPV)”
and “Your Role in Protecting Against Pneumococcal Disease”
were respectively organised.
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Financial Literacy Talk
The pandemic had hurt the livelihood of most people since the outbreak of
COVID-19 in 2019. Many had lost jobs and income as some industries could not
sustain their employment.
The Group realised that some employees had been facing financial difficulties,
especially when their household income was inflicted. A three (3) days programme
on better financial planning and credit management was conducted virtually (online)
in collaboration with the Agensi Kaunseling dan Pengurusan Kredit (AKPK) in
September 2021. Amongst the topics that were presented during the session were
“Mengharungi Cabaran” (Facing The Challenges), “Kenali Traffic Kewangan Anda (Know
Your Financial Traffic)”, “Beringat Sebelum Kena (Take Precautions Before Getting Hit)”,
and “Urus Wang Minda Tenang (Manage Your Money For Peace of Mind)”.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY – STAKEHOLDERS AND COMMUNITY

At the Group, we understand and appreciate the critical roles of each of our stakeholders in sustaining our business operations.
We engaged actively with our various stakeholders to keep them informed with updates and, more importantly, to get feedback
on creating and adding value for them. Our programmes align with the Group’s mission of caring for the environment and
community within which we operate.
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SERVING OUR STAKEHOLDERS
As a public-listed company involved in port operations and port-related business, property development and construction,
stakeholder engagement is crucial in providing critical inputs necessary for our sustainability plans, policies and strategies to
reflect the interests of all those we serve and engage with.

Engagements with
Government and Local
Authorities

Engagements with Port
Users and Customers

Sabah Logistics Forum

Investor Relations
through Engagements
with Fund Managers and
Analysts

Website Updates and
Email Alerts

CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY
Community engagement has been an important avenue for the Group in giving back to society. The Group’s social engagements
with the community for 2021 continued to focus mainly on the COVID-19 reliefs, enhancements of rural education and improving
social welfare.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Annual or Extraordinary
General Meetings

Our
Leadership

The engagements with stakeholders were undertaken through a variety of channels:

Financial Statements
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It had been two (2) years since the outbreak of COVID-19 that affected livelihoods, especially the low-income groups in both
urban and rural areas as well as flood victims in Sabah. Most assistance by the Group in 2021 aimed to ease the burden of those
affected by the pandemic and natural disasters. Through its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programmes, the Group had
extended its assistance to the local community in need through financial donations or distributions of essential food supplies.
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The CSR activities and engagements during 2021 were as follows:
SOCIAL WELL-BEING
INITIATIVE

CONTRIBUTION

OBJECTIVE

SOLUTION

BENEFICIARIES

Donation of Hari
Raya cookies to Sabah
Security Forces

Contribution of Hari
Raya cookies worth
RM10,800

To show appreciation
to the Security Forces
being on duty

Participation in the
State’s Hari Raya
cookies distribution to
Security Forces

Security Forces in
Sabah

Sponsorship of
mattress sets to SK
Kawiyan’s hostel in
Ranau

To improve the quality
Donated 90 sets of
mattresses, pillows, bed of daily life of boarded
sheets and pillowcases students in rural areas
worth RM14,940

RM5,000
Donation to Single
Mothers Association
(Persatuan Ibu Tunggal)

The school and the
Provision of comfort
students
facilities in the hostel
for the students in rural
areas

To lessen the burden of
single mothers

Provision of financial
assistance to single
mothers

Single mothers
identified by the
association

Ramadhan Outreach
to villagers at Sapangar
Bay

Food aid assistance
worth RM25,000

To ease the burden
of villagers affected
by the COVID-19
pandemic during
the Holy Month of
Ramadhan

Distribution of food
aids to the villagers
affected by the
pandemic

250 families from three
(3) villages, namely, Kg
Gentisan, Kg Kuala and
Kg Numbak located
nearby Sapangar Port

Ramadhan Outreach to
orphanage homes

Food donations worth
RM11,000

To provide essential
food necessities for the
orphanages during the
pandemic in the Holy
Month of Ramadhan

Delivery of essential
food supplies to the
homes

The orphanages
at Rumah Amal
Kingfisher, in Kota
Kinabalu, as well as
Rumah Tarbiyatun
Nisa and Home Tuaran
Rumah Anak Yatim,
both in Tuaran

Ramadhan Outreach at
Tawau

Food aid worth
RM1,785

To ease the burden of
the school affected
by the COVID-19
pandemic during
Ramadhan

Distribution of food aid
to the students at the
school

50 students at
Madrasah Tahfiz
Al-Quran Ar-Rayyan
at Bandar Sri Indah,
Tawau

Ramadhan Outreach at
Lahad Datu

Monetary and food
items worth RM4,750

To lessen the burden
of the less fortunate
communities during
Ramadhan

Monetary assistance
and distribution of food
aid to the communities
in need

Two (2) mosques,
Ma’ahad Tahfizul Quran
and 25 “asnaf” at Kg.
Nurul Maarif, Lahad
Datu

Ramadhan Outreach at
Sandakan

Food and monetary
assistance worth
RM7,500

To lessen the burden
of nearby mosques
and charity homes
during the COVID-19
pandemic

Monetary assistance
to nearby mosques and
food aid contribution to
charity home

Two (2) mosques,
namely Al-Falah and
Nur At-Taqwa as well as
Rumah Amal Selawat in
Sandakan

Donation by Sandakan
Port to villagers

Food aid worth RM500

To ease the burden
of villagers affected
by the COVID-19
pandemic

Distribution of food aid
to the villagers in need

30 families from Kg.
Bokara, Sandakan
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INITIATIVE

CONTRIBUTION

OBJECTIVE

SOLUTION

BENEFICIARIES

Donation to the Pink
Ribbon Association

RM3,000

To provide moral
support to cancer
patients

To give financial
assistance to the
association

The affected patients

Projek Bendera Kota
Kinabalu

RM6,000

To assist the
communities affected
by the pandemic

The communities in
Providing financial
need around Kota
support to Skuad
Komuniti Prihatin Sabah Kinabalu
as the project organiser

Donation for flood
victims

Contribution of
essential food items
worth RM14,180

To ease the burden of
the affected villagers/
victims of the flood
disaster

Distribution of food
aid to the flood victims
through a local church

Program Pautan Kasih in
Tenom

RM13,000

To support the local
communities in Tenom
affected by floods and
the pandemic

The affected
Collaboration with
Persatuan Sukarelawan communities in three
(3) villages, namely
Daerah Tenom
Kampung Jawa Uloi,
Kampung Amboi and
Kampung Makakumpai,
Tenom

RM8,000
Sponsorship to
Wonders of Wilderness
(WoW) 1.0 Water
project

To create public
awareness on the
sustainability of the
marine ecosystem
especially in the areas
of pollution, coastal
erosion and climate
change

Collaboration with
EcoCastle Sdn Bhd
for the environment
program focused on
conservation and
protection of the
marine eco-system

The general public and
target groups involved
in marine ecosystem
preservation works

Christmas Outreach

To lighten the burden
of orphanages during
Christmas and to
brighten up the mood
during celebrations

Distribution of food
necessities to the
charity homes

The orphans at four
(4) orphanages around
Kota Kinabalu, namely
Care Haven, Rumah
Bukit Harapan, Rumah
Bakti Hope and Jireh
Home

Contribution to CILT
RM10,000
Sabah for Flood Victims

To ease the burden
of the affected flood
victims

Distribution of food
aid, face masks and
hand sanitisers to the
affected victims

300 families from
Kampung Pinapah
Kondis and Kampung
Maang in Penampang

Sponsorship to
ICOMSA 2022

To create marine
& aquaculture
conservation
awareness to the
community

Participation in the
Public Conference &
Exhibition

Local and International
Community

RM1,000

How We Are
Governed
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The affected villagers
at Sugud-Maang,
Penampang
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RM10,000
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SOCIAL WELL-BEING
INITIATIVE

CONTRIBUTION

OBJECTIVE

SOLUTION

BENEFICIARIES

COVID-19 Aid for Kg.
Kuala Menggatal

Food aid worth
RM5,100

To ease the burden
of the communities,
especially during the
COVID-19 pandemic

Distribution of food aid
to the villagers

100 families of Kg.
Kuala Menggatal

Donation to the Sabah
Society of The Deaf

RM1,000

Provision of financial
To assist the deaf
society in taking care of assistance through the
charity body
its members

Tabung Khas COVID-19
Universiti Malaysia
Sabah

RM3,000

To provide aid to
students affected by
the pandemic

Collaboration with
Universiti Malaysia
Sabah (UMS)

Sabah Ports – UMS
Coral Relocation CSR
Project at Sapangar
Bay

RM20,000

To conserve the coral
habitats around
Sapangar Bay for
promotion of marine
life

Relocation woks on the Local communities and
affected corals to a new the general public
suitable habitat

Donation to Kelab
Hiburan, Kebajikan
dan Sukan – MOF Golf
Charity Tournament
2021

RM2,600

To raise funds for
Yayasan Kebajikan
Negeri Sabah for its
charity activities

Collaboration with
Kelab Hiburan,
Kebajikan dan Sukan
of Ministry of Finance,
Sabah

The deaf society

UMS students
quarantined at the
university ‘s hostel

Local communities

Corporate Overview
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Ramadhan Outreach to
Rumah Tarbiyatun Nisa, Tuaran

Ramadhan Outreach to the
villagers of Kg. Nurul Maarif,
Lahad Datu

Donation to Madrasah Tahfiz AlQuran Ar-Rayyan Bandar Sri Indah,
Tawau

Ramadhan Outreach to Home
Tuaran Rumah Anak Yatim dan
Maahad Tahfiz

Ramadhan Outreach to Rumah
Amal Selawat, Sandakan

Ramadhan Outreach to villagers of
Kg. Bokara, Sandakan

Donation to Skuad Komuniti
Prihatin Sabah

Donation to Wonders of
Wilderness (WoW) 1.0 Water
Project

Donation to Persatuan
Sukarelawan Daerah Tenom

Donation for the flood victims at
Sugud-Maang. Penampang

Donation to charity homes in
conjunction with Christmas

Contribution to CILT Sabah for
Penampang Flood Victims

Donation to residents of
Kg. Kuala Menggatal
affected by COVID-19

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Ramadhan Outreach to the nearby
villagers at Sapangar Port

How We Are
Governed

Donation of Hari Raya cookies to
Sabah Security Forces

Our
Leadership

 SOCIAL WELL-BEING 

Financial Statements
& Others
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

CONCLUSION
The disclosures in this Statement highlighted sustainable business practices of the Group during 2021, as its consolidated efforts
to make sustainability a corporate culture. The Group will stay committed to carrying out responsible business activities that
would contribute to the well-being of the stakeholders, the communities as well as the environment.
As of 2021, the Group had contributed and supported 13 goals of the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals via the
Group’s mission as follows:
•

upholding the Group’s mission to enhance the long-term value of the Group by creating sustainable returns to our
shareholders;

•

achieving excellence in all our business undertakings;

•

embracing best practices in our business process;

•

enriching lives of our employees; and

•

caring for the environment and community within which it operates.

ALIGNMENT TOWARDS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDGs)
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HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE &
INVESTOR RELATIONS EVENTS 2021
Corporate Events
MARCH

APRIL

Our
Leadership

JANUARY

Investor Relations (IR) Events

7 April
A courtesy call from Legal Advisor to
the Chief Minister of Sabah, Datuk
Brenndon Keith Soh to Sabah Ports.

15 February
Visit by the Federal Minister in the
Prime Minister’s Department (Sabah
and Sarawak Affairs), YB Datuk Seri
Panglima Dr. Maximus Johnity Ongkili
to Sabah Ports.

9 March
Sabah Ports received a visit from Datuk
Seri Mohd Sallehuddin Hassan, the then
Senior Deputy Secretary General of the
Prime Minister’s Department.

12 April
Sabah Ports held a dialogue session with
members of the Federation of Sabah
Lorry Transportation Association.

17 February
Sabah Logistics Forum led by its
Chairperson, Datuk Ng Kiat Min, made
an online courtesy call with the Federal
Minister of Transport, YB Datuk Seri Dr.
Wee Ka Siong.

11 March
Sabah Special Envoy to BIMP-EAGA,
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Pandikar
Amin Hj Mulia paid a visit to Sabah
Ports.

15 April
Sabah Economic Advisory Council led
by its Chairman Tan Sri David Chu,
made a courtesy call at Sabah Ports.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

5 March
General Manager of PD World
International Plt Malaysia, Ir. Ahmad
Mansor Sa Bin Abu Hassan paid a
courtesy visit to Suria.

How We Are
Governed

FEBRUARY

Financial Statements
& Others

29 January
Suria received a courtesy visit from
Sabah Net Sdn Bhd, led by its Chairman,
Datuk Mohd Razali Bin Razi.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE &
INVESTOR RELATIONS EVENTS 2021

Corporate Events
MAY

11 May
Video shoot for Hari Raya Aidilfitri
greeting by TV3 featured in Malaysia
Hari Ini.

JUNE

Investor Relations (IR) Events

SEPTEMBER

NOVEMBER

17 September
The Senior Deputy Secretary General of
the Prime Minister’s Department, Dato’
Ramli Rakon paid a visit to Sabah Ports.

3 November
Visit from investors, OCI Co. Ltd. (South
Korea) & OCIM Sdn Bhd (Malaysia) led
by CEO of Invest Sabah Berhad, Datuk
Madiyem Layapan.

OCTOBER

DECEMBER

3 June
Kibing Group, a company from China
paid a courtesy visit to Sabah Ports.

6 October
Briefing on Section 17A of the MACC
Act 2009 (Amendment 2018) by Tuan
Fuad Bee Bin Basrah Bee, Ministerial
Integrity Advisor, Chief Minister’s
Department.

1 December
Datuk Ng Kiat Min briefed investors
on the current updates of SuriaGroup
via webinar hosted by RHB Investment
Bank.

29 June
Suria held its fully virtual 38th Annual
General Meeting.

12 October
Datuk Ng Kiat Min made a presentation
on SuriaGroup through a virtual
corporate briefing hosted by Malacca
Securities.

7 December
A dialogue session organised by Sabah
Ports with Sabah Shipping Agents
Association.
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ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2021

Suria was announced as the sole winner for the “Merit Award for Most Improved Corporate Governance
Disclosure” category in the MSWG-ASEAN Corporate Governance Award.
Minority Shareholder Watch Group (MSWG) was established as a government initiative to protect the
interests of minority shareholders through shareholder activism. It is one avenue of market discipline that
will encourage good governance amongst public listed companies with the objective of raising shareholders
value over time.

Our
Leadership

Merit Award for Most Improved Corporate
Governance Disclosure

Suria was recognised and admitted into the FTSE Bursa Malaysia
EMAS (FBM EMAS) Index.
As a constituent of the FBM EMAS Index, Suria will be provided with
ESG (Environment, Social and Governance) Rating in accordance with
the globally accepted FTSE4Good Methodology and Rating Model.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

FTSE Bursa Malaysia EMAS
(FBM EMAS) Index

Emerging Port / Terminal Of The
Year 2021 & Port / Terminal Of
The Year – South East Asia 2021

How We Are
Governed

Through a commendable ESG rating, Suria would be able to attract
new investors and customers as well as open up more palpable benefits such as sustainability linked financing that could help the
company’s bottom line.

Sabah Ports is honored that the international community
continues to recognize its capability as a terminal operator.
Despite a challenging year for the maritime industry, Sabah Ports
remained focused on innovating and upgrading its services and
facilities to create more value for its port users.

Financial Statements
& Others

Sabah Ports received two global awards for ‘Emerging Port/
Terminal of the year 2021’ and ‘Port/Terminal of the Year – South
East Asia 2021’ from Global Port Forum. This marks Sabah Ports’
second consecutive win after being awarded the Port/Terminal of
the Year – South East Asia in 2020.
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SURIA IN THE NEWS

FEBRUARY
17

25

Sandakan Port remains busy
amidst pandemic

SEE HUA DAILY

JUNE

THE BORNEO POST
29

Sabah on right track as main
gateway for BIMP-EAGA trade

THE BORNEO POST
Undisrupted port operations to
support Sabah economy during
pandemic

APRIL
17

THE BORNEO POST

1

Sabah on right track as main
gateway for BIMP-EAGA trade

18

THE STAR
Consolidation hubs to be set up
along Pan Borneo Highway to
boost Sabah’s logistics

Suria Capital’s revenue stabilised
despite COVID-19

2

AUGUST

THE BORNEO POST

DAILY EXPRESS
Suria Capital’s revenue rebounds
in third quarter

25

THE STAR
Suria Capital Earnings Triple

27

DAILY EXPRESS
Suria Capital included in FBM
EMAS Index

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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SURIA IN THE NEWS

SEPTEMBER
8

UTUSAN MALAYSIA

30

Petronas Marine jalankan
pengisian LNG pertama di Sabah

SuriaGroup’s 3Q2021
performance surpasses that of
last year

Our
Leadership

Suria Capital, Gabungan AQRS
scrap plans to jointly develop
One Jesselton Waterfront
project

THE BORNEO POST

8

DAILY EXPRESS
Petronas, Sabah Ports conducts
first LNG bunkering ops

DECEMBER
1

DAILY EXPRESS
RM176m gain for Suria till Sept

8

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

EDGE MARKETS

NOVEMBER

THE BORNEO POST
Sabah Ports’ maiden LNG
bunkering operations
How We Are
Governed

30

OCTOBER

Financial Statements
& Others
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SHARE PRICE AND
VOLUME TRADED IN 2021
YEAR 2021 - DAILY VOLUME TRADED AND HIGHEST-LOWEST SHARE PRICES
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YEAR 2021 - MONTHLY VOLUME TRADED AND HIGHEST-LOWEST SHARE PRICES
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1.01
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1.11

1.11
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OVERVIEW OF OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board adopts and practices a high standard of corporate governance in conducting the affairs and businesses of the Company.
The Board views this as a fundamental part of its responsibilities to protect and enhance long term shareholders’ value and the
financial performance of the Company, while taking into account the interests of other stakeholders.

Our
Leadership

The Board of Directors (the Board) presents this Statement on Corporate Governance
to provide shareholders and investors with an overview of the corporate governance
practices of the Company under the leadership of the Board for the financial year ended
2021.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Premised on this, the Board is fully committed to uphold and maintain high standards of corporate governance by adopting and
putting in practice the best principles as laid out in the following statute, best practices and guidelines:

Companies
Act 2016

Malaysian Code
on Corporate
Governance

The Statement on Corporate Governance should be read together with the Company’s Corporate Governance Report 2021
published on the Company’s website at https://suriagroup.com.my/corporate-governance/.

Financial Statements
& Others

Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad’s
Main Market Listing
Requirements

How We Are
Governed

HIGH STANDARDS
OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
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In promoting the highest standards of corporate governance, the Board adheres to the Corporate Governance Framework as
demonstrated below:

STAKEHOLDERS

Engagement

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NOMINATION/APPOINTMENT
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITEE

RISK MANAGEMENT &
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Board Oversight,
Delegated
Authority and
Accountability

GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR

GROUP EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Reporting and
Accountability

The Board presents this statement to provide an insight into the corporate governance practices of the Company under the
leadership of the Board with reference to the following principles:

Effective Audit and
Risk Management

Board Leadership and
Effectiveness

Integrity in
Corporate Reporting
and Meaningful
Relationship with
Stakeholders

ORGANISATIONAL ETHICAL STANDARDS AND
PROTECTION TO THE STAKEHOLDERS’ VALUE
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BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
The Board

Our
Leadership

The Board sets the Company’s strategic directions, values and standards, ensures that necessary resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives. The Board provides direction to Management and reviews Management’s performance. The
Board ensures that its obligations to the stakeholders are understood and met. The fundamental responsibilities of the Board
include the following:
BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

Secure critical talent
and skills which are
becoming increasingly
competitive

Understand and
manage the Company’s
risks

Have fiduciary
responsibilities to act in
the best interest of the
Company

Board Independence
The Board’s composition for the year ended 31 December 2021 complied with Chapter 15, Para 15.02 of the Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad’s Main Market Listing Requirements (Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR) in terms of the number of Independent
Directors, whereby at least two (2) Directors or one third of the Board of Directors are Independent Directors. The Company has
three (3) or 42.9% Independent & Non-Executive Directors out of seven (7) Directors as of 31 December 2021.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Define corporate
goals and strategies to
achieve it

Oversee the
performance of
the Company and
determine if the
business is being
properly managed

BOARD COMPOSITION

Non-Independent
& Executive Director

42.9%

How We Are
Governed

14.2%

Independent &
Non-Executive Director

42.9%
Financial Statements
& Others

Non-Independent &
Non-Executive Director
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Board Diversity
The Board’s composition for the year 2021 in terms of each of the Director’s industry and background experience, age, ethnic and
gender, is as follows:

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk
Yusof Hamdain Diego
Datuk Ng Kiat Min
Kee Mustafa

√

√

√
√

√

√

Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md
Salleh Bin Tun Said Keruak,
J.P.1

√

√

√
√

√

√

√

√
√

√

√

√

Female

Male

Bumiputera

NonBumiputera

√

√
√

√

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti
Danin

Gender

√
√

√

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

70 years
& above

√

√

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

Ethnic
60 – 69 years

50 – 59 years

Age
40 – 49 years

√

Business
Administration

Accounting/
Finance

√

Directors

Public Service

Economics

Sociology

Academic / Industry Experience

√
√
√

√

√

Board Attendance
Apart from complying with Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR, Director’s commitment in carrying out his/her duties and responsibilities is
affirmed by attending more than 70% of the Board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2021, except for
one (1) Director who attended 50% of the Board meetings.
NO NAME OF DIRECTOR

1

ATTENDED MEETINGS

PERCENTAGE

1.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego

8/8

100%

2.

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

8/8

100%

3.

Kee Mustafa

8/8

100%

4.

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

8/8

100%

5.

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

8/8

100%

6.

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

7/8

87.5%

7.

Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md Salleh Bin Tun Said Keruak, J.P.1

3/6

50%

Appointed on the Board with effect from 1 April 2021.
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Gender Equality on the Board

Notwithstanding the above, the Company is currently in compliance with the updated Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
(MCCG 2021), Practice 5.9 to have at least 30.0% women Directors, when recently another woman Director was appointed with
effect from 1 February 2022, which made up a total of 30.0% women Directors on the Board.
GENDER EQUALITY ON THE BOARD

Our
Leadership

In tandem with the Government’s aspiration to empower women in a leadership role of an organisation, the Board acknowledged
women presence and their contributions in key decision-making by having more than 30.0% of women participations on the
Board for year 2019 and 2020. In year 2021, the women participation fell slightly below 30.0% due to appointment of one (1) new
male Director.

28.6%

2021

71.4%
33.3%

2020

50.0%
50.0%

2019
25.0%

2018

75.0%
0

1

2

3
Male

4

5

6

7

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

66.7%

Female

The Chairman

•
•
•
•
•
•

Leads Board meetings and discussions.
Sets the Board agenda and ensures that Board members receive complete and accurate information in a timely manner.
Encourages active participation and allows dissenting views to be freely expressed among the Board members.
Manages the interface between the Board and Management.
Ensures effective communication with stakeholders.
Monitors good corporate governance practices in the Company.

How We Are
Governed

The Chairman of the Board is appointed to provide strong leadership for an effective Board and to instil good corporate
governance practices. Key responsibilities of the Chairman include:

Financial Statements
& Others

The Chairman’s profile is set out on page 45 of the Annual Report.
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Division of Roles Between Chairman and Group Managing Director
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group Managing Director to ensure that there is a
balance of power and authority in managing the Company as outlined below:
CHAIRMAN

GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR

• Ensures orderly conduct and working of the Board.
• Ensures that every Board Resolution is made
collectively and reflects the will of majority.
• Ensures that the Board agrees on the strategy
formulated by the Company and monitors its
implementation.

• Implements the policies and decisions of the Board,
oversees the operations, as well as coordinates the
development and implementation of business and
corporate strategies.
• Develops and translates the strategies into a set of
manageable goals and priorities.
• Sets the direction of the business operations,
investment and other activities based on effective risk
management framework, system and controls.

The Group Managing Director’s profile is set out on page 45 of the Annual Report.

The Company Secretary
The Board is supported by a suitably qualified and competent Company Secretary to provide sound governance advice, ensure
adherence to rules and procedures, and advocate the adoption of corporate governance best practices.
The Company Secretary is tasked with facilitating the Company’s corporate governance processes and holds primary
responsibility for ensuring that the Board’s processes and procedures are implemented efficiently and effectively. The Company
Secretary is accountable to the Board, through the Chairman, on all governance matters and reports directly to the Chairman
as the representative of the Board. The Company Secretary is appointed and shall be dismissed by the Board. All Directors have
direct access to the Company Secretary.
The tasks of the Company Secretary shall include:
MEETINGS & MINUTES
•
•
•
•
•
•

Notifying the Directors in advance of Board meetings.
Ensuring that the agenda and Board papers are prepared and forwarded to Directors prior to Board meetings.
Recording, maintaining and distributing the minutes of all Board and Board Committee meetings.
Maintaining a complete set of Board papers at the Company’s registered address.
Preparing for and attending all annual and extraordinary general meetings of the Company.
Recording, maintaining and distributing the minutes of all general meetings of the Company.

COMPLIANCE
• Overseeing the Company’s compliance programme and ensuring relevant legislative obligations are met.
• Ensuring all requirements of the Securities Commission, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, Companies Commission and
any other regulatory bodies are fully met.
• Providing counsel to the Directors on corporate governance principles and requirements as well as on Directors’ liability.
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• Maintaining a Register of the Company’s policies and procedures as approved by the Board.
• Maintaining, updating and ensuring that all Directors have access to an up-to-date copy of the Board Charter and related
governance documentation.
• Maintaining the complete list of the delegations of authority.
• Reporting at the Board meetings documents to be executed under a power of attorney in accordance with the Companies
Act 2016, and the Company’s Constitution.
• Providing any other services that the Chairman of the Board or the Directors may require.
The Company Secretary shall keep herself abreast of the changes and developments in statutory and regulatory requirements,
corporate governance and sustainability through continuous professional development. The training programmes attended by
the Company Secretary in the year 2021 are as follows:

Our
Leadership

GOVERNANCE & ADMINISTRATION

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Company Secretarial Practice for Beginners.
Listing Requirements – Updated or Outdated?
The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance – Update April 2021.
MIA International Accountants Conference 2021.
Launch of the Malaysian Board Practices Review 2020.
Embracing the Future of Integrated Reporting: Making the Business Case for Value Based Reporting.
Excel Dashboard Business Intelligence and Infographic.
The Role of the Company Secretary in ESG Governance.

The Company Secretary’s profile is set out on page 52 of the Annual Report.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

TRAINING ATTENDED BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

Clarity in the Role of the Board and Management
The Board and Management clearly draw their boundaries as directed and guided by the Board Charter as follows:

Strategy
Development and
Target Setting

• Challenges assumptions, priorities and options
developed and recommended by Management
in the strategic planning process.
• Reviews the corporate and business plans,
corporate budget and sets performance targets
for the Management.

• Develops strategic direction and plan for the
Company based on agreed strategic direction
and focus.
• Implements corporate and business plans as
per the Board-approved strategic plan and
corporate budget.
• Coordinates the development of the corporate
and business plans and the utilisation of
corporate budget across all business units.

Performance
Management

• Reviews, approves and provides feedback on
corporate Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
and targets.
• Reviews operational and financial results on a
quarterly basis, discusses material variances,
and ensures that corrective actions are taken, if
required.

• Establishes corporate Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs).
• Cascades KPIs throughout the organisation.
• Monitors KPIs with business units, investigates
variances and develops corrective actions, if
required.

How We Are
Governed

MANAGEMENT’S ROLE

Financial Statements
& Others

BOARD’S ROLE
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BOARD’S ROLE

MANAGEMENT’S ROLE

Human Capital
Management

• Selects and proactively plans for succession of
the Management.
• Reviews the performance management
philosophy.
• Endorses the development plan of those in
pivotal positions.
• Understands the pool of potential future leaders.

• Develops and implements the Company’s
performance management system.
• Evaluates leadership performance and potential
of all executives.
• Identifies the top talent pool and closely
manages their performance and identifies
training needs.

Risk Management

• Sets the Company’s risk parameters and risk
appetite.
• Understands strategic risk exposures and
ensures appropriate risk mitigation approaches
are in place.
• Considers internal and external risk factors.
• Reviews the Board Risk Policy to ensure that it
continues to remain current and relevant.

• Implements the Board Risk Policy.
• Implements risk management process of
establishing context, risk assessment and risk
treatment.
• Manages all risks within the boundaries set by
the Board.
• Instils risk management culture throughout the
Group.

Stakeholder
Management

• Considers and reviews economic impact on
stakeholders’ interests and demands.
• Supports Management in managing key
stakeholders.

• Manages all stakeholders’ interests within the
boundaries agreed with the Board.

Policies and Procedures
The Board establishes the following mechanisms with objectives to promote good business conduct and healthy corporate culture
for the Board and all employees of the Group to uphold:
AUTHORITY LIMITS
& PROCUREMENT
PROCEDURES

• Defines authority limits governing the purchase of assets, supplies, services, sub-contracting,
bidding and property development activities.
• Ensures all purchases are made in compliance with relevant and applicable policies and
procedures.
• Ensures proper evaluation and selection of suppliers.

SURIAGROUP BOARD
CHARTER

• Outlines the Board’s duties and responsibilities and acts as the reference point for the Board
in setting the overall direction and control of the Company.
• Raises the Board effectiveness to the highest standards of best practices.
• Assists the Board in assessing its own performance.

SURIAGROUP CODE
OF CONDUCT AND
DISCIPLINE

• Sets out the policies and guidelines relating to the standards of ethical conducts that all
employees are expected to adhere to.
• Ensures the Management maintains discipline and order in the workplace for employees of all
levels.
• Sets out the circumstances in which employees would be deemed to have breached the Code
and actions that can be taken against them.

SURIAGROUP
WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

• Monitors disclosures on wrongdoings as defined under the Policy in a responsible manner and
in accordance with internal procedures.
• Addresses and manages each disclosure in an appropriate manner according to gravity or
nature of the wrongdoing.
• Protects the whistleblower from reprisal as a direct consequence of making a disclosure and
safeguards the confidentiality of such disclosure.
• Treats both the whistleblower and the alleged wrongdoer fairly.

SURIAGROUP ANTICORRUPTION AND
BRIBERY POLICY &
PROCEDURES

• Provides information and guidance to the Board and employees on the expectation regarding
their business and professional conduct so as not to be involved in any act of corruption and/
or bribery.
• Provides guidance on how to identify or recognise the act of corruption and/or bribery and to
set out the procedures on how to deal with issues relating to corruption and/or bribery as well
as breaches without fear of reprisal.
• Ensures that the Group has adequate policies and procedures in place to prevent and detect
corruption and/or bribery.
• Protects the Group against possible penalties and repercussions resulting from any acts of
corruption and/or bribery committed by the Board or employees.

SURIAGROUP PEOPLE
MANUAL

• A mechanism to manage risks by staying updated with current trends in employment
standards and legislations.
• Assists the Group in establishing and maintaining consistent human resource practices in the
workplace.
• Serves as source of reference for all employees to reduce misrepresentations and promotes
industrial harmony among employees and between employer and employees.
• Promotes employees personal and professional growth.
• Provides guidance as an effective tool of communication between employer and employees
regarding employment.

BOARD RISK POLICY

• Ensures that the Board’s expectations on Management in carrying out the day-to-day risk
management activities to manage the Group’s risk exposures are being met.

Nomination/Appointment Committee
The Nomination/Appointment Committee (NAC) assists in finding a suitable candidate and recommends to the Board for a
directorship to be filled. The NAC comprises Independent & Non-Executive Directors. The current composition of the NAC is as
follows:
Attended Meeting

Attendance Percentage

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego

3/4

75%

Kee Mustafa

4/4

100%

1/1

100%

1/1

100%

Chairman
1

2

Members
Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.3
4

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

2
3
4

Resigned from NAC on 15 September 2021.
Redesignated as Chairman on 15 September 2021.
Appointed to the NAC on 15 September 2021.
Appointed to the NAC on 15 September 2021.

Financial Statements
& Others
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The NAC in making its recommendation to the Board, takes into consideration a wide range of competencies, capabilities,
technical skills and relevant business experience of the candidate to ensure that the Group continues to be competitive within the
industry segments it operates with a strong reputation for technical and professional competencies. During the year 2021, the
NAC held four (4) meetings which undertook the following activities:
5 February 2021

• Creation of a Deputy Chairman position in Sabah Ports.
• Extension of employment for the Group Managing Director.

5 March 2021

• Nomination of Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md Salleh Bin Tun Said Keruak, J.P. as Director of Suria.
• Nomination of Datuk Dr. Johnson Tee as Director of Sabah Ports.

9 July 2021

• Nomination of Hj. S. Zainal Abidin Bin S. Hassan and Encik Matbee @ Matbeh Bin Ismail as Directors
of Sabah Ports.

29 November 2021

• Nomination of Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P., Datuk Juslie Ajirol and Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @
Terence as Directors of Suria.

Board Evaluation Process
The Board undertakes a formal and objective annual self-evaluation to determine the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees
and each Director.
There are four (4) steps to elevate the Board’s effectiveness. Firstly, to conduct an assessment of the Board’s current
effectiveness. Secondly, to develop an actionable improvement programme which covers the next 12 months, and thirdly, to
commence the implementation of the programme. The Board then reviews their progress every six (6) months and refines the
improvement programme accordingly. The chart below shows the steps on how the Board through the NAC raises the level of
Board’s effectiveness:

Conduct Board
Effective
Assessment

• Chairman to lead assessment.
• Board has option to conduct assessment either in-house
or obtain external support to facilitate process.

Develop an
actionable
improvement
programme

• Based on gaps identified, Board agrees on
improvement plans.
• Set clear milestones and accountabilities.

Implement
initiative in
programme

• Individual Director or Members of
Management to lead specific initiatives.

Review
progress against
milestones

• Every six (6) months, the Board
strategises its plans to review
progress and make adjustment to
the programme as necessary.
• Annually, the Board conducts
Board evaluation and incorporate
inputs into the programme.
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Board Continuous Professional Development
The new Director appointed during the year 2021 completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) in compliance with
the Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR.

During the year 2021, the Board attended various training programmes organised by regulatory authorities and professional
bodies at the cost borne by the Company according to the Director’s entitlement. The programmes which the Directors have
attended are as follows:

Our
Leadership

In addition, the Board attended various programmes to keep themselves abreast with the latest developments in the economy
and industry. The Directors were also briefed by the Management from time to time during Board meetings on any changes in
laws and regulations that were relevant to the Company’s operations.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Corporate Board Leadership Symposium 2021 – Enhancing Governance and Ethics Towards Future Sustainability.
Board Evaluation and Succession Planning.
Understanding Boardroom Dynamics.
Listing Requirements – Updated or Outdated?
The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance – Update April 2021.
Audit Committee Conference 2021.
Part 1: Strategically Advanced Company Law & Secretarial Practice for Accountants.
Part 2: Strategically Advanced Company Law & Secretarial Practice for Accountants.
Balancing Risk Management with Sustainability Commitment – Ethics, Regulatory Compliance & Control Environment.
Mandatory Accreditation Programme.

Remuneration Committee

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

ATTENDED TRAININGS AND SEMINARS

The Remuneration Committee (RC) manages the remuneration process for the Board and Senior Management positions within
the Group. The RC reviews and recommends the Group’s remuneration policy and ensures remuneration policy reflects the
industry practice and contributions.

The RC recommends the Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration before tabling to the Board prior to endorsement by the
Members during the annual general meeting. The RC and the Board also make necessary reference to industry practice involving
comparable organisations in making the recommendation.

How We Are
Governed

The RC takes into account the demands, complexities and performance of the Company as well as skills and experience required
in determining the remuneration of Directors.

The RC is spearheaded by the Independent & Non-Executive Director. The current composition of the RC is as follows:
Attended Meeting

Attendance Percentage

2/2

100%

1/1

100%

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

1/1

100%

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin3

0/1

0%

Chairman
Kee Mustafa
Datuk Ng Kiat Min1
2

1
2
3

Resigned as member of the RC on 15 September 2021.
Appointed as member of the RC on 15 September 2021.
Appointed as member of the RC on 15 September 2021.
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During the year 2021, the RC held two (2) meetings which undertook the following activities:
5 February 2021

• Extension of service for the Chief Executive Officer of SCHB Engineering.
• Extension of service for the General Manager (Technical & Process Improvement) of Sabah Ports.
• Annual salary increment for year 2021 for Non-Executives employees of Sabah Ports.

12 October 2021

•
•
•
•

Appointment of Head (Group Corporate Affairs & Communications) of Suria.
Appointment of Head (Group Company Secretary) of Suria.
Extension of service for the General Manager (Corporate Services) of Sabah Ports.
Annual salary increment for year 2022 for Suria and Sabah Ports.

Board Remuneration
The details of remuneration receivable by Directors of the Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are as
follows:
Group

Company

Fees
RM’000

Salary and/
or other
emoluments*
RM’000

Benefitsin-kind
(RM’000)

Total
RM’000

757

-

709

48

757

1

276

60

212

1

273

3

-

48

45

3

-

48

38

-

140

60

33

-

93

Fees
RM’000

Salary and/
or other
emoluments*
RM’000

Benefitsin-kind
RM’000

Total
RM’000

-

709

48

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin
Datuk Yusof Hamdain
Diego

60

215

Datuk Seri Panglima
Dr. Md. Salleh Bin
Tun Said Keruak, J.P.1

45
102

Name of Directors
Executive Director
Datuk Ng Kiat Min
Non-Executive
Directors

Kee Mustafa
Michael Tong Yin Shiew,
J.P.

60

22

-

82

60

22

-

82

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

60

14

-

74

60

14

-

74

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti
Danin

60

11

-

71

60

10

-

70

387

303

1

691

345

294

1

640

387

1,012

49

1,448

345

1,003

49

1,397

Total Directors’
remuneration
*
1

Includes bonus, duty allowances, social allowances, leave passage and meeting allowances.
Appointed on 1 April 2021.
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EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Audit Committee (AC) plays a key role in the Company’s governance structure. The AC is positioned to rigorously challenge
and ask probing questions on the Company’s financial reporting process, internal controls, risk management and governance.

Audit Committee
The AC assists the Board in assessing the risks and control environment, oversees the financial reporting process, evaluates the
internal and external audit process, and reviews any conflict of interest situations and related party transactions. The AC meets
with the external auditors at least once in a financial year to discuss financial statements, audit findings, and their performance.

Our
Leadership

The appropriate level of knowledge, skills, experience and commitment of its members is critical to the AC’s ability to discharge its
responsibilities effectively. A strong understanding of the financial reporting process complemented with a wide range of diverse
perspectives can significantly strengthen the quality of the AC deliberations.

Majority of the AC comprises Independent Directors. The Chairman of AC has the necessary qualification in accordance with
Paragraph 15.09(1)(c) of the Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR to discharge his responsibilities. The composition of the AC is as follows:
Attended Meeting

Attendance Percentage

5/5

100%

Kee Mustafa

5/5

100%

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

3/5

60%

Chairman
Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Members

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The AC acts as a forum for discussion of internal control issues and contributes to the Board’s review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems. The AC also conducts a review of the internal audit function to ensure the
adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the Group Internal Audit Department and that it has the necessary authority to
carry out its work impartially.

Group Internal
Audit

External
Auditor

Audit
Committee

Meetings with the AC and Group
Internal Auditor are held to
discuss the audit plans, its findings
and financial statements as well
as other related matters.

The AC ensures that the Group Internal
Audit is independent of the activities it
audits. The AC meets with the external
auditor at least once in a financial year.

Financial Statements
& Others

The Group Internal Audit reports
its audit findings to the AC on
matters relating to operational,
financial and administrative
controls and compliance to the
Group’s authority limits, policies
and procedures, requirements
of the Securities Commission
and Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR,
and other applicable laws and
regulations.

How We Are
Governed

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN AUDIT COMMITTEE, GROUP INTERNAL AUDIT AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR
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During the year 2021, the AC held five (5) meetings which undertook the following activities:
29 March 2021

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reviewed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the fourth quarter ended 31 December 2020.
Reviewed audit fees and tax fees for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
Endorsed Group Internal Audit Plan 2021.
Endorsed Statement of Internal Control for inclusion into Annual Report 2020.
Reviewed the findings and key observations on the effectiveness of Internal Audit.
Endorsed the Audit Committee Report for Annual Report 2020.
Reviewed preliminary audit findings on SAGE 300 People.

26 April 2021

• Reviewed the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2020.

21 May 2021

• Reviewed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the first quarter ended 31 March 2021.

20 August 2021

• Reviewed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the second quarter ended 30 June 2021.
• Recommended appointment of consultants for Transfer Pricing Documentations for financial year
2016 to 2021.
• Updated on Group Internal Audit Department’s cross checking on Management Letter from external
auditors.
• Received status of revision of SuriaGroup’s Gift Policy.
• Reviewed Internal Audit Report on IT Audit for Sabah Ports.

15 November 2021

•
•
•
•

Reviewed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the third quarter ended 30 September 2021.
Reviewed Audit Plan Memorandum 2021 of external auditors.
Recommended write-off of steel materials for Sabah Ports.
Endorsed Group Internal Audit Plan 2022.

Risk Management & Governance Committee
The Risk Management & Governance Committee (RMGC) is responsible in maintaining a sound system of internal control that
covers not only the financial aspects but also the operations, risk management and compliance control to safeguard shareholders’
interests and the Group’s assets. The RMGC is also responsible to oversee the Group’s sustainability and integrity governance.
The management personnel are tasked with the responsibility to monitor, manage and provide reports to the Board on
compliance with policies and procedures, financial matters and the business activities of the Group.
Majority of the RMGC are Independent Directors who also sit in the Audit Committee. The current composition of the RMGC is
as follows:
Chairman
Kee Mustafa

Attended Meeting

Attendance Percentage

4/4

100%

4/4

100%

4/4

100%

0/2

0%

Members
Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli
Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego

1

1

Appointed to the RMGC on 15 September 2021.
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• Recommended the Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control for year 2020.
• Endorsed the Bahasa Malaysia version of SuriaGroup Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy & Procedures.
• Endorsed the Activity Plan 2021 for the Group Risk Management Department.

19 July 2021

• Endorsed SuriaGroup’s Project Risk Management Plan and Procedures.
• Endorsed Joint Audit & Risk Management Project Monitoring Team for SuriaGroup’s current and
future projects.

20 October 2021

• Discussed the updates on the Operational Risk Assessment Review for Sabah Ports.
• Endorsed the formation of SuriaGroup’s Integrity Unit.
• Endorsed the change of names for the Risk Management & Governance Committee and the Group Risk
& Integrity Department.
• Endorsed the implementation of SuriaGroup’s Integrity Framework and Programmes.
• Recommendations and Knowledge Sharing by Ketua Penolong Kanan, Pesuruhjaya (SPRM), Penasihat
Integriti Menteri in Compliance with Section 17A MACC Act 2009 (Amendment 2018).

20 December 2021

• Endorsed the Revised Terms of Reference for the Risk Management & Governance Committee.
• Discussed the updates on Sabah Ports’ Operational and Strategic Risks Assessment.
• Endorsed the Activity Plan 2022 for the Group Risk & Integrity Department.

INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Communication with Stakeholders
Corporate Disclosure Practice
The Company adheres to Chapter 9 of Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR on the timely dissemination of the following information to the public:
•
•
•
•

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

2 March 2021

Our
Leadership

During the year 2021, the RMGC held four (4) meetings which undertook the following activities:

Annual and quarterly operational and financial results;
Events occurred throughout the year;
Media releases; and
Minutes of general meetings.

The Company also conduct briefings and discussions with analysts and institutional investors. However, price-sensitive
information will not be discussed unless that particular information has been previously and formally disclosed to the market via
immediate announcement to Bursa Malaysia.
Investor Relations Policy

How We Are
Governed

Engagement with Institutional Investors

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating to its shareholders, investors and analysts. In the Company’s
effort to enhance communication with the shareholders, the Group Corporate Affairs and Communications Department had set
up an Investor’s email alert where the Company will update shareholders on the latest news and announcements on the Company
immediately after an announcement is released to Bursa Malaysia. This service is available to shareholders who had registered
for the email alert.
Up-to-date information is accessible via the corporate website at http://www.suriagroup.com.my.

Financial Statements
& Others

The Company has adopted an Investor Relations Policy as an obligation to maintain its corporate credibility and instil investors’
confidence in the Company by having a structured approach to the communication of material information. It is the responsibility
of the Company as a public-listed company to consistently inform the shareholders, stakeholders and the general public of the
Company’s developments, its management, operations, financial situation as well as its prospects. The Company makes every
effort to ensure that all material information is made available as freely and widely as possible. The aim is to fairly and accurately
represent the Company so that investors and potential investors can make informed investment decisions.
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I.

Financial Reports
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Company are drawn up in accordance with the
Companies Act 2016 and applicable Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia, to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at the end of the reporting period.
The Statement by Directors for preparing the Audited Financial Statements pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies
Act 2016 is set out on page 148 of this Annual Report.
The AC assists the Board in ensuring completeness, accuracy and adequacy of information by reviewing and recommending
for the adoption of information for disclosure. The AC also reviews Company’s accounting policies and the changes to these
policies as well as ensures these financial statements comply with the accounting and regulatory requirements.

II.

Conduct of General Meetings
General meetings are important platforms for the Board and Senior Management to engage with shareholders to facilitate
a greater understanding of the Company’s business, governance and performance. The Company also leverages on
technology to facilitate greater shareholder’s participation and enhance the proceedings of general meetings.

Sufficient Time of Notice
The Board, pursuant to Section 316(2) of the Companies Act 2016, ensures that shareholders are given sufficient notice at
least 21 days prior to the meeting to consider the resolutions that will be discussed and decided at the general meeting. The
notice should provide further explanation beyond the minimum content stipulated in the listing requirements for the resolution
proposed to enable shareholders to make an informed decision in exercising their voting rights. The notice includes details of the
resolutions proposed along with any background information and reports or recommendations that are relevant.
Presence of Directors at the General Meetings
The presence of all Directors at general meetings will provide an opportunity for shareholders to effectively engage with each
Director. Having the Chairman of Board Committees or Senior Management present at general meetings will facilitate these
conversations and allows shareholders to raise questions and concerns directly to those responsible.
Leverages Technology at the General Meeting
The Company has implemented an electronic poll voting system for all the resolutions set out in the Notice of Meeting at the
general meetings to expedite verification and counting of votes. The Company appointed one (1) independent scrutineer to
oversee the voting process and validate the votes casted at the general meetings.
Due to the restriction of public gathering to reduce the risk of COVID-19 infection, the 38th Annual General Meeting of the
Company had been conducted fully virtual on 29 June 2021 whereby the shareholders participated and casted their votes
remotely via TIIH Online.
Apart from serving the notice of meeting in printed copy, the Company has also served notice of meeting in electronic
transmission by providing a link and QR Code to allow the Members to obtain both the notice and annual report in a click away
prior to attending the general meetings.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT
The Company has applied most of the Principles of the MCCG practices during the financial year.
The Board will continue to make considerable efforts in working towards aligning the Company’s governance framework as far as
practicable to the Principles of the MCCG practices.
This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 30 March 2022.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE
INFORMATION
AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (ADR) OR GLOBAL
DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (GDR) PROGRAMME
During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor any
ADR or GDR programme.

PROFIT GUARANTEE
During the year, there was no profit guarantee given by the
Company.
RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RRPT)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

NO

NAME OF DIRECTOR

1.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk
Yusof Hamdain Diego

2.

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

NUMBER OF
SHARE CAPITAL
24,000

REVALUATIONS OF LANDED PROPERTY
The Company does not have a revaluation policy on landed
properties.

Our
Leadership

There were no RRPT entered into during the financial year.
None of the Directors has any family relationship with other
Directors or Major Shareholders of the Company. However,
the following Directors are holding shares either directly and
indirectly in the share capital of the Company:

SHARE BUYBACKS
During the financial year, there were no share buybacks by the
Company.

377,400

CONVICTIONS FOR OFFENCES

IMPOSITION OF SANCTION/PENALTY FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2021

None of the Directors has been convicted for offences within
the past 10 years other than traffic offences, if any.

There was no sanction or penalty imposed on the Company,
Directors and Senior Management for the financial year 2021.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

NON-AUDIT FEES

There were no material contracts between the Company and
its subsidiaries involving Directors’ and Major Shareholders’
interests.

Breakdown of the non-audit fees amounting RM80,600 paid
by the Company during the financial year 2021 are as follows:

VARIATION IN RESULTS
During the financial year, there was no variance of ten per
centum (10%) or more between the audited results of the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 and the unaudited
results previously announced.
OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

RM
Review of Statement of Risk Management &
Internal Control

12,000

Income tax computation

22,000

Tax investigation

40,000

First billing for preparation of Transfer Pricing
Documentation
Total

There was no further issuance of new options, warrants or
convertible securities during the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

How We Are
Governed

No proceeds were raised by the Company from any corporate
proposal during the financial year 2021.

6,600
80,600
Financial Statements
& Others

There is no contract relating to loans by the Company
involving Directors and Major Shareholders.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS
CONTRACTS RELATING TO LOAN
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1.

INTRODUCTION
Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Board of
Directors (Board) is pleased to provide the following Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which is intended
to provide meaningful high-level information about the adequacy and current state of the SuriaGroup’s (Group) system of risk
management and internal control.
This statement was prepared in accordance with the “Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for
Directors of Listed Issuers” endorsed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. It outlines the nature and scope of the Group’s
system of risk management and internal control during the financial year under review.

2.

RESPONSIBILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY
2.1 The Board
The Board is responsible for the overall oversight function as well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system. It holds the authority to approve the Board Risk Policy, the governance
structure and setting the risk appetite of the Group. The Risk Management & Governance Committee (RMGC), supports
the Board in the effective review of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The RMGC is also in
charge of reviewing risk exposures and ensuring resources as well as systems are in place for effective risk management
oversight.
The Board Risk Policy was approved by the Board with the objective to clarify the oversight function of the Board in
relation to specific risks and outline the Board’s expectations of the Management’s roles in supporting them in managing
the risks of the Group. The Policy also clarifies the Board’s governance responsibilities as prescribed in the Malaysian
Code of Corporate Governance. The Board’s oversight refers to the Board’s responsibility to provide the direction for
the conduct of the business and affairs of the Group in relation to the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.
2.2 The Management
The Management, led by the Group Managing Director (GMD), supports the Board in managing the Group’s day- to-day
risk management activities and discharging the Board’s governance responsibilities.
The Board Risk Policy, specifically detailed out the Board’s expectation on the Management to:
(a) Support the Board to review the effectiveness of its governance responsibilities;
(b) Support the Board in the discharge of its stewardship of the Group and oversight role;
(c) Identify significant risks affecting the Group, select the appropriate risk treatment options, and implement the
relevant risk action plans to mitigate those risks, if required;
(d) Assist the Board in developing the strategic direction and monitoring the corporate strategies and corporate plans,
taking into account the opportunities and risks facing the Group;
(e) Ensure the interest of the stakeholders are considered in all business undertakings and results in value creation;
(f) Establish operational policies and procedures and implement appropriate internal control and compliance
mechanisms;
(g) Ensure the Group’s operations and business undertakings are in compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations;
(h) Ensure employees are educated on key policies relating to business conduct and ethical behaviour; and
(i) Implement and maintain a Business Continuity Plan to enable the continuity of critical business functions in the
event of a disaster.
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GMD provides assurance to the Board that the risk management and internal control system of the group are adequate
and operating effectively based on the risk management framework. Regular senior management meetings such as the
Executive Management Committee (EXCOM) meeting and the Management Committee (MCM) meeting at the Group
level are held on a quarterly basis to review, identify, discuss and resolve strategic, operational, financial, environmental,
compliance and other key management issues.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
The main objective of the Board Risk Policy is to provide a sound risk management system to safeguard shareholders’
investments, the Group’s assets and other stakeholder interests. The Group has established an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating, managing and monitoring key risks that may hamper the achievement of the Group’s business
objectives. The Group risk profiles are monitored through the online Risk Management System (RMS). The RMS enables realtime updating of key risks based on the latest evaluation either from routine, planned or ad-hoc risk management exercise
or programme for effective monitoring, recording and managing of risks for the Group. The RMS was developed to capture
and register all key risks, their causes and consequences, and the current controls that are in place. It also captures the action
plans to achieve the range of risk tolerance acceptable by the Group.
Following the completion of each risk assessment exercise, the risk reports are reviewed and discussed with key personnel at
operating companies to ensure that risk mitigation plans are carried out within the agreed time frame. Subsequently, the risk
reports are tabled to the RMGC and the Board for notation and further direction.
Summary of Risk Management Activities
The risk management activities for the year under review are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Half yearly risk identification on new emerging risk as well as monitoring on the implementation of risk mitigation plans.
Quarterly risk management status report to RMGC and the Board for deliberation and further direction.
Training and awareness programme on Risk Management and integrity.
Developed and implemented the Group’s Project Risk Management Plan and Procedures.
Reviewed the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework.
Provided consultancy and advisory services on projects and potential business proposal.

Financial Statements
& Others
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GRI provides independent advice, monitors and promotes effective management of all risk categories and fosters
the establishment of effective risk culture throughout the Group. The Head of GRI provides quarterly reports to the
RMGC and the Board on any significant risks affecting the Group and how such risks are being managed. As GRI is an
independent function in the Group, it enables the Head of GRI to fulfil his/her responsibility effectively. The Head of GRI
reports functionally to the RMGC and the Board, and reports administratively to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and
the GMD. The respective subsidiary companies are responsible for the management of all identified risks at the company
level and for ensuring that necessary risk mitigation strategies, control mechanisms and improvement initiatives are
carried out effectively and timely.

How We Are
Governed

The Group Risk and Integrity Department (GRI) is responsible for the overall coordination and implementation of the
Board Risk Policy and is responsible in providing risk reports to the RMGC and the Board on a quarterly basis. GRI is
also responsible to ensure the Board Risk Policy and the ERM Framework continue to remain effective and relevant
to the Group. GRI serves to assist the Risk Management Working Committee (RMWC) at the holding and subsidiary
company level in identifying, analysing, evaluating and treating their key risks and exposures in support of the effective
implementation of the Board Risk Policy.

Our
Leadership

2.3 The Group Risk and Integrity Department
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RISK MITIGATION MEASURES, RESIDUAL RISK RATING AND RISK TREND
Below are the risk mitigation measures on the Group’s key corporate risks followed by the residual risk rating and the risk trend
for the year under review:
RESIDUAL RISK RATING AND RISK TREND
Risk Category
and Definition

Mitigation Measure

Residual
Risk Rating

• The Group has embarked on a five (5) year
Strategic Plan from 2019 until 2023 to drive the
Group’s business direction and goals.
• The strategic risk is managed through an
integrated process whereby the risk appetite,
Risks which affect the overall
strategic business direction, budget and business
direction of the business that
plan are aligned with appropriate oversight by the
arise from inappropriate business
Board on a yearly basis.
goals; failure in formulation,
evaluation and selection or
• The Group performs a comprehensive annual
improper implementation of
budgeting and forecasting exercise including
business strategies; lack of
development of business strategies within the five
response to market demands
(5) year corporate planning period. The Group’s
and compatibility to external
strategic directions are also reviewed every
changes.
quarter, taking into account any changes in market
Strategic Risk

Low

conditions and significant business risks.

Financial Risk
Risks that affect the ability of
the Group to meet its financial
obligations which could lead to
adverse consequences; and risks
of negative impact that arise
from an investment that could
result in unfavourable returns
and cash flow.

• Quarterly reviews are performed on the Group’s
actual financial performance versus budgeted and
other key financial indicators as agreed by the
Board.
• Proper due diligence and feasibility study are
carried out on potential investments.
• Stringent financial controls are implemented
and regulated by efficient procedures such as
the authority limit, procurement procedures and
tender process.

Moderate

Risk Trend

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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RESIDUAL RISK RATING AND RISK TREND
Risk Category
and Definition

Mitigation Measure

Residual
Risk Rating

Risk Trend

Reputational Risk
Risks associated with negative
stakeholders’ perceptions that
can adversely impact the Group’s
ability to maintain existing
business relationship or establish
new relationship and continued
access to sources of funding.

People Risk
People risks are risks to the
organisation as its performance
is driven by the workforce’s
competency, capabilities as well
as effective job deployment,
talent management and
succession planning.

• During the pandemic, the Group has activated its
business continuity plan to ensure the continuity
of its business operation and services.

Low

• Maintaining a safe and healthy work environment
is one of our key priorities for the employees,
business partners and other stakeholders. This is
done through strict compliance to HSE standards
and other Government regulations and directives.
• The Group performs proactive and structured
investors’ relation programmes to enhance the
Group’s market presence and relationship with the
investing public.
• The Group’s engagements with the stakeholders
and the general public were undertaken via
high impact Corporate Social Responsibilities
(CSR) programmes in collaboration with the
Non- Governmental Organisations (NGOs)
focusing on environmental, education, community
empowerment and social.

Low

• The talent development programme in the
Group aims to support the succession planning
for the Group. The programme is developed to
optimise manpower needs, develop competencies,
capabilities and leadership among the employees.
• The Group emphasises on people development
by providing learning platforms to build their
competencies in various ways. Customised
training programmes are also in place to groom
and nurture staff at all levels to enhance their
competencies, knowledge and skills.

Moderate

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Risks that impact the delivery
of the Group’s services and
products resulting from
inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or
from external events.

How We Are
Governed

Operational Risk

Our
Leadership

• GRI continues to conduct its biannual risk
assessment process to ensure that risks related to
operations are properly addressed.
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RESIDUAL RISK RATING AND RISK TREND
Risk Category
and Definition

Legal and Compliance Risk
Risks arising from changes
in legislation, regulatory
landscapes and policies of
regulators and governments that
could have either favourable
or unfavourable effect on the
Group’s operations, financial
condition and prospects.

Mitigation Measure

Residual
Risk Rating

Risk Trend

• The Group undertakes close monitoring and
tracking of changes in the legislation, regulatory
landscapes, policies, financial reporting and
corporate tax planning to ensure continuous
compliance.
• The Group established its Anti-Corruption and
Bribery Policy and Procedures (ACB P&P) to
address the risk of unethical business conduct and
corrupt practices throughout the Group.
• GRI together with Group People (GP) take the
lead in the implementation of the ACB P&P which
include the annual training and briefing for all
employees. All employees are required to sign a
declaration form to acknowledge and pledge their
commitment towards a zero-tolerance policy
against all forms of corruption and bribery.

Low

• Group Internal Audit Department (GIA) shall
monitor the implementation of the ACB P&P
via regular audits on the effectiveness of the
implementation of the ACB P&P, including but not
limited to the reporting and escalation processes
of issues relating to corruption and bribery. This
is to ensure that the ACB P&P continue to remain
effective and relevant.
RESIDUAL TREND AND INDICATOR LEGEND
Risk Trend

Indicator

Definition

Increasing

Residual risk is expected to increase
over the next financial year.

Stable

Residual risk is expected to change
over the next financial year.

Decreasing

Residual risk is expected to decline
over the next financial year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT APPROACH DURING AND POST COVID-19

RESILIENCE

• To meet the challenges posed by the pandemic, the
Group have to react in agile and decisive ways.

• Utilise ERM processes and tools to strengthen the
Group’s performance.

• Collect data and insights on lessons learned from the
pandemic, and then using these to prioritise actions
to enhance business value today and build strategic
resilience for tomorrow.

• To build and maintain resilience, it is important that
the Group keeps an eye on potentially high impact
events in the short-term and the long-term.

RECOVERY

• To be vigilant of any changes in the market,
government rules, current crisis, pandemic and
climate change.

NEW REALITY

• Enhancement of Business Continuity Management
(BCM) policy and procedures to recover from any
negative impact of COVID-19.

• Be equipped and ready for any circumstances.
This is vital for the Group to navigate the risks and
opportunities ahead.

• Activation of Crisis Command Center (CCC).

• Enhancement and review of policies, procedures
and systems is inevitable to ensure that the Group
is resilient to weather any changes in the business
environment.

• Enhancement of IT Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP).

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

REACTION

How We Are
Governed

4 RISK MANAGEMENT APPROACH DURING AND POST COVID-19

Our
Leadership

The unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has changed the way we do our business. The crisis has uncovered how
vulnerable businesses are to systemic events and ill-equipped the traditional risk management approach is to handle the
effect of the pandemic. As a lesson learnt from the pandemic, we have reviewed our risk management approach to ensure
that we stay resilient and effective during and post COVID-19. The approaches are further explained below.
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6.

INTEGRITY
SURIAGROUP INTEGRITY AND GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

OVERSIGHT
FUNCTION

Group Risk and Integrity
(GRI)

Risk Management and
Governance Committee
(Governing Body)

GMD
(Top Management)

DO
1. Formulation of adequate
procedure
2. Gift register and records
3. Section 17A MACC Act 2009
Integrity training, awareness,
and communication
4. Integrity Pledge and signing
of the declarations form
5. Due diligence

OUR
COMPLIANCE
JOURNEY

CHECK
1. Organisation Anti-Corruption
Plan (OACP) by GIACC
2. ISO37001:2016 Anti Bribery
Management System (ABMS)
3. Internal audit reviews
4. Integrity survey and
questionnaires

02

01
03

PLAN

04

ACT

1. SuriaGroup Integrity Framework
2. SuriaGroup Enterprise Risk
Management Framework (ERM)
3. Board Risk Policy
4. SuriaGroup Corruption Risk
Management (CRM)
5. SuriaGroup Anti-Corruption and
Bribery Policy and Procedures (ACB
P&P)
6. Acknowledgement of the ACB P&P
and zero-tolerance commitment
7. Create Integrity Unit & appointment
of Integrity officer

1. Continuous enhancement and
improvement of programme
and plan initiatives
2. Monitoring and review the
effectiveness of;
a) Policy and Adequate
Procedures
b) CRM Framework
c) Whistleblowing Policy
d) Corporate integrity system
3. Non conformity corrective
actions (audit)

T
S
U
CORE
PRINCIPLES

R
T
TOP LEVEL
COMMITMENT

RISK
ASSESSMENT

UNDERTAKE
CONTROL MEASURES

SYSTEMATIC REVIEW,
MONITORING &
ENFORCE

TRAINING &
COMMUNICATION

PRIME MINISTER’S DEPARTMENT GUIDELINES ON ADEQUATE PROCEDURES PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (5) OF SECTION 17A UNDER THE MALAYSIAN ANTI-CORRUPTION ACT 2009
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The Board continues to focus on strengthening the Group’s corporate integrity and ethical business conduct. In line with
Section 17A of the MACC Act 2009 (amendment 2018), the Group has introduced the SuriaGroup Anti-Corruption & Bribery
Policy and Procedures (ACB P&P). The ACB P&P sets out the responsibilities of the Board of Directors and employees of
SuriaGroup to adopt and observe a zero-tolerance policy against all forms of corruption and bribery in compliance with the
Malaysia laws and regulations.

•
•
•

To provide information and guidance to the Board of Directors and employees on the expectation regarding their
business and professional conduct so as not to be involved in any act of corruption and/or bribery;
To provide guidance on how to identify or recognise the act of corruption and/or bribery and to set out the procedures on
how to deal with issues relating to corruption and/or bribery as well as breaches of the ACB P&P without fear of reprisal;
To ensure that the Group has adequate policies and procedures in place to prevent and detect corruption and/or bribery;
and
To protect the Group against possible penalties and repercussions resulting from any acts of corruption and/or bribery
committed by the Board of Directors, employees or any associated persons.

The Group’s Integrity and Compliance Framework was formulated to serve as a guidance in implementing the Group’s
integrity and compliance programmes and plans. The Integrity and Compliance Framework also provides guidance for the
Group in completing its adequate procedures in accordance with Section 17A of the MACC Act 2009 (amendment 2018).
The Framework is based on the Organisational Anti-Corruption Plan (OACP) issued by the National Centre for Governance,
Integrity and Anti-Corruption (GIACC), Malaysia.
The Group has the following policies and procedures in relations to integrity and compliance practices:
•

SURIAGROUP CODE OF CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE
This policy and procedures outline the ethical behaviour standard and conduct that all employees are expected to adhere
to.

•

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

•

Our
Leadership

The main objectives of the ACB P&P are:

SURIAGROUP WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY
This policy and procedures provide an avenue for all employees and third parties or members of the public to disclose any
improper conduct or unethical behaviour or any form of corruption and to provide protection for those made the report.
SURIAGROUP ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICY & PROCEDURES
This policy and procedures provide information and guidance to the Board and employees on the expectation regarding
their business and professional conduct so as not to be involved in any act of corruption and/or bribery. The policy and
procedures protect the Group against possible penalties and repercussions resulting from any acts of corruption and/or
bribery committed by the Board, employees or its related parties.

How We Are
Governed

•

Summary of Integrity and Compliance activities

•
•
•
•

Implementation and rollout of the SuriaGroup ACB P&P.
Awareness training on SuriaGroup ACB P&P and Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures.
Signing of corruption-free pledge by Board of Directors and employees.
Reviewed the Group’s Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures.

Financial Statements
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The Integrity and compliance activities for the year under review are as follows:
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BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT (BCM)
The Group recognises that sustainable business operations are important in providing the customers and stakeholders with
uninterrupted services. The BCM Programme for the Group was developed to identify the Group’s risk exposure to internal
and external threats including, disruption to business operations, environmental disaster and crisis.
GRI has adopted the ISO 22301:2019 (Business Continuity Management Systems) to strengthen the risk management
approach to safeguard its business operations and the Group’s ability to respond to any crisis. The Business Continuity Plan
(BCP) and the Business Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) enhance the Group’s readiness in dealing with disruptive incidents,
reduces the adverse impact and ensure continuity of the Group’s critical functions within a reasonably acceptable period of
time.
The BCM programme is part of our ongoing commitment in ensuring our business operation is resilient to weather any
incidents. The continuity of services to our customers, together with all the supporting business processes, is fundamental to
meeting our business objectives.

BCM Framework
Program Governance and Program Management
Analyze
(Define)

Develop
(Prepare)

Implement
(Readiness)

Current State
and Process
Definition

Response and Recovery Strategies

Resources
Acquisition and
Implementation

Crisis Management and
Emergency Response
Business Impact
Analysis (BIA)

Operational Response (Business and IT)
Loss of
Facility

Risk
Assessments
(Site/Vendor)

Loss
Loss of
Resources
Technology
(People)

Training and
Awareness

3rd Party
Vendor

Validation

Exercising and
Testing

Continuous Improvement and Quality Assurance

The Group BCM Framework has been designed to provide a structured approach in managing business continuity in the
Group by enabling prompt and effective response and recovery before, during and after a crisis.
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SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Objective

GIA’s objective assurance encompasses both consulting and advisory roles. It aims to add
value, improve the Group’s operations, and accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve internal control, risk management, and
governance processes.

Responsibility

In order to fulfill its responsibilities, GIA is responsible to conduct audits on the systems of
internal control and risk management, report on the weaknesses of the systems and provide
recommendations for improvement to Management. As GIA is an independent function, it
reports functionally to the Board through the Audit Committee (AC) and administratively to
the GMD and the CFO. GIA has unrestricted access to the Board.

Approach

GIA develops a risk-based audit plan annually, which focuses on risks at potential areas based
on the Group’s risk priorities as well as those identified by the GRI Department. Apart from
the planned audits, GIA conducts follow-up audits on previous audit reports to ensure that
Management undertakes appropriate actions to address the reported audit issues. GIA may
also perform ad-hoc audits upon the AC or the Board’s requests.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

GIA is an independent function within the Group and it provides objective assurance to the Board that the system
of internal control designed and implemented by Management are adequate to ensure that assets are safeguarded
against the risk of waste and loss, information is complete and accurate, financial statements are reliable, and business
operations are conducted in accordance with the Group’s policies and procedures as well as the provisions of applicable
laws and regulations.

Our
Leadership

8.1. Overview of Group Internal Audit Department (GIA) Functions and Responsibilities

The GIA’s processes and activities are guided by the approved GIA Charter and are aligned with internal audit standards,
i.e. The International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF).
8.2. Key Elements of the Group’s Internal Control

How We Are
Governed

The key elements of the Group’s internal control structure that mirrors the key components of the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisation (COSO) Internal Control Integrated Framework are as follows:

Authority &
Responsibility

Risk
Management

Monitoring

KEY
INTERNAL
CONTROL

Information &
Communication

Control
Activities
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A. Authority and Responsibility
•

Organisational Structure
The Group’s system of internal control is supported by a formal organisational structure, which defines the
segregation of roles and functions to facilitate proper implementation of the Group’s strategies and day-to-day
business activities and defines appropriate lines of accountability and levels of authority which are essential
in promoting effective and independent stewardship. Qualified and experienced management personnel have
been appointed to oversee the operating companies to deliver the Group’s intended results and performance.

•

Establishment of Committees
Several Board Committees and Management Committees have been instituted to strengthen governance,
improve accountability and assist the Board in discharging its duties. The committees are:
i.

ii.

Board Level
The composition of the Board complies with Paragraph 15.02 of the Bursa Malaysia’s Main Market Listing
Requirements (MMLR) as more than one-third of its members are independent directors. A balanced
composition of independent directors enables a practical and objective check and balance on the Board’s
deliberation and decision making. The Board delegates specific responsibilities to the various Board
Committees with clearly defined terms of reference to assist the Board in discharging its duties. The Board
Committees that had been set up are as follows:
AC

> AUDIT COMMITTEE

RMGC

> RISK MANAGEMENT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

RC

> REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

NAC

> NOMINATION/APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE

Management Level
On the Management level, several committees have been established to monitor and ensure effective
management and delivery of outcomes of different functions, roles, responsibilities and activities of every
department. The Management or Working Committees that had been set up are as follows:
SURIA EXCOM

> SURIAGROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

SABAH PORTS EXCOM

> SABAH PORTS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

MCM

> SURIA MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

TEC

> TENDER EVALUATION COMMITTEE

GP COM

> GROUP PEOPLE COMMITTEE

SPWC

> STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKING COMMITTEE

SG ITSC

> SURIAGROUP IT STEERING COMMITTEE
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B. Risk Management
Sound risk management framework is in place to ensure that the Board’s expectations on Management in carrying
out the day-to-day risk management activities to manage the Group’s risk exposures are being met. This enables
effective risk management in supporting the Group’s ability to deliver its vision, mission and corporate strategies.

Policies and Procedures
The Group has established relevant Board-approved corporate policies and operational policies, procedures,
and standard operating manuals. The Management has approved to guide employees in carrying out their
day-to-day tasks and responsibilities and ensure that adequate internal control mechanisms are embedded in
the business operations. In providing the continued relevance and effectiveness of the policies and procedures,
periodic reviews are performed regularly and the policies and procedures are updated as and when necessary.
Changes to the policies and procedures will undergo a proper approval process either by the Board for key
corporate policies or by Management for the operating policies, procedures and manuals.

i.

Information Technology (IT) Policy
Effective 22 September 2020, the revised Group’s IT Policy 2.0 was implemented to ensure that all
computing facilities, services, IT programs and data generated by the IT systems are adequately protected
against loss, misuse or abuse. The IT Policy outlines the responsibilities of the IT Department of the Group
in the management, operations, and maintenance of IT assets, information systems, and IT infrastructures
and facilities. The IT Policy also details the responsibilities of the IT users, who are the employees of the
Group.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

During the year under review, the following key policies and procedures were revised and/or implemented:

In-house training for employees was conducted in phases, starting in December 2021, to inform all
employees on the implementation of the revised IT Policy.
ii.

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Controls
The HSE Department undertakes all HSE monitoring activities for the Group through enhanced HSE
controls, which consists of a set of documented procedures aimed to protect the health and safety of each
employee. It also outlines safe and acceptable industry practices to limit the impact of the Group’s activities
on the environment.
In collaboration with the Group People, the HSE Department conducted in-house briefings on
‘Immunisation COVID-19’ in May 2021 to brief and encourage all employees to be vaccinated against the
dreaded virus.

How We Are
Governed
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C. Control Activities

iii. Code of Conduct
The Group’s Code of Conduct and Discipline Handbook has been established to ensure that the employees
uphold the highest standards of integrity and behaviour. The Handbook has undergone comprehensive
review and was approved by the Board on 22 September 2020. The Group’s ‘Code of Conduct 2.0’ was fully
implemented effective 1 January 2021.
In-house virtual briefings on the Group’s ‘People Manual Handbook’ were conducted in April until July 2021
to brief all employees on the new Group Policies and revision of the Group’s Term and Condition of Service
and Code of Conduct.
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iv. Record Management Policy
The objective of the Record Management Policy is to establish a guideline for the employees in managing
official documents and records in accordance with the Group’s requirements and complies with applicable
legal requirements. The Record Management Policy sets out the methodology for categorising and
referencing documents and records to facilitate proper management, retrieval and disposal.
v.

SuriaGroup Anti-Corruption & Bribery Policy & Procedures
With the enforcement of Section 17A of the MACC Act 2009, it has been established that a commercial
organisation is exposed to criminal liability (Corporate Liability) for the corrupt activities of its employees
and/or person associated with the commercial organisation where such corrupt activities are carried out for
the commercial organisation’s benefits or advantages.
In connection to this, the Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy against all forms of bribery and corruption.
Guided by the SuriaGroup Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy & Procedure (ACB P&P), the Group is
committed to conducting its businesses professionally, fairly and with integrity and transparency in
compliance with all applicable anti-bribery and corruption laws in all jurisdictions in which we operate.

•

Assets Management - Insurance
Adequate insurance is in place to ensure that the Group’s assets are sufficiently covered to minimise any
material loss. The Group has spent around RM686,000 on insurance premiums to cover all its assets with a sum
insured of well over RM1.1 billion. A large majority of the Group’s asset base is made up of port infrastructure,
cargo handling equipment and other port amenities.

D. Information and Communication
•

Access to Information and Communication Channels
Management and employees obtain and use relevant information from internal and external sources.
Information is disseminated throughout the Group through a unified platform known as the SG Portal.
Currently, the portal allows employees to access their authorised internal systems such as e-Medical and
e-Leave; which are readily accessible from anywhere. The portal is also used to share circulars, announcements,
manuals, standard operating procedures (SOP) and polices for easy reference to the employees. This will enable
employees to carry out their functions and responsibilities effectively and to receive clear messages from the
Senior Management. On the other hand, external communication enables inbound and outbound dissemination
of information with external parties in response to business requirements and expectations.
The Group’s IT systems have been designed with appropriate internal controls in place to ensure and maintain
their integrity. Data is adequately safeguarded through a system-wide restriction on access to a specific
category of information datasets. The Group Information Technology Department (GIT) is accountable for the
provision and management of IT infrastructure and services.
Internal and external communications are governed by the Group’s IT Policy (Policy) and the Employee’s Code
of Conduct (Code). During the year under review, the Policy and the Code have been revised to strengthen
controls governing the use and handling of information and communication channels.
The Policy and Code were implemented in 2021 with a series of awareness sessions held in phases, and it is still
ongoing. This ensures that all employees are aware of their responsibilities for the security and protection of
information and data over which they have control.
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Monitoring

Quarterly Performance Reviews
Quarterly reviews are carried out on the Group’s financial and operational performance against the plans and
budgets as approved by the Board. The outcomes are discussed at the Management meetings to ensure that the
planned performance targets and objectives are met.

•

Formulation of Strategy and Annual Budget
The Group’s strategies, corporate plans, key action items, and budgets for the following year are formulated and
revised annually, changing the internal and external environments and risks facing the Group. The strategies,
corporate plans, key action items, and budgets are reviewed annually during the specific Board meetings for
approval. At reasonable intervals, the Board will be informed by Management of the implementation status of
the plans.

•

Tender Evaluation Committee (TEC)
The respective TEC deliberates all tendering exercises at the subsidiary and group levels. After the review by
the relevant TEC, the tender or bid for contracts will be reviewed and reflected by the appropriate approving
authority, which is independent of the TEC. Tenders are called and are awarded based on factors such as
technical expertise, financial capabilities, adequacy and quality of the proposal, the extensiveness of HSE policy
and practices, past performances track record, project management team and schedule and project costs or
fees.
A total of 28 tenders for Sabah Ports on various projects and major procurements had been awarded during the
year, such as supply, installation and commission of Hydrographic Survey Equipment for Headquarters of Sabah
Ports; proposed non-destructive test for product pipelines at Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal; firefighting system
and refurbishment of service trench at the main wharf of Sandakan Port; tender for the proposed installation
of the new saltwater jockey pump system and freshwater pipeline at Tanjung Batu Oil Terminal at Tawau Port;
tender for proposed upgrading works of fenders at Oil Terminal of Lahad Datu Port as well as various major
maintenance works.
KUNAK
PORT

SANDAKAN
PORT

1
TOTAL
TENDERS

28

KOTA
KINABALU
PORT

LAHAD DATU
PORT

6
KUDAT
PORT

1
SCHB
ENGINEERING

0

0

TAWAU
PORT

1
SAPANGAR BAY
CONTAINER
PORT

4
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The monitoring of the Group’s performance against the strategic and corporate plans as well as annual budget is
measured and monitored through the following mechanisms:

2
SAPANGAR
BAY OIL
TERMINAL

How We Are
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E.

3

SABAH PORTS
HEADQUARTERS

10

As for SCHB Engineering, no major tenders were awarded for the year 2021, but a total of 32 minor projects of
various general works had been awarded during the year, such as preventive maintenance and associated works
at the Jesselton Point Ferry Terminal, Kota Kinabalu.

Financial Statements
& Others

135

136

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT (GIA)
i.

Execution of the Annual Internal Audit Plans
•

GIA’s annual internal audit plan for FY2021 was presented to the AC for deliberation on the adequacy of scope and
comprehensiveness of the audit activities, and was duly approved for execution. Nevertheless, the COVID-19 pandemic,
as well as the increasing number of cases in Sabah and increasing infection cases within Sabah Ports workplace in 2021
had directly impacted the execution of the audit plan as the Government imposed inter-district travel restrictions. This
had limited the movement of GIA staff to conduct audit fieldwork, especially at the east coast ports. Nonetheless, for the
year under review, the GIA has undertaken the following activities via hybrid auditing, i.e., remote and physical audit:
•

Conducted audit assignment to provide independent assessment on the effective management of risks and controls
over the business operations, and the details are as follow:
Company

Audit Area

Audit Review

• Sabah Ports

IT Department

IT Audit fieldwork at Sabah Ports - HQ was conducted to
review the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of IT General
Controls (ITGC) and IT Application Controls (ITAC). The scopes
of the IT audit fieldwork covered the following areas:
• Governance;
• System Development;
• IT Support & Application;
• Data Centre (Server / Network / Security); and
• Project Management.

• Sabah Ports

Procurement

Audit review on procurements at the following ports:
• Kota Kinabalu and Kudat Port
• Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal
• Sandakan Port
• Lahad Datu and Kunak Port
• Tawau Port
The audit was conducted to review procurement compliance
of procedures and policies based on the Group’s Authority
Limit and Procurement Procedure (ALPP) / SOP16, to
validate proper segregation of duties within the procurement
department, to review & ensure adequate internal controls
implemented and to review the efficiency and effectiveness of
administrator’s documentation and reporting.

• Sabah Ports

•
•

IT Department

Ad hoc audit assignment / special review was conducted on the
SAGE 300 People system at Sabah Ports - HQ.

Verification of write-off of assets and on-site observation of assets disposal exercises; and
Cross-checking against Management letter from the external auditor.
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Participation in Management Committees and TEC
•

The Head of GIA attends all Management committees and TEC meetings, including tender price negotiation meetings; as
an independent observer and provides advice to the Management. This is to ensure that the Group’s system of internal
control is operating effectively, the Group’s policies and procedures are being adhered to and the tendering process is
carried out objectively.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

For the financial year under review and up to the date of approval of this Statement, the Board is satisfied with the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and internal control. The Board has received reasonable assurance from
the GMD and the CFO that the Group’s system of risk management and internal control, in all material aspects, are operating
adequately and effectively. This Statement is made in accordance with the Board’s resolution dated 30 March 2022.

How We Are
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AAPG 3 does not require the external auditors to consider whether the Directors’ Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system including the assessment and opinion by the Directors and management thereon. The report from
the external auditors was made solely for, and directed solely to the Board in connection with their compliance with the listing
requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and for no other purposes or parties. The external auditors do not assume
responsibility to any person other than the Board in respect of any aspect of this report.
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As required by Para 15.23 of the MMLR, the external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control pursuant to the scope set out in Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3, Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report
on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in the Annual Report (AAPG 3) issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA) for inclusion in the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, and
reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that cause them to believe that the statement intended to be
included in the annual report of the Group, in all material respects has not been prepared in accordance with the disclosures
required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed
Issuers, or is factually inaccurate.

Our
Leadership

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
1.

Overview
The Audit Committee (AC) of the Group is committed to its role of ensuring high corporate governance practices and
providing oversight on the Group’s financial reporting and internal control systems. The AC has full and unrestricted access
to information and can obtain independent professional advice if necessary.
The Group Internal Audit Department (GIA) assists the Group in achieving its business objectives by implementing a
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management measures, controls, and governance
processes. GIA provides independent, objective assurance and consulting services designed to enhance and protect
organisational value. The internal audit charter approved by the AC defines the purpose, authority, and responsibility of GIA.

2.

Composition
The AC is guided by a written Terms of Reference (TOR) or the Charter of the Audit Committee (The Charter); endorsed
by the Board, which sets out its authority and duties. The AC is made up of non-executive Directors, the majority of whom,
including its Chairman, are independent Directors. The Chairman of the AC, Mr. Micheal Tong Yin Shiew, is a qualified
accountant and is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA). This aligns with the Main Market Listing
Requirement (MMLR) of Bursa Malaysia, which requires that at least one of the AC members must be a qualified accountant.
The AC’s collective wealth of experience and expertise in accounting and financial management enables them to discharge
their responsibilities competently.
The AC currently comprises three (3) members:
•
•

Two (2) members are Non-Executive & Independent Directors; and
One (1) member is a Non-Executive & Non-Independent Directors
CURRENT MEMBERS

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

3.

MEMBERSHIP
Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director

APPOINTMENT
31 October 2019

Kee Mustafa

Independent Non-Executive Director

1 July 2014

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

27 November 2020

Meetings and Attendance
Enforcement of the Movement Control Order (MCO) by the Government during the COVID-19 pandemic has not affected
the AC from carrying out its affairs effectively. Their attendance reflects the Directors’ commitment in discharging their
duties and responsibilities at the AC meetings. The number of AC meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2021,
together with a record of the attendance is detailed in the table below:
DIRECTORS

HELD DURING TENURE IN OFFICE

ATTENDED

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

5

5

Kee Mustafa

5

5

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

5

3

Deliberations at the AC meetings were robust and detailed, generally for a few hours. The AC meetings were appropriately
structured with the AC members receiving notices, agendas and papers sufficiently in advance of the meetings. The AC
meetings were also attended by the GMD, the CFO, the Head, Group Company Secretary and the Head of GIA, who are
permanent invitees to the AC meetings.
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The TOR or the Charter set out the authority, duties and responsibilities of the AC which are consistent with the
requirements of the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia and the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (MCCG 2017). The AC
carried out its duties in accordance with the Charter of the AC. The Charter is accessible for viewing via the QR code below.

Summary of AC activities during the financial year 2021
The AC continued to play a key role in assisting the Board to fulfil its oversight responsibilities in ensuring the effectiveness
of financial reporting, system of internal control and the internal and external audit function. The main activities undertaken
were as follows:

Reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial statements of the Group for the year 2020 and 2021 to ensure that the
unaudited quarterly financial statements presented complied with all disclosures and regulatory requirements:
Quarter / Year

c)

d)

Date

Meeting

4 Quarter 2020

23 February 2021

1st meeting

1st Quarter 2021

21 May 2021

3rd meeting

2nd Quarter 2021

20 August 2021

4th meeting

3rd Quarter 2021

15 November 2021

5th meeting

th

Reviewed the changes to the accounting policies and practices, significant judgments and matters highlighted in the
audited financial statements are in compliance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standard (MFRS) prior to
recommending to the Board for approval.
Reviewed matters related to corporate tax governance such as Deferred Tax and Transfer Pricing (TP).

4.2 External audit
a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

Reviewed the external audit fees, tax fees and others in relation to financial year ended 31 December 2020.
Reviewed the external auditors’ audit plan for the Group, scopes of the audit to be undertaken and resource
requirement to ensure effectiveness of the external auditors and their audit for the audit work for the financial year
2021.
Reviewed major audit findings and observation arising from the interim and final audits of the external auditors,
significant accounting issues and other matters which the external auditors required for discussion with the AC.
Reviewed the external auditors’ Management Letter (ML) and Suria Management’s responses to the ML.
Reviewed the eligibility of the external auditor for appointment as the Group external auditor for the financial year
ending 31 December 2021.

How We Are
Governed

a)
b)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

4.1 Financial reporting

Financial Statements
& Others

4.

Our
Leadership

Scan this QR code with your smart device
for the full version of the Terms of Reference
(Charter of the AC).
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4.3 Internal audit
a)

b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

Reviewed and approved the GIA’s annual internal audit plan for FY2021 during the first quarter of 2021 as well as
the annual internal audit plan for FY2022 in November 2021 on adequacy of scope and comprehensiveness of the
audit activities.
Reviewed and deliberated on the internal audit reports arising from the audit conducted by the GIA in the last
quarter 2020 and during the year 2021.
Reviewed the GIA’s cross-checking exercise of audit issues highlighted in the ML from the external auditor.
Reviewed the GIA’s activities in monitoring all corrective or improvement actions on audit findings identified by the
GIA until all issued have been adequately resolved.
Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit process and the resources allocated to the GIA and assessed the
performance of the overall internal audit function.
Reviewed the GIA’s function to check on the compliance to the Section 17A of the MACC Act 2009 preventive
measures as set out in the SOP adopted by the RMGC.

4.4 Other activities
a)
b)
c)

5.

Reviewed the Management’s recommendation on fixed assets disposal and write-off.
Reviewed on the status update of the Group’s Gift Policy in relation to the ACB P&P.
The AC has also discussed current matters impacting the Group arising from new requirements, laws and regulations
introduced by the Government of Malaysia or relevant regulatory bodies.

Summary of GIA activities during the financial year 2021
The GIA, headed by Mr. Mohammad Daniel Lim, is responsible to present all internal audit reports to the AC with each audit
issue supported by GIA’s recommendations and the relevant feedback from the Management. As part of the audit process,
GIA monitors and verify the implementation of the Management action to address the audit issues on the next follow-up
audit.
The GIA places emphasis on the risk-based auditing approach which forms an integral part of the audit plan. The COVID-19
pandemic had directly impacted GIA’s actual planning at optimum level as inter-district travel restriction was imposed due to
spike cases in Sabah as well as infection cases within Sabah Ports’ work place. Nevertheless, during the financial year ended
31 December 2021, GIA had undertaken the following activities:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Prepared the internal audit plan for the year 2021;
Conducted audit assignment to provide independent assessment on the effective management of risks and controls over
the business operations and the details are as follows:
I. IT Audit on the Group IT Department;
II. Audit review on procurements at Sabah Ports, namely:
• Kota Kinabalu and Kudat Port
• Sapangar Bay Oil Terminal
• Sandakan Port
• Lahad Datu and Kunak Port
• Tawau Port
Conducted an ad-hoc assignment /special review on the ‘SAGE 300 People’ system;
Follow-up audit on the past audit issues;
Cross checking against Management Letter from the external auditor;
Verification of write-off of assets and on-site observation of assets disposal exercises;
Participated in the Tender Evaluation Committee (TEC) meetings for the Group as an independent observer and advisor.
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Training
During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the AC members attended virtual conferences, seminars, webinars and
training programmes on governance, audit-related topics and other relevant programmes as tabulated below:

Kee Mustafa

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

DATE

Part 1: Strategically Advanced Company Law &
Secretarial Practice for Accountants

24.2.2021

Part 2: Strategically Advanced Company Law &
Secretarial Practice for Accountants

12.3.2021

Audit Committee Conference 2021

15-16.3.2021

Listing Requirements - Updated or Outdated?

22.3.2021

Balancing Risk Management with Sustainability
Commitment - Ethics, Regulatory Compliance &
Control Environment

31.3.2021

Corporate Board Leadership Symposium 2021 Enhancing Governance and Ethics Towards Future
Sustainability

22-23.5.2021

Understanding Boardroom Dynamics

26.1.2021

Audit Committee Conference 2021

15-16.3.2021

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance Update April 2021

27.7.2021

Mandatory Accreditation Programme

24-26.2.2021

Audit Committee Conference

15-16.3.2021

Listing Requirements - Updated or Outdated?

22.3.2021

Our
Leadership

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

TITLE

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

DIRECTORS

How We Are
Governed

The staff of GIA had also obtained regular updates and trainings mostly via online during the pandemic period. This is to
enable them to remain competent and to keep abreast with the latest development in internal auditing. The total amount of
expenditure incurred by the GIA during the financial year 2021 was RM487,456 as compared to RM456,752 in 2020.

Financial Statements
& Others

6.

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
143
148
148
149
153
155
157
159
162

Directors’ Report
Statement by Directors
Statutory Declaration
Independent Auditors’ Report
Statements of Comprehensive Income
Statements of Financial Position
Statements of Changes in Equity
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the subsidiaries and other information relating to the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 16 to the financial
statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

Our
Leadership

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and property development.

Profit net of tax

Group
RM’000

Company
RM’000

39,524

21,108

39,524

21,108

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

*

-

39,524

21,108

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were
not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than the effect arising from
the reversal of impairment losses on the concession assets amounting to RM11,219,000 as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Results

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the financial
statements.

Financial Statements
& Others

Reserves and provisions

How We Are
Governed

* Below RM1,000
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Dividends
The amounts of dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2020 were as follows:
RM’000
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 as reported in the directors’ report of that year:
Final tax exempt dividend of 2.3 sen per ordinary share, on 345,820,779 ordinary shares, declared on
15 July 2021 and paid on 30 July 2021

7,954

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021:
Interim tax exempt dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share on 345,820,779 ordinary shares, declared on
29 November 2021 and paid on 20 December 2021

5,187
13,141

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt dividend (single-tier) in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2021, of 2.5 sen per ordinary share will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current
financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity
as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2022.

Directors
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the beginning of the financial year to the date of this report are:
Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain Diego*
Datuk Ng Kiat Min*
Datuk Kee Mustafa*
Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md Salleh Bin Tun Said Keruak, J.P.
Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli
Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin
Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin
Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol
Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence
* These directors are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries.

(Appointed on 1 February 2022)
(Appointed on 1 February 2022)
(Appointed on 1 February 2022)
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Directors (continued)

Datuk Pg. Hassanel Bin Datuk Pg. Hj. Mohd Tahir
Azman Bin Amarasikin
Datuk Mohd. Jasmin Bin Julpin
Datuk Rusdin @ Musidi Bin Riman
Siti Noraishah Azizan
Datuk Dr. Johnson Tee
Matbee @ Matbeh Bin Ismail
Viola Chin Yuin Suing
S. Zainal Abidin Bin S. Hassan
Noorida Binti Baharuddin

(Appointed on 1 September 2021)
(Appointed on 1 September 2021)
(Appointed on 15 March 2022)
(Appointed on 1 September 2021)
(Resigned on 10 September 2021)

Our
Leadership

The names of the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in office since the beginning of the financial year to the date of this report
(not including those directors listed above) are:

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company
was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits
included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time
employee of the Company as shown below) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director
or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Directors’ benefits

Group
RM’000

Company
RM’000

Salaries and allowances

469

469

Bonus

148

148

93

93

Fees

555

345

Other emoluments

317

293

49

49

1,631

1,397

Defined contribution plan

Benefits-in-kind

How We Are
Governed

The directors’ benefits are as follows:

During the financial year, the total amount of indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for the directors and the officers of
the Group and of the Company are RM30,000,000 and RM40,000 respectively.

Financial Statements
& Others

Indemnities to directors or officers
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Directors’ interests
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares in
the Company during the financial year were as follows:
Number of ordinary shares
Name of directors

1.1.2021

Acquired

Sold

31.12.2021

Direct Interest:
Ordinary shares of the Company
Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain Diego
Datuk Ng Kiat Min

24,000

-

-

24,000

377,400

-

-

377,400

None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the Company or its related
corporations during the financial year.

Other statutory information
a)

b)

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company were
made out, the directors took reasonable steps:
i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision
for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and that adequate provision had been
made for doubtful debts; and

ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting records in the
ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
i)

it necessary to write off any bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

ii)

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

c)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence
to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

d)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial
statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

e)

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

ii)

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
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Other statutory information (continued)
In the opinion of the directors:
i)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve
months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet
their obligations when they fall due; and

ii)

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial
year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the
Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Our
Leadership

f)

Significant and subsequent events
In addition to the significant and subsequent events disclosed elsewhere in this report, other significant and subsequent events are
disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements.

The auditors, Ernst & Young PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Auditors’ remunerations are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.
To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young PLT, as part of the terms of its
audit engagement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to
indemnify Ernst & Young PLT during or since the financial year.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Auditors

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

Financial Statements
& Others

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain Diego

How We Are
Governed

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 7 April 2022.
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act, 2016

We, Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain Diego and Datuk Ng Kiat Min, being two of the directors of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, do
hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 153 to 240 are drawn up
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2021 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 7 April 2022.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain Diego

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2016

I, Viola Chin Yuin Suing, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 153 to 240 are in my opinion correct,
and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
abovenamed Viola Chin Yuin Suing at
Kota Kinabalu in the State of Sabah on
7 April 2022

Viola Chin Yuin Suing
(MIA 30367)

Before me,
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Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2021, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Our
Leadership

We have audited the financial statements of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 153 to 240.

Basis for opinion

Independence and other ethical responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice)
of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

How We Are
Governed

Key audit matters

Recoverable amount of the concession assets

At the reporting date, the Group’s concession assets amounted to RM802,622,000 which represents 57% of the total assets of
the Group. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the concession assets whenever there are indicators of impairment
or reversal of impairment. As a result of the assessment of the recoverable amount of the concession asset, the Group recognised
a reversal of impairment loss of RM11,219,000 during the current financial year. Due to the significant amount of the concession
assets and the significant judgement required to estimate its recoverable amount, we have identify this area as an area of audit
focus.

Financial Statements
& Others

Refer to Notes 2.11, 3.2(a), and 15 to the financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)
Recoverable amount of the concession assets (continued)
The Group estimated the recoverable amount of the concession assets using value-in-use computation based on cash flows
projections derived from budgets approved by management covering the concession period and discounting these cash flows at an
appropriate discount rate.
In addressing this area of audit focus, we have performed the following procedures:
1)
2)

3)
4)

we have obtained an understanding of the methodology adopted by the management in estimating the value in use and
assessed whether such methodology is consistent with those used in the industry;
we assessed the key assumptions used, focusing on projected revenue (considering effect of tariff increase) and growth rates,
taking into consideration the current and expected future economic conditions. We compared the key assumptions against
past actual outcomes;
we involved our internal valuation experts to evaluate the appropriateness of the discount rate used and assessed whether
the rate used reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset; and
we assessed the sensitivity of the cash flows to changes in the discount rates and key assumptions.

Recoverability of proceeds receivable for disposal of land held for property development
Refer to Note 2.14(i), 3.2(b), 19(b) and 36(a) to the financial statements.
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the proceeds receivable for disposal of land held for property development
amounted to RM193,861,000, representing approximately 14% and 31% of the total assets of the Group and of the Company
respectively. During the current financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group and the Company made allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) of RM9,591,000 in respect of this receivable.
The Group and the Company assess recovery of debts on a forward-looking basis and the ECL associated with such receivable. ECL
represents the difference between the present value of contractual cash flows and the present value of cash flows that the Group
and the Company expect to receive, over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The measurement of ECL incorporates
expected loss rate, time value of money and forward-looking information which requires management to make significant
assumptions regarding future economic conditions, credit worthiness of the debtor and the ability of the debtor to adhere to the
contractual repayment schedule.
After considering the delay in receiving the contractual cash flow, due to the disruption in business operations experienced by the
debtor caused by the Covid 19 pandemic, the Group and the Company has made the aforementioned ECL allowance. Accordingly,
we have identified the assessment of ECL as an area of focus.
In addressing this area of audit focus, we performed the following procedures:
1)
2)
3)
4)

5)

assessed the expected timing and quantum of receipts of the debts by comparing it to the historical payment trend;
assessed the credit worthiness of the debtor by assessing the available financial information disclosed by the debtor;
read correspondences and minutes of meetings between the Company and the debtor regarding settlement arrangement;
held discussions with management to understand the status of the ongoing negotiations on the recovery of debts and
corroborated the key assumptions included in the ECL model, namely on the quantum and timing of receipt of the due debts;
and
assessed and considered the reasonableness of the forward-looking information included in management’s assessment used
in the calculation of ECL allowance.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Our
Leadership

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report,
but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon, which we obtained
prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors’ report.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the directors of the Company and take appropriate action.
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved
standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

How We Are
Governed

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Financial Statements
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As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)
•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s
internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young PLT
202006000003 (LLP0022760-LCA) & AF 0039
Chartered Accountants
Kota Kinabalu, Malaysia
7 April 2022

Low Khung Leong
02697/01/2023 J
Chartered Accountant
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Group
Note

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

216,326

213,837

22,650

20,640

34,960

14,162

-

-

251,286

227,999

22,650

20,640

(137,896)

(141,223)

-

-

(34,960)

(14,162)

-

-

(172,856)

(155,385)

-

-

78,430

72,614

22,650

20,640

Revenue from operations
Revenue from construction services for
concession infrastructure
Total revenue

4

Our
Leadership

Revenue

Total cost of sales
Gross profit
Other items of income
Interest income

5

18,679

17,221

17,941

16,246

Other income

6

15,534

5,113

250

479

(27,180)

(24,507)

(8,574)

(8,145)

(7,739)

(8,476)

(264)

(277)

(19,137)

(13,998)

(9,591)

(6,231)

22,412

22,712

Other items of expense
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

7

Other expenses
Profit before tax

8

58,587

47,967

Income tax expense

11

(19,063)

(15,021)

(1,304)

(3,858)

39,524

32,946

21,108

18,854

-

-

-

-

39,524

32,946

21,108

18,854

Profit net of tax
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

How We Are
Governed

Construction services costs for concession
infrastructure
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Group
Note

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

39,524

32,947

21,108

18,854

Profit net of tax attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

*

(1)

-

-

39,524

32,946

21,108

18,854

39,524

32,947

21,108

18,854

-

-

21,108

18,854

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

*

(1)

39,524

32,946

11.43

9.53

Earnings per ordinary share attributable to
owners of the Company (sen per share):
Basic

12

* Below RM1,000

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021

Group

Company

Note

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment

13

56,725

58,572

46,586

47,890

Investment properties

14

83,967

70,179

83,967

70,179

Concession assets

15

802,622

802,920

-

-

Investments in subsidiaries

16

-

-

210,353

210,353

Deferred tax assets

17

7,632

16,142

7,616

16,096

Other assets

20

34,456

37,363

34,456

37,197

Trade and other receivables

19

Assets

92,909

127,195

92,909

127,195

1,078,311

1,112,371

475,887

508,910

Our
Leadership

Non-current assets

Inventories

18

10,646

8,729

-

-

Trade and other receivables

19

124,062

100,881

103,242

75,352

Other assets

20

3,110

8,848

111

104

24,955

7,800

7,638

104

Tax recoverable
Investment securities

21

78,833

61,871

7,647

5,509

Cash and bank balances

22

79,894

75,021

21,763

18,326

321,500

263,150

140,401

99,395

1,399,811

1,375,521

616,288

608,305

Total assets

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Current assets

Equity and liabilities
Loans and borrowings

23

67

18,697

33

563

Concession liabilities

24

11,280

11,038

-

-

Contract liability

25

Tax payable
Trade and other payables

26

Provisions

27

Net current assets

2,720

1,775

-

-

10,694

7

10,693

-

37,058

44,445

23,533

23,189

4,000

-

-

-

65,819

75,962

34,259

23,752

255,681

187,188

106,142

75,643

How We Are
Governed

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings

23

10,371

130

55

88

Concession liabilities

24

100,430

104,401

-

-

Deferred tax liabilities

17

Tax payable
Provisions
Total liabilities

27

66,595

59,348

-

-

17,431

27,889

17,431

27,889

6,437

1,446

-

-

201,264

193,214

17,486

27,977

267,083

269,176

51,745

51,729

Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021

Group
Note
Net assets

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

1,132,728

1,106,345

564,543

556,576

358,825

358,825

358,825

358,825

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Share capital

29

Other reserves

30

(393)

(393)

-

-

774,308

747,925

205,718

197,751

1,132,740

1,106,357

564,543

556,576

(12)

(12)

-

-

Total equity

1,132,728

1,106,345

564,543

556,576

Total equity and liabilities

1,399,811

1,375,521

616,288

608,305

Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

How We Are
Governed

(13,141)

358,825

747,925

(10,210)

1,798

96

(12,104)

32,947

-

32,947

725,188

774,308

(13,141)

(13,141)

39,524

-

39,524

747,925

Retained
earnings
RM’000

Our
Leadership

(393)

(1,894)

(12)

-

-

-

(96)
(1,798)

-

(1)

-

(1)

(11)

(12)

-

-

*

-

*

(12)

Noncontrolling
interests
RM’000

-

-

-

-

1,501

(393)

-

-

-

-

-

(393)

Other
reserves
(Note 30)
RM’000

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Corporate Overview
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1,106,357

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

358,825

358,825

-

-

-

-

-

358,825

Share
capital
RM’000
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At 31 December 2020
1,106,345

(12,104)

(12,104)

Expiry of employee share options

Total transactions with owners

-

(12,104)

32,947

-

(12,104)

32,946

-

32,947

32,946
-

1,085,514

1,085,503

Lapse of employee share options

Dividends on ordinary shares (Note 39)

Transactions with owners

Total comprehensive income for the year

Other comprehensive income

Profit net of tax

At 1 January 2020

* Below RM1,000

1,132,740

(13,141)
1,132,728

Total transactions with owners

At 31 December 2021

(13,141)

39,524

-

39,524

1,106,357

(13,141)

39,524

-

39,524

1,106,345

Dividends on ordinary shares (Note 39)

Transactions with owners

Total comprehensive income for the year

Other comprehensive income

Profit net of tax

At 1 January 2021

Group

Equity,
total
RM’000

Equity
attributable
to owners of
the Company,
total
RM’000

Attributable to owners of the Company
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Equity,
total
RM’000

Share
capital
RM’000

Retained
earnings
RM’000

Other
reserves
(Note 30)
RM’000

556,576

358,825

197,751

-

21,108

-

21,108

-

-

-

-

-

21,108

-

21,108

-

Dividends on ordinary shares (Note 39)

(13,141)

-

(13,141)

-

Total transaction with owners

(13,141)

-

(13,141)

-

At 31 December 2021

564,543

358,825

205,718

-

At 1 January 2020

551,509

358,825

190,790

1,894

18,854

-

18,854

-

-

-

-

-

18,854

-

18,854

-

(12,104)

-

(12,104)

(83)

-

13

(96)

(1,600)

-

198

(1,798)

Total transaction with owners

(13,787)

-

(11,893)

(1,894)

At 31 December 2020

556,576

358,825

197,751

Company
At 1 January 2021
Profit net of tax
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transaction with owners

Profit net of tax
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transaction with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares (Note 39)
Forfeiture of employee share options
Expiry of employee share options

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

58,587

47,967

22,412

22,712

46,477

47,155

-

-

- trade receivables

10,579

329

9,591

-

- other receivables

-

904

-

-

Concession assets written off

-

777

-

-

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of concession assets
Allowance for impairment loss on:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

2,161

2,381

Dividend income from subsidiaries

-

-

Employee leave entitlement

-

259

Employee leave entitlement written back
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of concession assets
Gain on disposal of investment securities
Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries

(211)

-

1,337

1,511

(18,360)

(16,260)

(27)

42
-

7,739

8,476

264

277

-

(144)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,890

(26)
-

Interest income (Note 5)

(3,589)

(2,186)

(2,851)

(1,211)

Investment income from investment securities

(1,041)

(1,101)

(128)

(138)

33

(179)

(11)

-

8

-

8

8,810

5,404

-

-

-

(83)

-

Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment securities
Plant and equipment written off
Provisions (Note 27)
Rent concessions

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Profit before tax

Our
Leadership

Operating activities

6

(82)

(11,219)

- trade receivables

(175)

(46)

-

-

- investment in subsidiary

-

-

-

(126)

Loss from changes to estimated cash flows on
receivables

-

1,467

-

1,467

Unrealised exchange gain

*

(4)

-

-

Unrealised exchange loss

7

-

-

-

Unwinding of discount on receivable (Note 5)
Total adjustments

(15,090)

(15,035)

(15,090)

(15,035)

44,455

48,382

(25,275)

(24,651)
Financial Statements
& Others
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Group

Operating cash flows before changes in working
capital

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

103,042

96,349

2021
RM’000

(2,863)

2020
RM’000

(1,939)

Changes in working capital:
(1,917)

(1,692)

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

2,003

(5,219)

(1,893)

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

8,645

(1,343)

2,734

Increase in inventories

Decrease in contract asset
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

-

-

(3,972)
(22)
-

(13,311)

371

945

(1,526)

-

Payment of concession liabilities

(11,037)

(10,807)

-

Total changes in working capital

(8,544)

(23,018)

1,212

(4,823)

94,498

73,331

(1,651)

(6,762)

698

867

Increase/(decrease) in contract liability

Cash flows from/(used in) operations
Interest received
Income tax paid
Income tax refunded
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

(7,183)

10,880

-

(20,234)

(17,632)

(123)
-

(829)
-

(113)

2

113

74,964

56,679

2,524

15,172

-

1,073

(34,864)

(14,162)

(1,774)

113
(6,762)

Investing activities
Decrease in cash at banks pledged and deposits with
maturity more than 3 months
Increase in concession assets
Proceeds from disposal of concession assets
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities
Proceed from disposal of plant and equipment
Purchase of investment securities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment income received from investment securities

-

-

-

150

-

-

20,333

51,059

-

-

-

14

-

2

(37,302)

(68,840)

(2,127)

(138)

(314)

(294)

(33)

(103)

128

138

1,041

1,101

Corporate Overview
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Group

Dividends received
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2,891

2,405

2,851

2,297

-

-

18,360

16,260

19,179

19,529

-

-

(45,691)

(13,395)

Financing activities
Increase in cash at banks pledged

(13,151)

Dividends paid

(13,141)

Drawdown of short-term revolving credit
Drawdown of Tawarruq facilities
Interest paid
Decrease in trust receipt
Repayment of short-term revolving credit
Repayment of amount due to Sabah State Government

(12,104)

(13,141)

(12,104)

2,000

-

-

-

10,308

-

-

-

(348)

(960)

(264)

(235)

(4,139)

-

-

(20,000)

-

-

-

-

(5,927)

-

-

-

(695)

(863)

(563)

(689)

(35,027)

(23,993)

(13,968)

(13,028)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(5,754)

19,291

3,437

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

65,653

46,362

18,326

18,587

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (Note 22)

59,899

65,653

21,763

18,326

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Our
Leadership

Interest received

Company

(261)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

1.

Corporate information
Suria Capital Holdings Berhad (“the Company”) is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at 1st
& 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili, No.53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia.
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and property development. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries and other information relating to the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 16. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below. The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“RM’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

2.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as discussed below.
On 1 January 2021, the Group and the Company adopted the following new amendments, standards and interpretations
mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Description

Effective for
annual periods
beginning
or after

Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform-Phase 2

1 January 2021

The adoption of these new amendments, standards and interpretations did not have any material effect on the financial
performance or position of the Group and of the Company.
2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The amendments, standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of these
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these amendments, standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Amendment to MFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

1 April 2021

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018−2020 Cycle

1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment-Proceeds before Intended Use

1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts−Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

1 January 2022

MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and Amendments to MFRS 17

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 4: Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying MFRS 9

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 112: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Deferred

Our
Leadership

Description

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

2.3

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the above standards and interpretations will have a material impact on
the financial statements in the year of initial application except for the following:
Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
In June 2020, the MASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those
items, in profit or loss.
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be applied
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented when the entity first applies the amendment. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Disclosure of Accounting
Policies
In March 2020, the MASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of MFRS 101 to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:
•
•
•
•

What is meant by a right to defer settlement
That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right
That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be applied
retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and whether
existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.
Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
In June 2020, the MASB issued amendments to MFRS 137 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when
assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The
costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of
costs directly related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The Group will
apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
2.4

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:
(i)

power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

(ii)

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and

(iii)

the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The resulting
difference is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference between: (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest, and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, is recognised in profit or loss.
The subsidiary’s cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable, transferred directly to retained earnings. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial
recognition of the investment.

Our
Leadership

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.

Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree. The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Transaction costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

2.4

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset and liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
MFRS 9, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with MFRS 9.
Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of MFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair
value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether
it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2.5

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following:
(a)

power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

(b)

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and

(c)

the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is
included in profit or loss.
2.6

Foreign currencies
a)

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environments in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

b)

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiary and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at exchange rates approximating those
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6

Foreign currencies (continued)
b)

Foreign currency transactions and balances (continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for the differences arising from the translation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary
items are also recognised directly in equity.
Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The accounting policy for
borrowing costs is set out in Note 2.18. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset
if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Sustainability and
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2.7

Our
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Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
-

Ferry terminal: Over remaining lease period
Cruise terminal: 5 years
Motor vehicles: 4 to 5 years
Furniture, equipment and renovation: 2.5 to 10 years

Assets under construction included in plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for
use.

How We Are
Governed

2.

Corporate Overview
and Performance

| ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A contract which involves the use of an item of property, plant and equipment that meets the definition of a lease is
recognised as a right-use-asset.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised.

2.8

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties that are either owned by the Group or leased under a finance lease that are held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, or in the ordinary course of business. Investment properties comprise completed
investment properties and properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.
Properties held under operating leases are classified as investment properties when the definition of an investment
property is met.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.
The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is
incurred if the recognition criteria are met.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of retirement or
disposal.
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

2.9

Service concession arrangements
The Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. (a subsidiary of the Company), the State Government of Sabah and Sabah Ports
Authority entered into the Privatisation Agreement on 23 September 2003 (“Privatisation Agreement”) to privatise
the business of port undertakings of Sabah Ports Authority at the seven ports of Sabah for a period of 30 years and can
be extended for a further period of 30 years.
The terms of the Privatisation Agreement allow the subsidiary to charge and collect from the port users in relation to
any services or facilities provided by the subsidiary in accordance with the tariffs prescribed pursuant to the Sabah
Ports Authority Enactment 1981 and the Sabah Ports (Privatisation) Enactment 1998, as amended from time to
time and including all and any rules made thereunder (“Port Enactments”). The subsidiary shall apply to Sabah Ports
Authority to amend, vary or introduce port dues and charges from time to time in accordance with Port Enactments
based on the financial need of the ports as well as the financial performance of the subsidiary.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Service concession arrangements (continued)
The Group recognises concession assets as intangible assets to the extent that it receives a right to charge users for the
public service. Concession assets received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a service
concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The fair value is calculated as the estimated
total construction cost with no profit margin as all the construction works are subcontracted out. Subsequent to initial
recognition, concession assets are measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.
The Group also recognises concession assets (and the corresponding concession liabilities) arising from the annual
concession fee payables and the lease rental payable for the existing port infrastructures, facilities and land under
the Privatisation Agreement at the present value of the obligations at the inception date of the service concession
arrangement.

Our
Leadership

2.9

When the Group has contractual obligations that it must fulfill as a condition of its license to: a) maintain the
infrastructure to a specified standard or, b) to restore the infrastructure when the infrastructure has deteriorated
below a specified condition, it recognises and measures these contractual obligations in accordance with the accounting
policy for provisions in Note 2.17. Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed
and recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.
2.10 Leases
The Group and the Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Concession assets are amortised over the concession period using the straight line method less impairment loss, if any.

Group as a lessee
The Group and the Company apply a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group and the Company recognise lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
i)

Right-of-use assets
The Group and the Company recognise right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of rightof-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
Leasehold lands
Office premises
Equipment
Motor vehicles

Remaining lease period of 50 to 88 years
1 to 3 years
5 years
5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group or to the Company at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
ii)

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group and the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group or the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expense (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group and the Company use its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group and the Company apply the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). They also apply the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
Lease in which the Group or the Company that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group and the Company
make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The Group and the Company base their impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s or the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long- term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exist, the Group estimates the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If
that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.

Our
Leadership

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or group of assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets or CGUs are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

2.12 Fair value measurement
The Group and the Company measure financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
•
•
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in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group and by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
•
•
•

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group and
the Company determine whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
2.13 Current versus non-current classification
The Group and the Company present assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:
expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
held primarily for the purpose of trading;
expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
it is held primary for the purpose of trading;
it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
The Group and the Company classified all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), and fair value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group or the Company
has applied the practical expedient, the Group and the Company initially measure a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group or the Company has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price.
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.

Our
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Financial assets

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

(i)

The Group’s or the Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments).
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments).
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group and the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as
equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under MFRS
132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI.
Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss.
This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group or the Company
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the
host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there
is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:
-

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

-

The Group or the Company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement and either: (a) the Group or the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group or the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group or the Company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, they evaluate if, and to what extent, they have retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset,
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group and the Company continue to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group and the Company also recognise an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group and the Company have retained.
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Derecognition
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(i)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the
Company could be required to repay.
Impairment
The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and fair value through OCI, contract assets and lease receivables. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows expected
to be received, discounted at the original effective interest rate (EIR). The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collaterals held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
For trade receivables, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Group and the Company do not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognised as a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group and the Company have established provision matrices that are
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
(ii)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings).

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group or by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by MFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in MFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group and the Company have not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
(ii)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts, if any that form an integral part of the Group’s and the Company’s
cash management.
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(iii)
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Subsequent measurement (continued)

2.16 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition comprise purchase costs and are accounted for on a first-in first-out basis.
Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to adjust the carrying value of
inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group or the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
2.19 Employee benefits
a)

Defined contribution plans
The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund (EPF) in Malaysia, a
defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

b)

Share-based compensation
Employees of the Group and the Company receive remuneration in the form of shares and/or share options as
consideration for services rendered.
Employees’ Share Grant Plan
The cost of these equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the shares at the date on which the shares are granted. This cost is recognised in profit or loss as
employee benefits expense.
Employees’ Share Option Scheme
The cost of these equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value of the options at the date on which the options are granted which takes into account market
conditions and non-vesting conditions. This cost is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in
the employee share option reserve, over the vesting period. The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of options that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for the period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.
The employee share option reserve is transferred to retained earnings upon expiry of the share option.

c)

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to the employees. The
undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the reporting date
is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. The liability for leave expected to
be settled beyond twelve months from the end of the reporting date is determined using the projected unit
credit method. The net total of service costs, net interest on the liability and remeasurement of the liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Revenue

Revenue is recognised when the Group or the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to
the satisfied performance obligation.
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Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group or the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group and the Company have generally concluded that they are the principal in their revenue arrangements, except
for the agency services below, because they typically controls the goods and services before transferring them to the
customer.
a)

Revenue from port operations

b)

Revenue from construction and engineering contracts
The Group principally operates fixed price contracts.
Revenue is recognised over time. The Group uses the stage of completion method to determine the appropriate
amount to recognise in a given period for a performance obligation. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs of fulfilling the performance obligation incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total expected fulfilment costs under the contract, which is an input measure according
to MFRS 15.

Sustainability and
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Revenue from port operations are generated from port services provided to customer. The Group recognises
revenue at a point in time upon performance of services.

Progress billings to the customer are based on a payment schedule in the contract and are typically triggered
upon achievement of specified construction milestones.
c)

Revenue from bunkering, shipping fees, scheduled waste disposal services and other services
Revenue from bunkering, shipping fees, scheduled waste disposal services and other services are recognised at a
point in time when services are rendered.

d)
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Agency and distributor fees
The Group acts as an agent to provide a service of arranging for another party to transfer goods or services to a
customer. The Group recognises a commission fee, being the net amount of consideration that the Group retains
after paying the other party the consideration received in exchange for the goods and services to be provided by
that party.

e)

Management fees
Revenue from management fees are recognised over time when services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Revenue (continued)
f)

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery on goods.

Contract balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.
Other items of income
a)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

b)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

c)

Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate cost of incentives
provided to lessees is recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease on a straight-line basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.21 Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised
outside profit or loss, either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.
b)

Our
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Current income tax

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
-

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Sustainability and
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a)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:
-

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.21 Taxes (continued)
b)

Deferred tax (continued)
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

c)

Sales and services tax (“SST”)
Revenue is recognised net of the amount of SST as it is payable to the taxation authority. SST payable to the
taxation authority is included as part of payables in the statements of financial position.
When SST is incurred, SST is recognised as part of the expense or cost of acquisition of the asset as SST is not
recoverable.

2.22 Share capital and share issuance expenses
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which
they are declared.
2.23 Contingencies
A contingent liability is:
a)

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or the
Company; or

b)

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i)

it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or

(ii)

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or the
Company.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group or of the
Company.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services which
are independently managed by the respective segment managers responsible for the performance of the respective
segments under their charge. The segment managers report directly to the management of the Company who regularly
review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the segment performance.
Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 38, including the factors used to identify the
reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

There are no critical judgements made by management in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting are
discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.
a)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Judgement made in applying accounting policies

Recoverable amount of the concession assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment or reversal of impairment losses recognised
in prior periods exist for concession assets at each reporting date. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. This requires an estimation of the value in use for the CGU. The
value in use calculations are based on a discounted cash flow model. The recoverable amount is most sensitive
to the discount rate used as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rates used for extrapolation
purposes.
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3.1

During the financial year, the Group recognised a reversal of impairment loss of RM11,219,000. The reversal was
primarily due to the increase in the recoverable amount of the concession assets after considering the approval
received from the State Government for the increase in tariff rates for the port operations.
The carrying amount of concession assets are disclosed in Note 15.
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2.24 Segment reporting
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
b)

Expected credit losses of trade receivables (“ECL”)
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date,
historical default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customers actual default in the future.
During the financial year, the Group and the Company recognised an expected credit loss of RM10,579,000
(2020: RM329,000) and RM9,591,000 (2020: Nil) respectively. Of this ECL amount, RM9,591,000 (2020: Nil)
relates to debt due from SBC Corporation Berhad (“SBC”) as disclosed in Note 19. The increase in the expected
credit loss is primarily due to the delay anticipated in the collection of the proceeds receivable for disposal of
land held for property development as disclosed in Note 19(b). The collection of this receivable corresponds with
the development of the land by SBC Corporation Berhad (“SBC”) which has been significantly affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic. Management anticipate a delay of 2 years by SBC in the development of this project. Any
further delay in the development will increase the ECL for the debt due from SBC.
The carrying amount of trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19.

c)

Contract revenue from construction and engineering contracts
Contract revenue is recognised over time, based on the construction and other costs incurred to date as a
proportion to the estimated total construction and other costs incurred to date. Significant assumptions
are required to estimate the total contract costs and the recoverable variation works that affect the stage of
completion. In making these estimates, management has relied on past experience and the extend of work to be
completed.
During the financial year, the Group recognised liquidated ascertained damages (“LAD”) arising from one of its
contract of RM2,500,000. The Group was not able to obtain extension of time (“EOT”) for this contract and has
accordingly provided for the LAD based on the estimated time required to complete the contract. Reversal of this
LAD is possible in the event the Group is successful in obtaining EOT from the customer.
The carrying amount of contract liabilities at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 25.

NOTES TO THE
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
The Company assesses whether there is any indication that each of the investments in subsidiaries may be
impaired at each reporting date. If any indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the investment’s
recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an investment in a subsidiary exceeds its recoverable amount,
the investment is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
The Company determines whether its investments are impaired following certain indications of impairment such
as significant changes with adverse effects on the investment and deteriorating financial performance due to
observed changes and fundamentals.

Our
Leadership

d)

Depending on their nature in which the investments are related to, judgements are made by management to
select suitable methods of valuation such as amongst others, discounted cash flow model.
Once a suitable method of valuation is selected, management makes certain assumptions concerning the future
to estimate the recoverable amount of the investment.
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as
the expected future cash inflows and the growth rates used for extrapolation purposes. No impairment loss was
recognised by the Company for the current financial year (2020: RM4,890,000).
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3.2
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NOTES TO THE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
4.

Revenue
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

214,459

205,993

-

-

36

5,926

-

-

916

735

-

-

-

-

4,290

4,380

479

309

-

-

215,890

212,963

4,290

4,380

Revenue from contracts with customers:
Type of goods and services
Income from port operations
Contract revenue from engineering contract
Agency and distributor fees
Management fees
Bunkering, shipping fees, scheduled waste disposal
services and others
Revenue from construction services for
concession infrastructure

34,960

14,162

-

-

250,850

227,125

4,290

4,380

-

-

18,360

16,260

436

874

-

-

251,286

227,999

22,650

20,640

34,996

20,088

4,290

4,380

215,854

207,037

-

-

250,850

227,125

4,290

4,380

Other revenue
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Rental income

Timing of revenue recognition
Over time
At a point in time

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at the
reporting date is, as follows:
Group

Within one year
The remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

1,664

4,313
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4.

Revenue (continued)
Significant terms of sale are as follows:
Sales of goods and services - Credit period of 30 days to 90 days (2020: 30 days to 90 days) from invoicing date.

(i)

During the financial year, the Group provided for liquidated ascertained damages amounting to RM2,500,000 in respect
one of its contract, which is a variable consideration and thus presented as reduction in revenue. Further details are
disclosed in Note 25.
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Construction contract - credit period of 30 days to 90 days (2020: 30 days to 90 days) from invoicing date.

Revenue from construction services for concession infrastructure is recognised as required under IC Interpretation 12:
Service Concession Arrangements and in accordance with MFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers in respect of
the upgrading of port facilities works undertaken during the year. There is no mark-up recognised on these activities as the
Group outsourced the construction services to third parties.

Company
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

968

1,326

353

482

Interest income from:
Deposits with financial institutions
Other loans and receivables
Unwinding of discount on receivable

2,621

860

2,498

729

3,589

2,186

2,851

1,211

15,090

15,035

15,090

15,035

18,679

17,221

17,941

16,246
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Group
2021
RM’000
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Interest income
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6.

Other income
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

-

144

-

-

26

-

-

-

1,041

1,101

128

138

-

353

11

-

- realised

-

16

-

-

- unrealised

-

4

-

-

208

193

104

107

Gain on disposal of concession assets
Gain on disposal of investment securities
Investment income from investment securities
Net fair value gains on investment securities
Net foreign exchange gain:

Rental income
Rent concessions
Sundry income

-

83

-

82

2,734

2,816

7

1

11,219

-

-

-

175

46

-

-

Reversal of impairment loss on:
- concession assets (Note 15)
- trade receivables
Wage subsidy

7.

131

357

-

151

15,534

5,113

250

479

Finance costs
Group
2021
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Interest expense on:
Advances from subsidiary
Lease liabilities
Short-term revolving credit
Tawarruq financing
Trust receipts

-

-

250

250

19

39

14

27

231

674

-

-

96

-

-

-

-

166

-

-

7,308

7,552

-

-

181

45

-

-

7,835

8,476

264

277

-

-

-

8,476

264

277

Unwinding of discount on:
- concession liabilities
- provisions
Less: Capitalised in concession assets (Note 15)
Total finance costs

(96)
7,739
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Profit before tax
The following items have been included in arriving at profit before tax:
Group
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

56,577

62,761

3,774

4,061

872

752

638

600

- trade receivables (Note 19(a))

10,579

329

9,591

-

- other receivables (Note 19(c))

-

904

-

-

46,477

47,155

-

-

- current year

264

231

94

85

- (over)/under provision in respect of previous
year

(30)

12

(5)

-

12

17

12

17

- over provision in respect of previous year

-

(15)

-

(15)

Concession assets written off

-

777

-

-

2,161

2,381

1,337

1,511

-

-

-

4,890

3,279

3,300

-

-

33

174

-

6

-

8

-

8

8,810

1,401

-

-

-

4,003

-

-

Employee benefits expense (Note 9)
Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 10)
Allowance for expected credit loss on:

Amortisation of concession assets (Note 15)

Our
Leadership

Company

2021
RM’000

Auditors’ remuneration:

Other services:
- current year

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 13)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Statutory audit:

Impairment loss on:
- investments in subsidiaries (Note 16)
Leasing of port land
Net fair value loss on investment securities
Plant and equipment written off
Provisions (Note 27):
- current year
- under provision in respect of previous year
Realised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange, net

1

(8)

-

- investment in subsidiary (Note 16)

-

-

-

Loss on changes to estimated cash flows on
receivables

-

1,467

-

1,467

Unrealised loss on foreign exchange

7

-

-

-

How We Are
Governed

8.

Reversal of allowance for impairment loss:
(126)
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9.

Employee benefits expense
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

48,333

48,075

2,924

3,028

5,983

6,782

475

507

- current year

3,028

6,260

430

515

- over provision in respect of previous year

(3,642)

(2,011)

(203)

(230)

Salaries, wages and allowances
Contributions to defined contribution plan
Bonus

Employment insurance system contributions

82

82

3

3

720

727

29

30

Interest subsidies

25

41

-

-

Medical expenses

2,259

2,546

143

166

-

259

-

42

Social security contributions

Employee leave entitlement
Employee leave entitlement written back

(211)

-

(27)

-

56,577

62,761

3,774

4,061

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ remuneration amounting to
RM710,000 (2020: RM656,000) and RM710,000 (2020: RM656,000) respectively as further disclosed in Note 10.

10.

Directors’ remuneration
The aggregate amount of emoluments receivable by all directors of the Company and of the Group, categorised into
appropriate components for the financial year was as follows:
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

710

656

710

656

710

656

710

656

Executive directors’ remuneration (Note 9):
Other emoluments
Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 8):
Fees

555

435

345

312

Other emoluments

317

317

293

288

872

752

638

600

Total directors’ remuneration (Note 32(c))

1,582

1,408

1,348

1,256

Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind

49

64

49

64

1,631

1,472

1,397

1,320

Total directors’ remuneration including benefitsin-kind

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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Directors’ remuneration (continued)
The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the year are as follows:
Group
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Salaries and allowances

469

470

469

470

Bonus

Executive:
148

91

148

91

Defined contribution plan

93

95

93

95

Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind

48

61

48

61

758

717

758

717

Our
Leadership

Company

2021
RM’000

Fees

387

354

345

312

Other emoluments

302

306

293

288

1

3

1

3

690

663

639

603

1,448

1,380

1,397

1,320

Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Non-Executive:

How We Are
Governed
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387

1,012

49

1

-

-

-

-

-

1

48

Benefits
-in-kind
RM’000

1,448

691

71

74

82

140

48

276

757

Total
RM’000

1

Appointed on 1 April 2021.

* Includes bonus, duty allowances, social allowances, leave passage and meeting allowances.

Total directors’ remuneration

11
303

60
387

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

14

60

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

22

60

38

3

215

709

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

102

45

Datuk Kee Mustafa

60

Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md
Salleh Bin Tun Said Keruak,
J.P.1

-

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain
Diego

Non-executive directors:

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

Executive director:

2021

Salary
and/or
other
Fees emoluments*
RM’000
RM’000

Group

The total remuneration (includes benefits-in-kind) of the directors of the Company are as follows:

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

345

345

60

60

60

60

45

60

-

1,003

294

10

14

22

33

3

212

709

Salary
and/or
other
Fees emoluments*
RM’000
RM’000

Company

49

1

-

-

-

-

-

1

48

Benefits
-in-kind
RM’000

1,397

640

70

74

82

93

48

273

757

Total
RM’000
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4

354

962

2
306

5

7

354

45

23

5

64

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3

61

Benefits
-in-kind
RM’000

1,380

663

7

52

83

45

56

136

25

259

717

Total
RM’000

5

4

3

2

1

Appointed on 23 March 2020.
Resigned on 1 September 2020.
Resigned on 11 September 2020.
Appointed on 27 November 2020.
Resigned on 4 December 2020.

How We Are
Governed

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

* Includes bonus, duty allowances, social allowances, leave passage and meeting allowances.

Total directors’ remuneration

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

1

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
60

40

2

Helena Binti Masry

42

14

34

102

Datuk Kee Mustafa

Georgina L. George3

201

656

20

55

-

5

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Yusof Hamdain
Diego4

Tan Sri Ibrahim Bin Menudin5

Non-executive directors:

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

Executive director:

2020

Salary
and/or
other
Fees emoluments*
RM’000
RM’000

Group
Company

312

312

5

45

60

40

42

60

5

55

-

64

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3

61

Benefits
-in-kind
RM’000

Our
Leadership

944

288

2

7

23

5

14

25

20

192

656

Salary
and/or
other
Fees emoluments*
RM’000
RM’000

The total remuneration (includes benefits-in-kind) of the directors of the Company are as follows: (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

1,320

603

7

52

83

45

56

85

25

250

717

Total
RM’000

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
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11.

Income tax expense
Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are:
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

11,597

7,856

235

-

(880)

180

-

-

(7,411)

-

(7,411)

-

3,306

8,036

(7,176)

-

15,538

7,077

8,480

2,998

Statements of comprehensive income
Current income tax:
- Malaysian income tax
- (Over)/under provision in respect of previous
year
- Real property gain tax (“RPGT”) recoverable (i)
Deferred income tax (Note 17):
- Origination and reversal of temporary
differences
- Under/(over) provision in respect of previous
year
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
(i)

219

(92)

-

860

15,757

6,985

8,480

3,858

19,063

15,021

1,304

3,858

The Group and the Company previously paid RPGT on a deemed disposal of land pursuant to a joint venture agreement
disclosed in Note 13. In view of the termination of the agreement, the Group and the Company have initiated recovery
of this RPGT.
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11. Income tax expense (continued)
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the corporate tax rate for the
financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
Group
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Profit before tax

58,587

47,967

22,412

22,712

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2020:
24%)

14,061

11,512

5,379

5,451

(4,691)

(4,226)

Our
Leadership

Company

2021
RM’000

Income not subject to taxation
Non-deductible expenses

(609)

(670)

4,819

3,506

582

1,588

(99)

(9)

-

-

Effect of deferred tax assets not recognised

1,552

594

34

185

Deferred tax assets derecognised on RPGT

7,411

-

7,411

-

(Over)/under provision of income tax in respect
of previous year

(8,291)

180

(7,411)

-

219

(92)

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
and unabsorbed capital allowances

Under/(over) provision of deferred income tax in
respect of previous year
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

19,063

15,021

-

860

1,304

3,858

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Adjustments:

Financial Statements
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Income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2020: 24%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year.
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12.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding.
The following tables reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of basic earnings per share for the years ended
31 December:
Group

Profit net of tax attributable to owners of the Company used in the computation of
basic and diluted earnings per share

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

39,524

32,947

Group

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share computation
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (sen)

2021
Number of
shares
‘000

2020
Number of
shares
‘000

345,821

345,821

11.43

9.53

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and
the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

-

Write off

49,917

At 31 December 2021

5

558

10

15

165

514

2,607

(11)

382

2,236

229

27

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

229

-

202

27

-

-

27

-

Capital
work-inprogress
RM’000

Our
Leadership

526

582

5,323

(134)

90

5,367

(183)

(35)

109

5,476

5,849

(134)

34

5,949

(183)

(35)

16

6,151

Furniture
and fittings
RM’000

56,725

58,572

25,460

(826)

2,161

24,125

(1,473)

(1,481)

2,381

24,698

82,185

(826)

314

82,697

(1,481)

(1,495)

975

84,698

Total
RM’000

Corporate Overview
and Performance

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
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5,873

6,385

289

-

5

284

(18)

(116)

432

1,938

2,772

(11)

33

2,750

(26)

(118)

190

2,704

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

NOTES TO THE
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50,491

9,984

-

294

(681)

6,963

557

9,427

553

422

-

(1,272)

-

(1,253)

(77)

-

1,524
13

8,944

299

-

-

299

560

693

1,001

15,857

-

299

45

-

15,812

(681)

980

-

(1,272)
-

(1,265)

(77)

-

1,564

Storage
tank and
equipment
RM’000

-

15,828

Ferry
terminal
RM’000

61

681

1,571

Office
premises
RM’000

574

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2021

Write off

Depreciation charge for the year
(Note 8)

6,389

-

Write off

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

-

574

5,815

56,880

Disposals

Depreciation charge for the year
(Note 8)

At 1 January 2020

Accumulated depreciation:

At 31 December 2021

-

Additions

Write off

56,880

-

Disposals

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

-

56,880

Long-term
leasehold
lands
RM’000

Additions

At 1 January 2020

Cost:

Group

Property, plant and equipment
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-

Write off

46,778
46,272

At 31 December 2021

6,088

-

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2021

Write off

506

Depreciation charge for the year (Note 8)

5,582

Write off

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

-

506

5,076

Disposals

Depreciation charge for the year (Note 8)

At 1 January 2020

Accumulated depreciation:

52,360

-

Write off

At 31 December 2021

-

Additions

52,360

-

Disposals

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

-

52,360

Long-term
leasehold
lands
RM’000

Additions

At 1 January 2020

Cost:

Company

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(181)

(173)

-

493

225

325

1,147

(11)

(681)
-

133

493

1,025

(1,259)
188

-

140

1,058

-

633

814

1,372

(11)

(681)
-

33

-

1,350

(1,259)
681

-

103

1,428

Office
equipment
RM’000

-

681

1,259

Office
premises
RM’000

23

33

992

-

10

982

66

261

1,700

-

195

1,505

-

-

(4)
-

217

1,288

1,766

-

-

1,766

15

971

1,015

-

-

1,015

-

-

(6)
-

-

1,766

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

-

1,021

Furniture
and office
renovation
RM’000

46,586

47,890

9,927

(692)

1,337

9,282

(1,432)

(4)

1,511

9,207

56,513

(692)

33

57,172

(1,440)

(6)

784

57,834

Total
RM’000
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Included in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets as follows:

Long-term
leasehold
lands
RM’000

Office
premises
RM’000

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

Equipment
RM’000

Total
RM’000

56,880

1,571

1,355

531

60,337

681

-

Group

Our
Leadership

Group as a lessee

Cost
Additions

-

Write off

-

(1,272)

-

(155)

(1,427)

56,880

980

1,355

376

59,591

Transfer/Reclassification

-

-

(1,013)

(12)

(1,025)

Write off

-

(681)

-

(134)

(815)

56,880

299

342

230

57,751

5,815

1,001

736

306

7,858

574

693

219

106

1,592

-

(155)

(1,427)

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

-

681

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020
Depreciation charge for the year
Write off
At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

-

(1,272)

6,389

422

955

257

8,023

574

553

236

55

1,418

Transfer/Reclassification

-

-

(993)

(7)

(1,000)

Write off

-

(681)

-

(134)

(815)

6,963

294

198

171

7,626

At 31 December 2020

50,491

558

400

119

51,568

At 31 December 2021

49,917

5

144

59

50,125

Depreciation charge for the year

At 31 December 2021
Net carrying amount

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

At 1 January 2020
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13.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Company as a lessee
Long-term
leasehold
lands
RM’000

Office
premises
RM’000

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

Equipment
RM’000

Total
RM’000

52,360

1,259

979

360

54,958

Company
Cost
At 1 January 2020
Additions

-

-

-

Write off

-

(1,259)

-

(155)

(1,414)

52,360

681

979

205

54,225

Transfer/Reclassification

-

-

Write off

-

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

681

681

(835)

-

(835)

(681)

-

-

(681)

52,360

-

144

205

52,709

5,076

814

524

195

6,609

506

633

196

41

1,376

-

(1,259)

-

(155)

(1,414)

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020
Depreciation charge for the
year
Write off
At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

5,582

188

720

81

6,571

506

493

196

41

1,236

Transfer/Reclassification

-

-

Write off

-

Depreciation charge for the year

(815)

-

(815)

(681)

-

-

(681)

6,088

-

101

122

6,311

At 31 December 2020

46,778

493

259

124

47,654

At 31 December 2021

46,272

-

43

83

46,398

At 31 December 2021
Net carrying amount

The Group and the Company have lease contracts for long-term leasehold lands, office premises, motor vehicles and
equipment with respective lease terms that are used in its operations. The Group’s and the Company’s obligations under its
leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.
The Group and the Company also have certain leases of office equipment with low value. The Group and the Company have
apply the lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.
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13.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Investment properties

Group and Company

Capital workin-progress
RM

Cost
-

Addition

70,179

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

70,179

Addition

13,788

At 31 December 2021

83,967

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

70,179

At 31 December 2021

83,967

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

At 1 January 2020

The estimated fair value of the investment properties approximate RM89,892,000 (2020: RM77,180,000) as disclosed in
Note 35. During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the construction has reached approximately 99% (2020: 85%)
completion.

How We Are
Governed

Pursuant to the 5th Supplemental Letter to the Joint Venture Agreement between the Company and SBC Corporation Berhad
(“SBC”) dated 21 October 2016 and the Supplemental Agreement dated 12 February 2020, the Company is entitled to 11 lots
of Gallery Shoppes at Jesselton Quay Central which is currently being developed by SBC. Details of the development are
disclosed in Note 19(b).
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On 16 March 2015, the Company entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with Gabungan AQRS Berhad (“joint venture
partner”) for the development of a parcel of long-term leasehold land. The agreement was not completed pending fulfilment of
conditions precedent. During the financial year, the Company and the joint venture partner has mutually agreed to terminate
the Joint Venture Agreement. No losses are anticipated to arise from this termination.
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15.

Concession assets

Port
concession
rights
RM’000

Leased
port
infrastructure
and facilities
RM’000

Capital
expenditure
RM’000

Total
RM’000

213,679

45,296

1,137,523

1,396,498

Additions

-

-

14,162

14,162

Disposals

-

-

(412)

(412)

Write off

-

-

(4,677)

(4,677)

At 31 December 2020

213,679

45,296

1,146,596

1,405,571

At 1 January 2021

213,679

45,296

1,146,596

1,405,571

Group
Cost:
At 1 January 2020

Additions

-

-

34,960

34,960

213,679

45,296

1,181,556

1,440,531

107,815

23,152

428,835

559,802

7,197

1,510

38,448

47,155

Disposals

-

-

(406)

(406)

Write off

-

-

(3,900)

(3,900)

At 31 December 2020

115,012

24,662

462,977

602,651

At 1 January 2021

115,012

24,662

462,977

602,651

7,197

1,510

37,770

46,477

-

-

(11,219)

(11,219)

122,209

26,172

489,528

637,909

At 31 December 2020

98,667

20,634

683,619

802,920

At 31 December 2021

91,470

19,124

692,028

802,622

At 31 December 2021
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At 1 January 2020
Amortisation (Note 8)

Amortisation (Note 8)
Reversal of impairment loss
At 31 December 2021
Net carrying amount:

During the financial year, borrowing costs capitalised in concession assets amounted to RM96,000 (2020: Nil).
Capital expenditure recognised as concession assets are to be handed over at no costs to Sabah Ports Authority upon the
expiry of the concession period.
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Concession assets (continued)

The recoverable amount is determined based on value in use using cash flows projection. The cash flows projections cover
a period of 13 years which is the remaining concession period. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing on the concession assets:
(a)

Discount rate

Our
Leadership

The Group recognised a reversal of impairment loss of RM11,219,000 during the current financial year. The carrying amount
of the concession assets as at the reporting date represents the recoverable amount of the CGU after considering the reversal
above. The increase in the recoverable amount is primarily due to the increase in the tariff rates for the port operations which
was approved by the State Government of Sabah.

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated by applying the discount rate of 12.50%
(2020: 11.50%).
(b)

Revenue

With regards to the assessment of value in use, the Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on the CGU’s discounted
cash flow analysis. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the recoverable amount to the possible changes in
the above key assumptions with all other variables being held constant and its corresponding sensitivity result in a higher or
lower carrying value of the concession assets:
Increase/
(decrease) in
recoverable
amount of
concession
assets
RM’000

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Revenue growth is based on projected cargo volume which is assumed to grow at a higher rate after the first two years
of projection as the business is expected to fully recover from the impact of the pandemic in 2024.

Discount rate
- 1%

38,091

+ 1%

(35,089)

Revenue (period to recover from impact of pandemic)
- 1 year (2023)

36,762

+ 1 year (2025)

(32,202)

How We Are
Governed
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16.

Investments in subsidiaries
Company
2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

112,060

112,060

90,000

90,000

Shares, at cost
Unquoted ordinary shares
Irredeemable preference shares
Redeemable preference shares
Employees’ Share Scheme granted to employees of subsidiaries

24,300

24,300

226,360

226,360

9,459

9,459

235,819

235,819

Impairment losses:
At 1 January

(25,466)

(20,702)

Impairment loss for the year (Note 8)

-

(4,890)

Reversal (Note 8)

-

126

(25,466)

(25,466)

210,353

210,353

At 31 December

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

Country of
incorporation/
principal place
of business

Principal activities

% of ownership
interest held by
the Group*

% of ownership
interest held by
non-controlling
interests*

2021

2020

2021

2020

Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Provision and maintenance of port
services and facilities, and the
regulation and control of the
management of ports

100

100

-

-

Suria Bumiria Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Dormant

100

100

-

-

SCHB Engineering
Services Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Construction contractor, provision of
project management and technical
support services and ferry terminal
operation

100

100

-

-

Suria RE Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Dormant

95

95

5

5

SP Marine Services
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Provision of bunkering and related
services

100

100

-

-

S.P. Satria Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Distribution of port cargo handling
equipment and related spare parts

100

100

-

-

Held through Sabah Ports
Sdn. Bhd.:
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

Country of
incorporation/
principal place
of business

Principal activities

% of ownership
interest held by
the Group*

% of ownership
interest held by
non-controlling
interests*

2021

2020

2021

2020

100

100

-

-

Borneo Waterways
Explorer Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Our
Leadership

Held through
SCHB Engineering
Services Sdn. Bhd.:
Dormant

* Equals to the proportion of voting rights held.
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

In the previous financial year, the cost of investment in SCHB Engineering Services Sdn. Bhd. was reduced by RM126,000 due
to the expiry of employee share options previously granted to employees of the subsidiary. As the cost of investment in the
subsidiary was previously fully impaired, the above reduction gave rise to a reversal of impairment loss by the corresponding
amount.
Information with regards to non-controlling interest is not presented as they are not material.

Deferred tax
As at
1 January
2020
RM’000

As at
Recognised
in profit 31 December
2020
or loss
RM’000
RM’000

As at
Recognised
in profit 31 December
2021
or loss
RM’000
RM’000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Concession assets
Right-of-use assets

87,188

233

87,421

8,508

95,929

149

(16)

133

233

366

87,337

217

87,554

8,741

96,295

(28,487)

781

(27,706)

896

(26,810)

(19)

-

(19)

-

(19)

Other deductible temporary differences

(108)

59

(49)

32

(17)

Provision for dredging and replacement
costs

(2,399)

2,051

(348)

(2,157)

(2,505)

(12,539)

3,856

(8,683)

1,068

(7,615)

(7,411)

-

(7,411)

7,411

How We Are
Governed

Group

Deferred tax assets:
Concession liabilities
Employee defined benefit liability

Receivables
Long-term leasehold land
Lease liabilities

(234)

-

(153)

21

(132)

(51,116)

6,768

(44,348)

7,016

(37,332)

(366)

36,221

6,985

43,206

15,757

58,963
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In the previous financial year, the Company recorded an impairment loss of RM4,890,000 on its investment in Suria Bumiria
Sdn. Bhd. to its recoverable amount of RM11,820,000 which is determined based on value-in-use.
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Deferred tax (continued)
As at
1 January
2020
RM’000

Recognised
in profit
or loss
RM’000

As at
31 December
2020
RM’000

Recognised
in profit
or loss
RM’000

As at
31 December
2021
RM’000

Company
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment

22

3

25

(2)

23

146

2

148

(128)

20

168

5

173

(130)

43

(12,539)

3,856

(8,683)

1,068

(7,615)

(7,411)

-

(7,411)

7,411

-

(150)

-

(150)

129

(21)

(22)

(3)

(25)

2

(23)

(20,122)

3,853

(16,269)

8,610

(7,659)

(19,954)

3,858

(16,096)

8,480

(7,616)

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets:
Receivable
Long-term leasehold land
Lease liabilities
Unabsorbed capital allowances

Group
2021
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:
Deferred tax assets

(7,632)

(16,142)

Deferred tax liabilities

66,595

59,348

58,963

43,206

(7,616)

(16,096)

(7,616)

(16,096)

Unrecognised temporary differences
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

29,310

25,655

21,119

21,119

Unabsorbed capital allowances

2,430

2,436

1,647

1,504

Deductible temporary differences

3,220

812

-

-

34,960

28,903

22,766

22,623

8,390

6,937

5,464

5,430

Unused tax losses

Deferred tax assets @ 24%
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17.

Deferred tax (continued)

Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Year of assessment 2025

-

19,293

-

16,873

Year of assessment 2026

-

3,480

-

3,239

Year of assessment 2027

-

2,882

-

1,007

Year of assessment 2028

19,293

-

16,873

-

Year of assessment 2029

3,480

-

3,239

-

Year of assessment 2030

2,882

-

1,007

-

Year of assessment 2031

3,655

-

-

-

29,310

25,655

21,119

21,119

In prior year, unused tax losses from year of assessment 2019 shall only be allowed to be carried forward for a maximum
period of seven (7) consecutive years of assessment. Any amount which is not utilised at the end of the period of seven (7)
years of assessment shall be disregarded. However based on the Finance Act, 2021 which was gazetted on 31 December
2021, the period to carry forward the unused tax losses has been extended to ten (10) years of assessment effective from the
year of assessment 2019.

Group
2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

10,646

8,729

7,969

8,571

Cost
Consumables
Inventories recognised as an expense in profit or loss

How We Are
Governed

Inventories
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At the reporting date, the Group and the Company have unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances that are
available for offset against future taxable profits of the Group and the Company, for which no deferred tax assets are
recognised because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group can use the benefits
therefrom. The use of these tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances is subject to the agreement of the tax authorities
and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation. The unrecognised tax losses will expire as follows:

Our
Leadership

Unrecognised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances
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Trade and other receivables
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

100,952

67,624

100,952

67,624

24,890

24,734

9,508

6,594

-

-

235

335

2,475

2,475

-

-

128,317

94,833

110,695

74,553

Current
Trade receivables
Third party – proceeds receivable
for disposal of land held for property
development (Note 19(b))
Third parties
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Retention sums on contract
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses
(12,559)

(2,155)

(9,591)

-

115,758

92,678

101,104

74,553

-

-

368

368

Refundable deposits

5,354

4,588

1,497

206

Sundry receivables

3,941

4,606

273

225

9,295

9,194

2,138

799

-

-

Third parties
Trade receivables, net
Other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses
Third parties
Other receivables, net

(991)

(991)

8,304

8,203

2,138

799

124,062

100,881

103,242

75,352

92,909

127,195

92,909

127,195

216,971

228,076

196,151

202,547

79,894

75,021

21,763

18,326

296,865

303,097

217,914

220,873

Non-current
Trade receivables
Third party – proceeds receivable
for disposal of land held for property
development (Note 19(b))
Total trade and other receivables
Add: Cash and bank balances (Note 22)
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost
(a)

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days (2020: 30 to 90 days) terms. They are
recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their transaction price on initial recognition.
Trade receivables of the Group and of the Company amounting to RM8,477,000 (2020: RM15,013,000) and Nil (2020:
RM6,000,000) respectively are secured by bank guarantees made in favour of the Group.
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Trade and other receivables (continued)
(a)

Trade receivables (continued)
Expected credit losses

Movement in allowance accounts:
Group

At 1 January
Charge for the year (Note 8)
Reversal of impairment loss (Note 6)
At 31 December

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2,155

1,872

-

-

10,579

329

9,591

-

(175)

(46)

-

-

12,559

2,155

9,591

-

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors who have
delayed payment, which has been adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. These receivables are not secured
by collateral or credit enhancements.
(b)

Proceeds receivable for disposal of land held for property development

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Our
Leadership

The movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables computed based on lifetime ECL are as
follows:

This represents the balance of proceeds from the deemed disposal of land held for property development pursuant to
the Joint Venture Agreement entered between the Company and SBC Corporation Berhad (“SBC”) dated 21 May 2013.
RM2 million was received upon execution of the Joint Venture Agreement in 2013. The remaining of the estimated
proceeds of RM322 million is to be received in tranches within 7 years from the presentation date of instrument of
charge for the creation of the third party charge on the said land, which was presented in 2018.
During the financial year, the Group and the Company recognised an expected credit loss of RM9,591,000 (2020: Nil)
respectively on the amount due from SBC. The collection of this receivable corresponds with the development of the
land by SBC which has been significantly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.
The remaining maturities of the proceeds receivable as at the reporting date are as follows:

How We Are
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19.

Group and Company
2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

100,952

67,624

Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years

34,764

40,848

Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years

58,145

86,347

193,861

194,819

Within 1 year

Certain variations to the payment terms were agreed between the parties and resulted in the Group receiving payments
in kind. Details of these variations are disclosed in Note 20(ii).
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19.

Trade and other receivables (continued)
(c)

Other receivables
These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-days (2020: 30-days) terms.
Expected credit losses
Movement in allowance for expected credit losses of other receivables computed based on lifetime ECL are as follows:
Movement in allowance accounts:
Group

At 1 January
Charge for the year (Note 8)
At 31 December
(d)

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

991

87

-

-

-

904

-

-

991

991

-

-

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Included in amounts due from subsidiaries (non-trade) is an amount of RM140,000 (2020: RM171,000), which is
unsecured, bears interest at 3.5% (2020: 3.5%) per annum and repayable upon demand. Other amounts due from
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

20.

Other assets
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

3,110

8,848

111

104

Land premium paid (i)

24,238

24,238

24,238

24,238

Capital prepayments (ii)

10,218

12,959

10,218

12,959

-

166

-

-

34,456

37,363

34,456

37,197

37,566

46,211

34,567

37,301

Current
Prepayments
Non-current

Prepaid capital expenditure

(i)

Land premium paid represents 50% of the total land premium for the proposed alienation of a parcel of land located
in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah measuring approximately 28.9 acres from the Sabah State Government to the Company. As
at reporting date, the proposed alienation is subject to terms and fulfilment of obligations as stipulated in the letter of
offer to alienate. The Group has up to 31 December 2025 to fulfil those obligations.
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Other assets (continued)
These represents debts due from SBC converted to prepayments for investment properties after variations in
the payment terms agreed between the relevant parties. Upon signing of the sale and purchase agreement, these
prepayments will be reclassified to investment properties.
On 29 March 2021, the Company signed the Seventh Supplemental Letter with SBC whereby the balance due on the
fourth payment of RM25 million would be fulfilled by RM15 million in cash and RM10 million in-kind in the form of the
delivery of the identified completed commercial properties (“Seventh Supplemental Letter”).
Subsequent to the financial year end, the Company further agreed with SBC to vary the RM15 million receivable in cash
mentioned above to RM10 million receivable in-kind, with RM5 million paid in cash by SBC, in the form of the delivery
of the identified completed commercial properties on 31 January 2022 (“Eighth Supplemental Letter”).

Investment securities
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

78,833

61,871

7,647

5,509

At fair value through profit or loss
Unquoted unit trusts in Malaysia

22.

Cash and bank balances
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Cash at banks and on hand

28,449

28,678

6,467

7,105

Cash at banks pledged as security
for bank facilities (Note 23)

13,151

-

-

-

-

2,734

-

-

31,450

36,975

15,296

11,221

6,844

6,634

-

-

Total cash and bank balances

79,894

75,021

21,763

18,326

Less: Cash at bank pledged as securities

(13,151)

(2,734)

-

-

(6,844)

(6,634)

-

-

59,899

65,653

21,763

18,326

Short term deposits:
- pledged as security for bank guarantees
- with licensed banks
Deposits with maturity more than 3 months

Deposits with maturity more than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

21.
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(ii)

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between 1 month and 3 months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group and the Company, and earn profits and interests at the respective short-term deposit rates. The
weighted average effective profit or interest rates as at 31 December 2021 for the Group and the Company were 1.8% (2020:
1.9%) and 1.9% (2020: 1.8%) respectively.
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22.

Cash and bank balances (continued)
In the previous financial year, short term deposits of RM2,734,000 were pledged as security for a bank guarantee facility
which was uplifted during the financial year.
Deposits more than 3 months are made for a period of 1 year (2020: 1 year) and the weighted average effective profit or
interest rates as at the reporting date for the Group were 2.1% (2020: 2.6%).
Included in deposits with maturity of more than 3 months of the Group are deposits amounting to RM6,844,000 (2020:
RM6,634,000) held under lien to secure bank guarantees which includes guarantees made in favour of the Sabah Ports
Authority against lease rental of port land payable to Sabah Ports Authority and the due maintenance of Sabah Ports’
properties and facilities.
Cash and bank balances denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:
Group

United States Dollar
Singapore Dollar

23.

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

10

6

-

-

6

6

-

-

Loans and borrowings
Group
2021
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

67

695

33

563

-

18,002

-

-

67

18,697

33

563

10,308

-

-

-

Current
Unsecured:
Lease liabilities (Note 28)
Short-term revolving credit

Non-current
Secured:
Tawarruq financing
Unsecured:
Lease liabilities (Note 28)
Total loans and borrowings

63

130

55

88

10,371

130

55

88

10,438

18,827

88

651
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Loans and borrowings (continued)
The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings:

On demand or within 1 year
More than 1 year and less than 2 years
More than 2 years and less than 5 years
More than 5 years

Company
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

67

18,697

33

563

396

66

32

33

3,517

64

23

55

6,458

-

-

-

10,438

18,827

88

651

Our
Leadership

Group
2021
RM’000

Tawarruq financing
This borrowing is denominated in RM, bear interest at 4.0% per annum for the first 2 years thereafter at 4.5% per annum. This
is repayable by 120 monthly instalments and secured by the following:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Assignment on the contract agreement or its equivalent to be executed between Company and the main contractor
under project;
Assignment of Performance Bond or Bank Guarantee issued by the main contractor;
Assignment and charge over the designated accounts (Note 22);
Assignment of all rights, title, interest and benefits under the relevant takaful certificates/insurance policies of the
Project including but not limited to Contractor’s All Risk (during construction) and General and Fire takaful (during
operation).

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Short-term revolving credit
Short-term revolving credit is denominated in RM, unsecured and bears interest at the bank’s Cost of Funds + 1.0% per
annum.
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- current

18,827

130

- non-current

Total

695

-

- current

Lease liabilities

- non-current

18,002

-

- non-current

Short-term revolving credit

-

- current

Tawarruq financing

2021

Group

1 January
RM’000

12,308

-

-

-

2,000

10,308

-

Drawdown
of borrowings
RM’000

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:

Loans and borrowings (continued)

(20,695)

-

(695)

-

(20,000)

-

-

Repayment
of borrowings
RM’000

Cash flows

(348)

-

(19)

-

(233)

(96)

-

Interest
paid
RM’000

346

-

19

-

231

96

-

Accretion
of interest
RM’000

-

(67)

67

-

-

-

-

Others
RM’000

Non-cash changes

10,438

63

67

-

-

10,308

-

31 December
RM’000
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(10,929)

-

(863)

-

(4,139)

-

-

-

(5,927)

(960)

-

(39)

-

(166)

-

(736)

-

(19)

Interest
paid
RM’000

879

-

39

-

166

-

674

-

-

Accretion
of interest
RM’000

681

496

185

-

-

-

-

-

-

Acquisition
of new leases
RM’000

Our
Leadership

18,827

130

695

-

-

-

18,002

-

-

31 December
RM’000

Corporate Overview
and Performance

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

-

(695)

695

-

-

-

-

-

-

Others
RM’000
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(83)

-

(83)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rent
concessions
RM’000

Non-cash changes

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities in respect of the Company is disclosed in Note 28.

29,239

329

Total

761

- non-current

-

4,139

-

18,064

-

5,946

- current

Lease liabilities

- non-current

- current

Trust receipts

- non-current

- current

Short-term revolving
credit

- non-current

- current

Amount due to Sabah
State Government

2020

Group

1 January
RM’000

Repayment
of borrowings
RM’000

Cash flows

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows: (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)
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24.

Concession liabilities
Group
2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

115,439

118,694

7,308

7,552

Payments

(11,037)

(10,807)

At 31 December

111,710

115,439

11,280

11,038

More than 1 year and less than 2 years

10,777

10,542

More than 2 years and less than 5 years

29,567

28,902

5 years or more

60,086

64,957

At 1 January
Unwinding of discount

Current
Within 1 year
Non-current

100,430

104,401

111,710

115,439

This represents the annual fixed periodic lease payments and concession fees payable to the Sabah Ports Authority.

25.

Contract liabilities
Group

Advance payment received from customer
Other liability

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

220

1,775

2,500

-

2,720

1,775

Contract liabilities primarily relates to the Group’s obligation to transfer goods and services to customer for which the Group
has received advances from customer for engineering contract. Contract liability is recognised as revenue as and when the
Group performs the obligations under the contract.
Other liability relates to consideration payable to a customer for the liquidated ascertained damages that are accounted for
as a reduction in the transaction price as disclosed in Note 4.
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Trade and other payables
Group

Company

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

12,656

12,180

-

-

-

-

13,566

13,565

Amount due to joint venture partner

5,940

7,940

5,940

7,940

Accrued operating expenses

9,099

9,327

2,940

830

Current

Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Deposits received

3,171

3,559

-

-

Retention monies due to contractors

1,984

7,562

-

-

1

-

-

-

4,207

3,877

1,087

854

24,402

32,265

23,533

23,189

37,058

44,445

23,533

23,189

Total trade and other payables

37,058

44,445

23,533

23,189

Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 23)

10,438

18,827

88

651

Add: Concession liabilities (Note 24)

111,710

115,439

-

-

(1)

-

-

-

159,205

178,711

23,621

23,840

Sales and services tax payable
Sundry payables

Less: Sales and services tax payable
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
a)

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Third parties

Our
Leadership

Trade payables

Trade payables
These amounts are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled on 30-days (2020: 30-days) terms.
Trade payables denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December are as follows:
Group

b)

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

European Dollar

220

-

Singapore Dollar

98

43

Amounts due to subsidiaries
These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable upon demand except for an amount of
RM5,000,000 (2020: RM5,063,000), which bears interest at 5% (2020: 5%) per annum.

c)

How We Are
Governed

26.

Other payables
These amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing. Other payables are normally settled on an average term of one
month (2020: average term of one month).
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27.

Provisions
Maintenance
dredging
RM’000

Replacement
obligation
RM’000

Total
RM’000

At 1 January 2021

1,446

-

1,446

Provision for the year (Note 8)

3,923

4,887

8,810

Unwinding of discount

93

88

181

At 31 December 2021

5,462

4,975

10,437

Current

4,000

-

4,000

Non-current

1,462

4,975

6,437

5,462

4,975

10,437

9,997

-

9,997

(14,000)

-

(14,000)

Provision for the year (Note 8)

1,401

-

1,401

Under provision in respect of previous year (Note 8)

Group

At 1 January 2020
Payment

4,003

-

4,003

Unwinding of discount

45

-

45

At 31 December 2020

1,446

-

1,446

-

-

-

1,446

-

1,446

1,446

-

1,446

Current
Non-current

Dredging cost
Provision is recognised for expected dredging cost on sea ports, based on past experience and hydrographic survey on the
seabed. It is expected that the costs will be incurred in the next four financial years. The dredging maintenance costs are for
costs to be incurred at Tawau Port and Sandakan Port.
Replacement cost
Provision is recognised for the obligation to replace the moveable assets during the concession period based on past historical
experience, expected timing of the replacement and other available information.
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Leases
Group as a lessee
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under loans and borrowings) and the movements during
the year:

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

825

1,090

651

741

-

681

-

681

19

39

14

27

(714)

(902)

(577)

(716)

Additions
Accretion of interest
Payments
Effect of rent concession received

-

(83)

-

(82)

At 31 December

130

825

88

651

Current (Note 23)

67

695

33

563

Non-current (Note 23)

63

130

55

88

130

825

88

651

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
(Note 13)

1,418

1,592

1,236

1,376

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 7)

19

39

14

27

Expenses relating to low value leases

68

79

11

7

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 23.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Group

Expenses relating to short-term leases
Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Our
Leadership

At 1 January

Company
2020
RM’000

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Group
2021
RM’000

Company

934

718

155

-

2,439

2,428

1,416

1,410

How We Are
Governed

28.

The Group and the Company had total cash outflows for leases of RM1,716,000 and RM743,000 (2020: RM1,699,000 and
RM723,000) respectively. The Group and the Company also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RM681,000 respectively during the previous financial year.
The Group and the Company have several lease contracts that include extension options. These options are negotiated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group’s and the Company’s
business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension options are reasonably
certain to be exercised.
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28.

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of
extension options that are not included in the lease term:
Within five years
2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

51

1,341

46

1,288

Group
Extension options expected not to be exercised
Company
Extension options expected not to be exercised

The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use assets recognised on statement
of financial position:

No. of rightof-use assets
leased

Range of
remaining
term

Average
remaining
lease term

No. of
leases with
extension
options

No. of
leases with
option to
purchase

No. of
leases with
termination
options

Long-term leasehold
lands

6

50 - 87 years

69 years

-

-

1

Office premises

1

1 year

1 year

-

-

1

Motor vehicles

4

1 year

1 year

-

-

-

Equipment

5

1 - 3 years

2 years

4

-

4

Long-term leasehold
lands

6

50 - 88 years

69 years

-

-

-

Office premises

3

1 - 2 years

2 years

2

-

3

Motor vehicles

5

1 - 2 years

2 years

-

-

-

Equipment

8

1 - 4 years

3 years

5

-

5

Right-of-use assets
Group
2021

2020
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28.

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

No. of rightof-use assets
leased

Range of
remaining
term

Average
remaining
lease term

No. of
leases with
extension
options

No. of
leases with
option to
purchase

No. of
leases with
termination
options

Long-term leasehold
lands

2

71 - 87 years

79 years

-

-

-

Motor vehicles

2

1 - 3 years

2 years

2

-

2

2

72 - 88 years

80 years

-

-

-

Right-of-use assets

Our
Leadership

The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use assets recognised on statement
of financial position: (continued)

Company
2021

Long-term leasehold
lands

2

1 year

1 year

1

-

1

2

2 - 4 years

3 years

2

-

2

Equipment

3

1 year

1 year

-

-

-

Share capital
Group and Company
Amount

2021
’000

2020
’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

345,821

345,821

358,825

358,825

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January/31 December
Ordinary shares

How We Are
Governed

Number of ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares
carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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30.

Other reserves
Premium paid
Employee on acquisition of
share option non-controlling
interests
reserve
RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Group
At 1 January 2020

1,894

(393)

1,501

Transaction with owners:
Lapse of employee share options

(96)

-

(96)

Expiry of employee share options

(1,798)

-

(1,798)

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021

-

(393)

(393)

1,894

-

1,894

(96)

-

(96)

(1,798)

-

(1,798)

-

-

Company
At 1 January 2020
Transaction with owners:
Forfeiture of employee share options
Expiry of employee share options
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021

-

Employee share option reserve
Employee share option reserve represents the equity-settled share options granted to employees (Note 31). The reserve is
made up of the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded and is reduced by the expiry or exercise of
the share options.

31.

Employee benefits
Employees’ Share Scheme (ESS)
At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 19 November 2015, shareholders approved the ESS which comprised
Employees’ Share Grant Plan for the granting of ordinary shares of the Company to eligible employees and Employees’ Share
Option Scheme for the granting of non-transferable options shares that are settled by physical delivery of the ordinary shares
of the Company to eligible employees.
The exercise price of the options shall be fixed based on the higher of the 5-day weighted average market price of the
Company’s shares immediately preceeding the date of the award with a discount, if any, of not more than 10%.
The Employees’ share option scheme had expired on 26 November 2020.
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31.

Employee benefits (continued)
Employees’ Share Scheme (ESS) (continued)

The Employees’ Share Grant Plan entailed the awarding of the Company’s ordinary shares to eligible employees, subject to
the terms and conditions of the By-laws. There was no performance targets which the eligible employees must achieve and
was vested immediately to the eligible employees upon the award of the share grants.
Employees’ Share Option Scheme

Our
Leadership

Employees’ Share Grant Plan

The Employees’ Share Option Scheme entailed the awarding of options to eligible employees of the Group to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of the By-laws. There was no performance targets which
the eligible employees must achieve and there was no vesting period for the options as all options, once accepted by the
eligible employees the option will be vested immediately to the eligible employees. The original exercise price of the options
granted during 2015 was equal to RM2.26. The contractual life of the options was five years. These were no cash settlement
alternatives.

2021

2020

No.

WAEP (RM)

No.

WAEP (RM)

Outstanding at 1 January

-

-

3,233,000

1.88

- Expired

-

-

(3,068,000)

1.88

- Lapsed*

-

-

(165,000)

1.88

Outstanding at 31 December

-

-

-

-

Exercisable at 31 December

-

-

-

-

-

There were no options granted during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

* Lapsed due to cessation of employment.

Related party transactions
a)

Government-related entities
Government-linked corporations are related to the Group and to the Company by virtue of Qhazanah Sabah Berhad’s
(QSB), being a substantial shareholder in the Company. QSB is a wholly-owned entity of the State Government of Sabah.
QSB and entities directly controlled by the State Government of Sabah are collectively referred to as governmentrelated entities to the Group and the Company.
The State Government of Sabah and bodies controlled or jointly controlled by the State Government of Sabah are
related parties of the Group and the Company. The Group and the Company enter into transactions with many of these
bodies, include concession fees, port land lease, sufferance wharves charges, rates and assessments and license fees.
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The following table illustrates the number (No.) and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share
options during the previous financial year:
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Movement of share options during the financial year
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32.

Related party transactions (continued)
a)

Government-related entities (continued)
The significant transactions with the State Government of Sabah and government-related entities:
i)

Privatisation Agreement
The Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. (a subsidiary of the Company), the State Government of Sabah and Sabah
Ports Authority have entered into the Privatisation Agreement on 23 September 2003 to privatise the business
of port undertakings of Sabah Ports Authority at the seven ports of Sabah for a period of 30 years and can be
extended for a further period of 30 years.
The annual fixed periodic lease payment and concession fees payable to Sabah Ports Authority is recognised as
concession liabilities (Note 24). The annual variable periodic lease payments payable to Sabah Ports Authority is
recognised as expenses (leasing of port land) in profit or loss (Note 8).

ii)

Alienation of land from Sabah State Government
Information regarding the alienation of land from Sabah State Government is disclosed in Note 20.

All transactions entered into by the Group and the Company with the government-related entities are conducted in
the ordinary course of the Group and the Company’s businesses on negotiated terms or terms comparable to those
with other entities that are not government-related, except otherwise disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements.
b)

Other transactions
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant
transactions between the Company and related parties took place at terms agreed between the parties during the
financial year:
Company
2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

18,360

16,260

5

76

Subsidiaries:
- Dividend income
- Interest income
- Interest expense
- Management fees income
- Rental income

250

250

4,290

4,380

104

107
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32.

Related party transactions (continued)
c)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the financial year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

Company
2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

4,243

4,264

1,580

1,562

506

530

131

145

4,749

4,794

1,711

1,707

Our
Leadership

Group
2021
RM’000

Included in the total remuneration of key management personnel are:

Directors’ remuneration (Note 10)

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

1,582

1,408

1,348

1,256

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

84,644

12,794

-

-

174,262

315,800

-

-

24,238

24,238

24,238

24,238

4,062

9,242

3,634

5,117

202,562

349,280

27,872

29,355

287,206

362,074

27,872

29,355

Commitments
Capital commitments
Group

Company

Concession assets
Approved but not contracted for:
Concession assets
Leasehold land
Property, plant and equipment

How We Are
Governed

Approved and contracted for:

Under the Ports Privatisation Agreement, the Group is committed to spend at least RM1.3 billion in upgrading and maintaining
the relevant ports under the said agreement. The balance of the commitment is shown above.
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34.

Contingent liabilities
Claims
In 2015, a subsidiary of the Company, Sabah Ports Sdn. Bhd. was served with six Bills of Claims from the Royal Malaysian
Customs Department amounting to RM1,097,497 for alleged import duty, sales tax and excise duties on cargo lost at
the container yard. The subsidiary had appealed to the authorities and still awaiting decision from them. Management in
consultation with its lawyers, is of the opinion that it is probable, that the appeal will be successful and accordingly, these
claims are not recognised in the financial statements.

35.

Fair value of assets and liabilities
A.

Assets measured at fair value
The following table shows an analysis of the class of assets measured at fair value at the reporting date:
Fair value measurements at the reporting date using
Level 1
RM’000

Level 2
RM’000

Level 3
RM’000

Total
RM’000

- 2021

-

78,833

-

78,833

- 2020

-

61,871

-

61,871

- 2021

-

7,647

-

7,647

- 2020

-

5,509

-

5,509

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Group
Investment securities (Note 21)

Company
Investment securities (Note 21)

B.

Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of investment securities are determined by reference to prices quoted by independent brokers.
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)
C.

Assets and liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Level 1
RM’000

Level 2
RM’000

Level 3
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Carrying
Amount
RM’000

-

-

89,892

89,892

83,967

-

-

77,180

77,180

70,179

Group and Company

Our
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The following table shows an analysis of the Group and the Company’s assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
but for which fair value is disclosed:

At 31 December 2021
Investment properties
At 31 December 2020
Investment properties

The fair value of the investment properties is based on valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer. The
valuation is based on comparable approach using similar properties with significant unobservable inputs including
factor adjustments made for location, size, accessibility, building conditions and amenities.
D.

Financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair value

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Investment properties

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value:
Note
Trade and other receivables (current and non-current)

19

Cash and bank balances

22

Loans and borrowings (current and non-current)

23

Trade and other payables

26

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments or evaluated by the Group based on estimation by discounting expected
future cash flows at market incremental lending rate for similar types of lending arrangements.
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36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial instruments.
The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, market price risk and interest rate risk.
The Board has approved the Board Risk Policy for implementation and the Board Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee reviews related policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed by the management
committee. The Audit Committee provides independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management process.
It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group’s policy that no derivatives for speculative
purposes shall be undertaken.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks.
a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default on its
obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets (including investment securities, and cash and bank balances), the Group and the Company
minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit
risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the result showed that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments, within 60 days when they fall due, which are derived based on the Group’s historical information.
The Group considers “low risk” to be an investment grade credit rating with at least one major rating agency for those
investments with credit rating. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers available reasonable and supportive forward looking information which includes the following
indicators:
-

Actual or expected change in external or internal credit rating
Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations
Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower
Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower
Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the group and changes in the operating results of the borrower
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 30 days past
due in making contractual payment.

-

Our
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The Group determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:
There is significant difficulty of the issuer or the borrower
A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event
It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulty

The Group categorises a loan or receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments
more than 120 days past due. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such
as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group. Where loans and receivables have been written off,
the Group continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.
The following are credit risk management practices as well as quantitative and qualitative information about amounts
arising from expected credit losses for each class of financial assets.
Trade receivables
The Group and the Company provide for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables using a provision matrix.
The provision rates are determined based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical observed default rates analysed
in accordance to days past due. The expected credit losses below also incorporate forward looking information such as
historical credit loss experience specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The loss allowance provision as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is determined as follows:

Sustainability and
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a)

Summarised below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables
using provision matrix:
2021

2020

Gross
carrying
amount
RM’000

Loss
allowance
provision
RM’000

Gross
carrying
amount
RM’000

Loss
allowance
provision
RM’000

152,165

-

210,080

-

1 to 30 days past due

755

-

582

-

31 to 60 days past due

391

-

4,769

-

How We Are
Governed

36.

Group
Current

61 to 90 days past due

479

-

242

-

More than 91 days past due

10,436

2,968

6,355

2,155

Past debt due from SBC

57,000

9,591

-

-

221,226

12,559

222,028

2,155

Financial Statements
& Others

229

230

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
a)

Credit risk (continued)
Summarised below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables
using provision matrix (continued):
2021

2020

Gross
carrying
amount
RM’000

Loss
allowance
provision
RM’000

Gross
carrying
amount
RM’000

Loss
allowance
provision
RM’000

138,016

-

195,369

-

1 to 30 days past due

331

-

145

-

31 to 60 days past due

342

-

4,704

-

Company
Current

61 to 90 days past due
More than 91 days past due
Past debt due from SBC

331

-

15

-

7,584

-

1,515

-

57,000

9,591

-

-

203,604

9,591

201,748

-

Information regarding loss allowance movement for trade receivables is disclosed in Note 19.
Receivables from disposal of land held for property development
Information regarding receivable from disposal of land held for property development is disclosed in Note 19(b).
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the discount cashflow expected to be received
by the debtor. The calculation reflects the probability – weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. These factors also represent the significant estimate used in estimating any potential ECL
for the receivables. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in these circumstances and to changes in forecast of the
economic conditions. Further details on the ECL are disclosed in Note 19.
Exposure to credit risk
At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.
Credit risk concentration profile
At the reporting date, excluding proceeds for disposal of land held for property development of RM193,861,000 (2020:
RM194,819,000), approximately 21% (2020: 11%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from four (2020: two)
major customers located in Malaysia. The Group does not have any other significant exposure to individual customer
or counter party nor does it have any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial assets except for the
amount due from SBC. In the event SBC is not able to meet its obligations under the Joint Venture agreement as
disclosed in Note 19(b), the Group is of the view that the remaining portion of undeveloped land will revert back to the
Group.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed above. Cash, deposits with
licensed banks and other financial institutions, and investment securities that are neither past due nor impaired are
placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit ratings and no history of
default.
Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed above.
b)

Our
Leadership

Credit risk (continued)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities. The Group’s Board Risk Policy requires
effective maintenance of sufficient liquid financial assets and stand-by credit facilities in managing liquidity risk.
At the reporting date, 1% (2020: 100%) of the Group’s loans and borrowings (Note 23) will mature in less than one year
based on the carrying amount reflected in the financial statements.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities at the
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted amounts:
On demand
or within
one year
RM’000

Two to
five years
RM’000

Over
five years
RM’000

Total
RM’000

127,107

112,000

-

239,107

78,833

-

-

78,833

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

a)

Group
2021
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Investment securities
Cash and bank balances

79,894

-

-

79,894

285,834

112,000

-

397,834

Concession liabilities

11,280

47,735

108,735

167,750

Trade and other payables

37,058

-

-

37,058

447

5,463

7,171

13,081

48,785

53,198

115,906

217,889

237,049

58,802

(115,906)

179,945

Total undiscounted financial assets

How We Are
Governed

36.

Financial liabilities:

Loans and borrowings
Total undiscounted financial liabilities
Total net undiscounted financial assets/
(liabilities)
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36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
b)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (continued)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities at the
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted amounts: (continued)
On demand
or within
one year
RM’000

Two to
five years
RM’000

Over
five years
RM’000

Total
RM’000

105,256

159,000

-

264,256

61,871

-

-

61,871

Group
2020
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Investment securities
Cash and bank balances

75,021

-

-

75,021

242,148

159,000

-

401,148

Concession liabilities

11,038

46,668

117,731

175,437

Trade and other payables

44,445

-

-

44,445

Loans and borrowings

18,717

136

-

18,853

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

74,200

46,804

117,731

238,735

167,948

112,196

(117,731)

162,413

Total undiscounted financial assets
Financial liabilities:

Total net undiscounted financial assets/
(liabilities)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (continued)

On demand
or within
one year
RM’000

Two to
five years
RM’000

Over
five years
RM’000

Total
RM’000

106,289

112,000

-

218,289

7,647

-

-

7,647

Our
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities at
the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted amounts: (continued)

Company
2021
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Investment securities
Cash and bank balances

21,763

-

-

21,763

135,699

112,000

-

247,699

23,533

-

-

23,533

36

57

-

93

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

23,569

57

-

23,626

Total net undiscounted financial assets

112,130

111,943

-

224,073

79,728

159,000

-

238,728

5,509

-

-

5,509

18,326

-

-

18,326

103,563

159,000

-

262,563

23,189

-

-

23,189

578

93

-

671

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

23,767

93

-

23,860

Total net undiscounted financial assets

79,796

158,907

-

238,703

Total undiscounted financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

b)

2020
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Investment securities
Cash and bank balances
Total undiscounted financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

How We Are
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36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
c)

Market price risk
Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than interest or exchange rates).
The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risk arising from its investment in unit trusts. These instruments
are classified as held for trading financial assets. The Group and the Company does not have exposure to commodity
price risk.
Sensitivity analysis for equity price risk
At the reporting date, if the market price had been 0.5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
and the Company’s profit net of tax would have been RM394,000 (2020: RM309,000) and RM38,000 (2020: RM28,000)
lower/higher, arising as a result of higher/lower fair value gains on held for trading investments in equity instruments.

d)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and borrowings.
The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings. However, the Group took
advantage of the low interest at reporting date and secured all borrowings at fixed rate.

37.

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder’s value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.
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37.

Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy
is to keep the gearing ratio below 50%. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings. Capital includes equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

2020
RM’000

10,438

18,827

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

1,132,740

1,106,357

Capital and net debt

1,143,178

1,125,184

1%

2%

Loans and borrowings (Note 23)

Gearing ratio

i.

Investment holding - investments in deposits and investment securities for interest, dividend and investment income.

ii.

Property development - the development of residential and commercial properties.

iii.

Port operations - provision and maintenance of port services and facilities, the regulation and control of the management
of ports and distributor of port cargo handling equipment and related spare parts.

iv.

Logistics and bunkering - provision of bunkering and related services.

v.

Contract and engineering and ferry terminal operations - construction contractor, provision of project management,
technical support services and operating of ferry terminal.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments has been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which,
in certain respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated
financial statements.

How We Are
Governed

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services, and has five
reportable operating segments as follow:

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Segment information

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
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Group
2021
RM’000

38.

Segment liabilities

Segment assets

Additions to non-current assets

Assets:

Segment profit/(loss)

Other non-cash expenses

Impairment of non-financial asset

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income

45,805

353,486

33

22,412

9,564

-

1,337

17,941

22,650

Total revenue

Results:

22,650

-

Inter-segment

External customers

Revenue:

31 December 2021

5,948

278,015

-

(246)

-

-

268

26

-

-

-

Property
Investment
holding development
RM’000
RM’000

222,170

988,852

34,960

60,801

707

-

46,557

1,092

249,079

87

248,992

Port
operations
RM’000

888

2,145

9

553

-

-

11

36

1,107

(105)

1,212

Logistics
and
bunkering
services
RM’000

13,787

13,580

272

(6,573)

97

-

544

56

1,269

187

1,082

(21,515)

(236,267)

-

(18,360)

-

-

(79)

(472)

(22,819)

(22,819)

-

Contract and
engineering
and ferry Adjustments
and
terminal
operations eliminations
RM’000
RM’000

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by business segment:

Segment information (continued)

F

E

D

C

B

A

A

Note

267,083

1,399,811

35,274

58,587

10,368

-

48,638

18,679

251,286

-

251,286

Per
consolidated
financial
statements
RM’000
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Segment liabilities

Segment assets

Additions to non-current assets

Assets:

Segment profit/(loss)

Other non-cash expenses

Impairment of non-financial asset

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income

Results:

7,947

264,368

-

(255)

-

646

1,446

-

(20)

213

-

42

29

706

(74)

780

13,047

19,498

191

(3,097)

904

-

548

144

7,920

-

7,920

Our
Leadership

(21,390)

(236,314)

-

(11,496)

(7,064)

-

(83)

(551)

(20,940)

(20,940)

-

1,375,521
269,176

F

15,137

47,967

2,277

-

49,536

17,221

227,999

-

227,999

E

D

C

B

A

A

Note

Per
consolidated
financial
statements
RM’000
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225,137

967,122

14,162

40,123

3,410

-

47,250

1,336

219,673

374

219,299

Port
operations
RM’000

Contract and
engineering
and ferry Adjustments
and
terminal
operations eliminations
RM’000
RM’000

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Governed

43,789

359,401

784

22,712

4,814

-

268

1,511
-

17

-

-

-

16,246

20,640
20,640

Inter-segment

-

Total revenue

External customers

Revenue:

31 December 2020

Property
Investment
holding development
RM’000
RM’000

Logistics
and
bunkering
services
RM’000

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by business segment: (continued)

Segment information (continued)
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38.

Segment information (continued)
Note

Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements

A

Inter-segment revenues and interest income are eliminated on consolidation.

B

Other material non-cash expenses consist of the following items as presented in the respective notes to the financial
statements:

Allowance for impairment loss on trade and other receivables (Note 19)

10,579

1,233

-

777

Employee leave entitlement (Note 9)

-

259

Plant and equipment written off (Note 13)

-

-

8

10,368

2,277

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries

-

4,890

Reversal of impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary

-

(126)

(18,360)

(16,260)

(18,360)

(11,496)

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

314

975

34,960

14,162

35,274

15,137

Additions to non-current assets consist of:

Property, plant and equipment
Concession assets

E

(211)

The following items are deducted from segment profit to arrive at profit before tax presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income:

Dividend income from subsidiaries

D

2020
RM’000

Concession assets written off (Note 15)
Employee leave entitlement written back (Note 9)

C

2021
RM’000

The following item is deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position:

Inter-segment assets

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

(236,267)

(236,314)
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38.

Segment information (continued)
Note

Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

F

The following item is deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

Inter-segment liabilities

39.

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

(21,515)

(21,390)
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Dividends

2021
RM’000

2020
RM’000

- Final tax exempt dividend for year 2020: 2.3 sen per share

7,954

-

- Interim tax exempt dividend for year 2021: 1.5 sen per share

Recognised during the financial year:
Dividends on ordinary shares:
5,187

-

- Final tax exempt dividend for year 2019: 2.5 sen per share

-

8,646

- Interim tax exempt dividend for year 2020: 1.0 sen per shares

-

3,458

13,141

12,104

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

Group and Company

Significant and subsequent events
COVID-19 pandemic
The COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 2020. The COVID-19
pandemic has significantly disrupted many business operations around the world. The Group is involved in the port operation,
property development, bunkering, contract engineering and ferry terminal operations in Sabah, Malaysia. The operational
and financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic up till the reporting date has been reflected in the financial statements.
Despite the movement control orders imposed by the governments, the Group’s port operation has not been significantly
curtailed as ports were able to operate subject to certain operating conditions.
However, the outbreak of COVID-19 has caused significant disruptions to the Group’s other segments such as property
development, bunkering and ferry terminal operations. Widespread containment measures, travel restrictions and lockdowns
by governments globally have caused a significant drop in revenue of these segments.

Financial Statements
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At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt dividend in respect of financial year ended 31 December
2021, of 2.5 sen per ordinary share will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current
financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in
equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2022.
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Significant and subsequent events (continued)
COVID-19 pandemic (continued)
To the extent that ongoing impact can be estimated, the Group has considered the uncertainties arising from the COVID-19
pandemic in preparation of the financial statements. As disclosed in Note 19(b), the pandemic has severely affected the timing
of collection of the amount due from SBC. However, the expected duration and extent of the pandemic and related financial,
social and public health impact of the COVID-19 on the Group are still uncertain. The financial impact going forward for the
Group will depend on evolving changes in government policy and business and customer reactions.
Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the Group will continue to monitor the development of COVID-19 situation
closely, assess and react actively to its impacts on the financial position, operating results and cash flows of the Group.

41.

Comparatives
The following comparative amounts as at 31 December 2020 have been reclassified to conform with current year’s
presentation:
Previously
stated Reclassification
RM’000
RM’000

As
reclassified
RM’000

Group
Statement of comprehensive income:
Revenue

221,872

6,127

227,999

2,186

15,035

17,221

Other income

26,275

(21,162)

5,113

Cost of sales

162,982

(7,597)

155,385

Interest income

Finance costs

879

7,597

8,476

24,404

12,959

37,363

140,154

(12,959)

127,195

Statement of financial position:
Non-current assets
Other assets
Trade and other receivables
Company
Statement of comprehensive income:
Interest income
Other income

1,211

15,035

16,246

15,514

(15,035)

479

24,238

12,959

37,197

140,154

(12,959)

127,195

Statement of financial position:
Non-current assets
Other assets
Trade and other receivables

42.

Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 7 April 2022.
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

Location

Postal Address

Description

Current Use

Remaining
Lease
Period
Tenure (Expiry Date)

Age of
Property

Land
Area /
Built-up
Area

Net Book
Value
(RM’000) @
Date of
Acquisition 31.12.2021

1

1st and 2nd Floor,
Kota Kinabalu Port
Future Property
Ferry
area under Town
Development
Passengers
Menara Jubili,
Lease No. 017561974 No. 53 Jalan Gaya,
Terminal &
Parking Space
88000 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

2

Lot A24, Country
Lease 065323266,
Mount Kinabalu
Golf Course
Complex,
Kundasang

1

Kota Kinabalu Ferry
Terminal known as
Jesselton Point

1

Kota Kinabalu Ferry
Terminal known as
Jesselton Point

2

Kota Kinabalu Port

1

Lahad Datu Port
Jalan Kastam Baru
Lahad Datu

2

1st and 2nd Floor,
Menara Jubili,
No. 53 Jalan Gaya,
88000 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

99

87 years
(31.12.2108)

12 years

6.28 acres

01.01.2010

46,028

1 acre

18.05.2006

245

Vacant
Residential
Lot

Idle

99

71 years
(31.12.2092)

28 years

K.K. Ferry
Terminal
Building

Ferry
Passengers
Terminal

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

53 years

Land Area: 01.09.2004
3.4 acres
Built-up
Area:
43,164 sq. ft.

-

4th Floor, Wisma
Perkasa Jalan Gaya
88821 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

K.K. Ferry
Terminal
Building

Ferry
Passengers
Terminal

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

53 years

Land Area: 01.09.2004
3.4 acres
Built-up
Area:
43,164 sq. ft.

2,391

4th Floor, Wisma
Perkasa Jalan Gaya
88821 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Renovation

Cruise
Passengers
Terminal

-

-

-

31.12.2013
Built-up
Area:
17,879 sq. ft.

1

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Wharves &
Approaches

Vessel

30

13 Years
25 Years
(31.08.2034) (01.08.1997)

Lahad Datu Port
Jalan Kastam Baru
Lahad Datu

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Office Building

Office

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

3

Lahad Datu Port
Jalan Kastam Baru
Lahad Datu
TL 117503447

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Land

Oil Storage
Depot

99

49 years
(31.12.2070)

50 years

2,072

4

Lahad Datu Port
Jalan Kastam Baru
Lahad Datu

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Oil Storage Tank

Gas oil

99

49 years
(31.12.2070)

50 years

2,117

Lahad Datu Port
Jalan Kastam Baru
Lahad Datu

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Oil Terminal

49 years
(31.12.2070)

50 years

Our
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1st and 2nd Floor,
Menara Jubili,
No. 53 Jalan Gaya,
88000 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

SCHB ENGINEERING SERVICES SDN BHD

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

SURIA BUMIRIA SDN BHD

SABAH PORTS SDN BHD

Palm oil

99

0.9 acres

01.09.2004

1,132*

How We Are
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37 acres

01.12.2013

480
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Location

Postal Address

Description

Current Use

Remaining
Lease
Period
Tenure (Expiry Date)

Age of
Property

Land
Area /
Built-up
Area

Net Book
Value
(RM’000) @
Date of
Acquisition 31.12.2021

SABAH PORTS SDN BHD (CONTINUED)
6

Sandakan Oil Jetty
at Karamunting

Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Karamunting
P. O. Box No. 1368
90715 Sandakan,
Sabah

Oil Jetty

Bulk oil and
Palm oil

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

16.8 acres

01.09.2004

7

Sandakan Oil Jetty
at Sg. Mowtas

Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Karamunting
P. O. Box No. 1368
90715 Sandakan,
Sabah

Oil Jetty

Palm oil

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

18 Years

350 acres

01.09.2004

8

Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Karamunting
Sandakan

Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Karamunting
P. O. Box No. 1368
90715 Sandakan,
Sabah

Wharves &
Approaches

Container

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

18 Years

9

Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Karamunting
Sandakan

Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Karamunting
P. O. Box No. 1368
90715 Sandakan,
Sabah

Sandakan
Ferry Terminal
Building

Ferry
Passengers

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

53 Years

445 acres

01.09.2004

10 Kunak Oil Jetty

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Oil Jetty

Palm oil

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

11 Kunak Oil Jetty

Jalan Kastam Baru
P. O. Box No. 60143
91111 Lahad Datu,
Sabah

Office
Building

Office

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

12 Wisma Pelabuhan
Jalan Dunlop, Tawau

P. O. Box 335
91007 Tawau, Sabah

Wharves &
Approaches

Storage of
Cargo

30

13 Kota Kinabalu Port

Wisma Pelabuhan,
Jalan Tun Fuad
Tanjung Lipat,
Locked Bag 75
88992 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Wharves &
Approaches

Storage of
Cargo

14 Sapangar Bay
Oil Terminal,
Jln Sapangar,
Sapangar Bay

P.O.Box 57
Pejabat Pos Mini
Indah Permai
88450 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Oil Jetty

Bulk Oil

27,342*

8,022*

17,172*

100 acres

01.09.2004

13 Years
16 Years
(31.08.2034) (31/12/2005)

70 acres

01.09.2004

3,642*

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

290 acres

01.09.2004

411*

30

13 years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

340 acres

01.09.2004

587*

1,567*
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

Location

Postal Address

Description

Current Use

Remaining
Lease
Period
Tenure (Expiry Date)

Age of
Property

Land
Area /
Built-up
Area

Net Book
Value
(RM’000) @
Date of
Acquisition 31.12.2021

SABAH PORTS SDN BHD (CONTINUED)
Office
Building

Office and
Operation
Building

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

16 Sapangar Bay
Container Port
Jln Sapangar,
Sapangar Bay

Wisma SabahPorts
P. O. Box 203
Pejabat Pos Mini
Indah Permai
88450 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Container
Port

Vessel and
Container

30

13 Years
(31.08.2034)

15 Years

17 Town Lease
017530415 at
Kg Banjaran,
Kota Kinabalu

Wisma SabahPorts
P. O. Box 203
Pejabat Pos Mini
Indah Permai
88450 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Vacant
Land

Idle

68

52 Years
(31.12.2073)

18 Years

18 Lot AA7, Country
Lease 065323408,
Mount Kinabalu Golf
Course Complex,
Kundasang

Wisma SabahPorts
P. O. Box 203
Pejabat Pos Mini
Indah Permai
88450 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Vacant
Residential
Lot

Idle

90

74 Years
(31.12.2095)

18 Years

9,299*

1,530 acres 01.09.2004

0.98 acre

01.09.2004

752

4.996 acres 01.09.2004

822

Total :

268,396

These lands now categorised under Concession Assets are to be handed over at no costs to Sabah Ports Authority upon the expiry of the concession
period.
The Net Book Value of these assets as at 31.12.2021 are costs of new structures and upgrading as well as renovation to the existing structures that have
been capitalised subsequent to 1 September 2004.

How We Are
Governed

These are land areas gazetted by the State Government of Sabah to Sabah Ports Authority which have been leased to Sabah Ports Sdn Bhd for a period of
30 years under the Privatisation Agreement between the State Government of Sabah, Sabah Ports Authority, Suria Capital Holdings Berhad and Sabah
Ports Sdn Bhd.
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(*)

143,893*
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Wisma SabahPorts
P. O. Box 203
Pejabat Pos Mini
Indah Permai
88450 Kota Kinabalu,
Sabah

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

15 Headquarters
and Sapangar Bay
Container Port’s
Operation Building
Jln Sapangar,
Sapangar Bay
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
As at 31 March 2022

1.

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Issued and Fully Paid
Class of Shares
No. of Shareholders

2.

:
:
:

345,820,779 with voting right of one vote per ordinary share
Ordinary shares
14,372

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
SHAREHOLDINGS
NO. NAME OF DIRECTORS

%

(INDIRECT
INTEREST)

%

1.

Datuk Hj. Faisyal Bin Datuk Yusof Hamdain Diego

24,000

0.007

-

-

2.

Datuk Ng Kiat Min

40,000

0.011

337,400

0.098

3.

Datuk Seri Panglima Dr. Md Salleh Bin Tun Said
Keruak, J.P.

-

-

-

-

4.

Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

-

-

-

-

5.

Kee Mustafa

-

-

-

-

6.

Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.

-

-

-

-

7.

Norlija @ Norlijah Binti Danin

-

-

-

-

64,000

0.018

337,400

0.098

TOTAL

3.

(DIRECT
INTEREST)

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF HOLDINGS AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 (MALAYSIAN & FOREIGN - COMBINE)
NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS

%

NO. OF
SHARES

%

77

0.536

3,018

0.001

100 - 1,000

5,645

39.278

3,377,515

0.977

1,001 - 10,000

7,153

49.770

21,449,372

6.202

10,001 - 100,000

1,269

8.830

36,221,243

10.474

SIZE OF HOLDINGS
1 - 99

100,001 - 17,291,037 (*)
17,291,038 AND ABOVE (**)
TOTAL

227

1.579

127,776,627

36.949

1

0.007

156,993,004

45.397

14,372

100.000

345,820,779

100.000

REMARK: * Less than 5% of issued shares
** 5% and above of issued shares

4.

HOLDER WITH HOLDINGS OF 5% AND ABOVE AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

NO. NAME
1.

Qhazanah Sabah Berhad

NO. OF
SHARES

%

156,993,004

45.397

Corporate Overview
and Performance
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
As at 31 March 2022

LIST OF TOP 30 HOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

NO. OF
SHARES

%

1.

Qhazanah Sabah Berhad

Malaysian
Malaysia

156,993,004

45.397

2.

Yayasan Sabah

Malaysian
Malaysia

12,685,200

3.668

3.

Cartaban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
iCapital.Biz Berhad

Malaysian
Malaysia

11,912,480

3.444

4.

Chief Minister, State of Sabah

Malaysian
Malaysia

5,760,000

1.665

5.

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Siaw Teck Siong (E-PDG)

Malaysian
Malaysia

3,869,080

1.118

6.

UOB Kay Hian Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd (A/C Clients)

Malaysian
Malaysia

3,719,120

1.075

7.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Khoo Bee Lian

Malaysian
Malaysia

3,649,100

1.055

8.

HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for Credit Suisse (SG BR-TST-Asing)

Malaysian
Malaysia

3,531,200

1.021

9.

CIMB Group Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for DBS Bank Ltd (SFS)

Malaysian
Malaysia

3,403,440

0.984

10.

Cheam Heng Ming

Malaysian
Malaysia

3,340,120

0.965

11.

Lim Pei Tiam @ Liam Ahat Kiat

Malaysian
Malaysia

2,383,000

0.689

12.

CGS-CIMB Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for CGS-CIMB Securities
(Singapore) Pte Ltd (Retail Clients)

Malaysian
Malaysia

2,381,600

0.688

13.

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Lim Kuan Gin

Malaysian
Malaysia

2,332,500

0.674

14.

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities for Tan Boon Seng

Malaysian
Malaysia

2,281,400

0.659

15.

Cheam Heng Ming

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,891,680

0.547

16.

HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Chee Sai Mun

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,517,140

0.438

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

NO. NAME

NATIONALITY/
COUNTRY OF
INCORPORATION

Our
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(Without Aggregating Securities from Different Securities Accounts Belonging to the Same Registered Holder)

How We Are
Governed

5.

Financial Statements
& Others

245

246

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
As at 31 March 2022

NO. NAME

NATIONALITY/
COUNTRY OF
INCORPORATION

NO. OF
SHARES

%

17.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Siaw Teck Siong

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,513,640

0.437

18.

Lim Khuan Eng

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,350,000

0.390

19.

CGS-CIMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledges Securities Account for Yeoh Ah Tu
(T Curve-CL)

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,292,800

0.373

20.

Eng See Tiau

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,248,000

0.360

21.

Pua Lai Hwa

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,200,000

0.347

22.

Liew Chee Cheong

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,000,000

0.289

23.

Wong Ah Tim @ Ong Ah Tin

Malaysian
Malaysia

1,000,000

0.289

24.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Yeoh Ah Tu

Malaysian
Malaysia

915,820

0.264

25.

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Teh Kian Lang

Malaysian
Malaysia

898,200

0.259

26.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Wong Chon Shuan

Malaysian
Malaysia

882,200

0.255

27.

Au Yong Mun Yue

Malaysian
Malaysia

880,000

0.254

28.

Wong Chon Shuan

Malaysian
Malaysia

868,600

0.251

29.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Capital Dynamics Asset Management
Sdn Bhd for KESM Industries Berhad
(CDAM30-990472)

Malaysian
Malaysia

855,600

0.247

30.

Ronie Tan Choo Seng

Malaysian
Malaysia

850,000

0.245

SUMMARY
TOTAL NO. OF HOLDERS : 30
TOTAL HOLDINGS
: 236,404,924
TOTAL PERCENTAGE (%) : 68.360
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty Ninth (39th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held at Training
Centre, 1st Floor, Wisma SabahPorts, Sapangar Bay Container Port, Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah on Tuesday,
21 June 2022 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:
AGENDA

1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and the Reports
of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.

To re-elect the following Directors who shall retire by rotation pursuant to Article 94 of the Company’s
Constitution:
(i) Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P.
(ii) Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli

Resolution 1
Resolution 2

Resolution 3
Resolution 4
Resolution 5

4.

To approve the final tax-exempt dividend of 2.5 sen per ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

Resolution 6

5.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM387,000 in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

Resolution 7

6.

To approve the payment of Directors’ remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) payable to the Non-Executive
Directors up to an amount of RM500,000 from 22 June 2022 until the next annual general meeting of the
Company.

Resolution 8

7.

To re-appoint Ernst & Young PLT as Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 31 December
2022 and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Resolution 9
How We Are
Governed

(i) Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P.
(ii) Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol
(iii) Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence

As Special Business
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the followings as ordinary resolution:
8.

Authority to the Directors to allot and issue shares:
“THAT, pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered to allot and issue shares in the Company, at any time, at such issue price, until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors
may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares does not exceed ten
per centum (10%) of the issued capital of the Company at the time of issue AND THAT, the Directors be and
are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued,
subject to the Act, the Constitution of the Company and approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
and other relevant bodies where such approval is necessary.”

9.

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the Companies
Act 2016.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

To re-elect the following Directors who shall retire pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Constitution:

Resolution 10

Financial Statements
& Others

3.

Our
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As Ordinary Business

248

| SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD

NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE AND DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT subject to the shareholders’ approval for the payment of the final tax-exempt dividend of
2.5 sen per ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the dividend will be paid to the shareholders
on 22 July 2022.
The entitlement date shall be fixed on 8 July 2022 and a Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:
(a) Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.30 p.m. on 8 July 2022 in respect of transfers.
(b) Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of the Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board

HIKMAH RAHMANIYAH BINTI AHMAD KHATIB
(MIA 18843) (SSM Practising Certificate No.: 201908003888)
Company Secretary
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah
29 April 2022

Explanatory Notes:
(i)

Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
The audited financial statements are laid in accordance with Section 340(1) of the Companies Act 2016 for discussion only
under Agenda 1. They do not require shareholders’ approval and hence, will not be put for voting.

(ii) Ordinary Resolutions 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5: Re-Election of Directors
The Board have considered the performance and contribution of each of the retiring Directors which were found to be
satisfactory. In addition, each of the retiring Directors has also provided his/her declaration and confirmation on his/her fitness
and propriety to perform duties as Director of the Company.
Except for Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P., Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol and Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence, the details and
profiles of the Directors who are standing for re-election at the 39th AGM are provided in the Board of Directors section on
pages 46 and 47 of the Company’s Annual Report 2021.
Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P., Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol and Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence were appointed as Independent
& Non-Executive Directors of the Company with effect from 1 February 2022. They are required to retire pursuant to Article
101 of the Company’s Constitution and eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. Further details of them are
provided on Item 3, 4 and 5 in the Statement Accompanying Notice of Annual General Meeting.
(iii) Ordinary Resolution 8: Directors’ Remuneration
Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016 provides amongst others, that ‘the Fees’ of the directors and ‘any benefits’ payable
to the directors of a listed company and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general meeting. The directors’ remuneration
(excluding Directors’ Fees) comprises the allowances and other emoluments payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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(a) Meeting Allowance
• Board Meetings – RM1,000.00 per meeting
• Board Committee Meetings – RM1,000.00 per meeting
(b) Duty Allowance
• Chairman of the Board – RM10,000.00 per month
(c) Other Benefits
• Includes benefits that are claimable or otherwise such as professional and social recreational membership as well as
other facilities made available by the Company to eligible Directors.

Our
Leadership

The benefits payable to Non-Executive Directors comprise allowances, benefits-in-kind and other emoluments payable to
them, details of which are as follows:

(iv) Ordinary Resolution 9: Re-appointment of Auditors
Being satisfied with the performance, technical competency, audit approach as well as audit independency of Ernst & Young
PLT, the Board had at its meeting held on 30 March 2022 approved the recommendation by the Audit Committee for seeking
shareholders’ approval at the 39th AGM on the re-appointment of Ernst & Young PLT as Auditors of the Company for the
financial year ending 31 December 2022.

The Company has not issued any new shares under the general mandate for allotment of shares pursuant to Section 75 and
Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016 which was approved at the 38th AGM held on 29 June 2021 and which will lapse at the
conclusion of this AGM.

How We Are
Governed

The general mandate, if granted, will provide the Company flexibility to undertake any share issuance without having to
convene a general meeting and thereby reducing administrative time and costs associated with the convening of additional
general meeting. The general mandate is to allow for possible share issue and/or fund raising exercise, placement of fund for
current and/or future investments projects, acquisitions and/or to meet working capital requirements as well as in the event of
any strategic opportunities involving equity deals which may require the Company to allot and issue new shares on an urgent
basis. As such, the exercise of the general mandate is only to be undertaken if the Board considers it to be in the best interest
of the Company.

Financial Statements
& Others

(v) Ordinary Resolution 10: Power of Directors to Allot and Issue Shares
This proposed Ordinary Resolution is a general mandate to be obtained from the shareholders of the Company at this AGM
and if passed, would, subject to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, empower the
Directors to issue up to a maximum of ten per centum (10%) of the total issued and paid up share capital of the Company for
such purpose as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the Company without having to convene a general
meeting. This general mandate, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of
the Company.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

The Board is also seeking shareholders’ approval to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
(1) Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P. and Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli are retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 94 of the Company’s
Constitution and is eligible for re-election.
(2) Directors retiring pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Constitution and are eligible for re-election are:
(i) Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P.
(ii) Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol
(iii) Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence
Further details of the abovementioned Directors seeking re-election, except for Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P., Datuk
Juslie Bin Ajirol and Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence, are provided from page 46 and 47 of the Annual Report.
(3) Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P., 61 years old and a Malaysian. She qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1986 and has
founded her own practice, Messrs Alexandra FL Chin in 2005. She is the Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK (FCCA), Member of the Chartered Accountants Australia & New Zealand (CAANZ), Member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) and Member of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia (CTIM).
She has over 35 years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing, company secretarial and business consultancy. She sits on
the Board of Audience Analytics Ltd (a company listed in Singapore) and as its Audit Committee Chairman.
She is the Past Global President of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and has served as an elected
Global Council Member of ACCA for 12 consecutive years (2005 to 2017).
She is affiliated with several professional bodies including Member of the Commonwealth Magistrates and Judges Association,
UK (CMJA), Member of the Commonwealth Associate Leadership Malaysia (CALM), Member of Sabah Women Entrepreneur
and Professional Association (SWEPA) and Member of Institute of Corporate Directors Malaysia (ICDM).
She was a Board member of Sabah Tourism Board, Board of Trustees of Sabah Park and Sabah Sports Board.
(4) Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol, 68 years old and a Malaysian. He has over 40 years of experience in Public Service where he started
his career in 1979 as a Government Officer at the Education Department, Sabah. He was then appointed as Councillor for
Sandakan Municipal Council in 1994 and Chairman for Sandakan Power Corporation Sdn Bhd in 1997. From 1995 to 1999, he
was made a Political Secretary to the State’s Ministry of Public Works and the State’s Ministry of Rural Development.
His experience also includes 20 years in the corporate sector as Chairman of Government-linked companies namely Cement
Industries Sabah (CIS) (2000-2004) and Sabah Urban Development Corporation (SUDC) (1999-2018).
He graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from Institut Teknologi Mara (ITM) Sabah and subsequently
obtained his Masters in Political Science from Open University Malaysia (OUM).
(5) Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence, 63 years old and a Malaysian. He is a professional Engineer with his own consultancy firm,
Jurutera Perunding JJ.
He began his career as an Executive Engineer for Public Works Department in 1988. His 18 years of experience in Public Works
Department includes 14 years as a District Engineer in four districts namely Ranau, Penampang, Kuala Penyu and Tuaran.
Thereafter, he formed his own consultancy firm, Eramaju Synergy Sdn Bhd in 2007 and subsequently Jurutera Perunding JJ in
2010. He currently sits as a Board of Director in Lembaga Pembangunan Perumahan dan Bandar (LPPB), Sabah since February
2021.
He graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering from New England College, Henniker, New Hampshire, United
States of America.
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2.

Where a Member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless the Member specifies the proportion of
his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

3.

In the case of a corporate body, the proxy appointed must be in accordance with the Constitution, and the instrument appointing
a proxy shall be given under the Company’s Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
For instrument appointing a proxy executed outside Malaysia, the signature must be attested by a Solicitor, Notary Public,
Consul or Magistrate.

4.

Where a Member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account
(“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of
each omnibus account it holds.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili,
No. 53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu no later than 19 June 2022, Sunday at 10.00 a.m. or at least forty-eight (48) hours
before the time appointed for holding the AGM or any adjournment thereof.

6.

For the purpose of determining a Member who shall be entitled to participate and vote at the AGM in accordance with Article
71 of the Company’s Constitution and Section 34(1) of the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, the Company
shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to issue a Record of Depositors as at 15 June 2022. Only a Member
whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 15 June 2022 shall be eligible to participate at the AGM or appoint
proxy(ies) to participate and vote on his/her behalf.

7.

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the
resolutions set out in the Notice of the Meeting, including resolutions in addendum, errata or amended notice will be put to
vote by way of poll. Poll Administrator and Independent Scrutineer will be appointed respectively to conduct the polling/evoting process and to verify the results of the poll.

BUS SHUTTLE SERVICE
Bus shuttle service between Kota Kinabalu and Sapangar Bay Container Port will be provided for the shareholders to attend the
Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, 21 June 2022. The shuttle bus will leave at 9.00 a.m. The pick-up point will be at the Kota
Kinabalu Ferry Terminal, Jesselton Point.

Sustainability and
Highlights of The Year

A Member of the Company entitled to participate and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and
vote instead of him/her. A proxy may but need not be a Member of the Company.
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Contact person : Pn. Zubaidah Ajamain
Telephone No. : 088 257 788 / 011 6556 5004
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PROXY FORM

SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD
198301001662 (96895-W)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. of Shares held

CDS Account No.

*I/We .......................................................................................................................NRIC No./Passport No./Co. No. .......................................................................
(full name in block letters)
of .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(full address)
being a Member of SURIA CAPITAL HOLDINGS BERHAD, hereby appoint:
Full name and address (in block letters)

NRIC No./Passport No.

No. of shares

% of shareholding

NRIC No./Passport No.

No. of shares

% of shareholding

and/or
Full name and address (in block letters)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Thirty Ninth
(39th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held at the Training Centre, 1st Floor, Wisma SabahPorts, Sapangar Bay
Container Port, Jalan Sapangar, Sapangar Bay, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah on Tuesday, 21 June 2022 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment
thereof in respect of my/our holding of ________________ shares.
(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate space(s) provided below on how you wish your votes to be casted. In the absence of
specific directions, your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion).
RESOLUTION

FOR

AGAINST

As Ordinary Business
To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
1.

To re-elect Michael Tong Yin Shiew, J.P. who shall retire by rotation pursuant to Article 94 of the
Company’s Constitution.

2.

To re-elect Ahmad Rizal Bin Dahli who shall retire by rotation pursuant to Article 94 of the Company’s
Constitution.

3.

To re-elect Datuk Alexandra Chin @ Fui Lin, J.P. who shall retire pursuant to Article 101 of the
Company’s Constitution.

4.

To re-elect Datuk Juslie Bin Ajirol who shall retire pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Constitution.

5.

To re-elect Ir. Jerome Jimbangan @ Terence who shall retire pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s
Constitution.

6.

To approve the final tax-exempt dividend of 2.5 sen per ordinary share in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

7.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM387,000 in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

8.

To approve the payment of Directors’ remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) payable to the NonExecutive Directors up to an amount of RM500,000 from 22 June 2022 until the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

9.

To re-appoint Ernst & Young PLT as Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 31 December
2022 and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.
As Special Business

10. To authorise the Directors to allot and issue shares under Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies
Act 2016.

Dated this _________ day of _____________________, 2022

Signature of a Member / Common Seal of a Corporation

Notes:
1. A Member of the Company entitled to participate and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy may but need not
be a Member of the Company.
2.

Where a Member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless the Member specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

3.

In case of a corporate body, the proxy appointed must be in accordance with the Constitution, and the instrument appointing a proxy shall be given under the corporation’s common
seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
For instrument appointing a proxy executed outside Malaysia, the signature must be attested by a Solicitor, Notary Public, Consul or Magistrate.

4.

Where a Member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the
Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint
in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 1st & 2nd Floor, Menara Jubili, No. 53, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu no later
than 19 June 2022, Sunday at 10.00 a.m. or at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM or any adjournment thereof.

6.

For the purpose of determining a Member who shall be entitled to participate and vote at the AGM in accordance with Article 71 of the Company’s Constitution and Section 34(1)
of the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to issue a Record of Depositors as at 15 June 2022.
Only a Member whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 15 June 2022 shall be eligible to participate at the AGM or appoint proxy(ies) to participate and vote on his/
her behalf.

7.

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the resolutions set out in the Notice of the Meeting, including
resolutions in addendum, errata or amended notice will be put to vote by way of poll. Poll Administrator and Independent Scrutineer will be appointed respectively to administer the
voting process and to verify the results of the poll.
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